
BIG HOLLOW SCHOOL DISTRICT #38  Revenue and Expenditure History  September 9, 2019

School Education Operations & Maint. Transportation Capital Improvements Working Cash TOTALS
Year Fund 10 Fund 20 Fund 40 Fund 60 Fund 70 Operating Funds

Rev Exp Rev Exp Rev Exp Rev Exp Rev Exp Rev Exp

2011-2012 $11,970,978 $13,594,204 $1,197,430 $1,237,302 $1,763,435 $1,237,917 $87,670 $0 $102,806 $0 $15,122,319 $16,069,423

2012-2013 $12,333,376 $14,000,493 $1,239,704 $1,307,266 $1,511,278 $1,416,335 $20,868 $405,868 $165,671 $0 $15,270,897 $17,129,962

2013-2014 $10,774,917 $12,273,265 $1,119,507 $1,276,272 $1,510,084 $1,667,074 $78,717 $531,309 $155,432 $0 $13,638,657 $15,747,920

2014-2015 $11,494,300 $11,799,603 $1,033,986 $1,411,847 $1,205,745 $1,668,331 $93,105 $551,851 $144,964 $0 $13,972,100 $15,431,632

2015-2016 $13,052,667 $11,210,027 $1,043,718 $1,218,304 $1,487,018 $1,463,424 $76,620 $268,500 $137,729 $0 $15,797,752 $14,160,255

2016-2017 $13,632,747 $11,606,877 $1,914,276 $1,922,201 $1,159,370 $932,335 $252,854 $810,509 $71,054 $0 $17,030,301 $15,271,922

2017-2018 $14,579,762 $12,526,985 $1,375,604 $1,161,845 $1,304,686 $1,026,484 $365,368 $372,583 $59,707 $0 $17,685,127 $15,087,897

2018-2019 $14,596,672 $14,012,989 $1,376,387 $1,116,719 $940,551 $1,140,390 $208,880 $394,192 $113,339 $0 $17,235,829 $16,664,290

2019-2020 $14,924,470 $15,054,066 $1,432,991 $1,129,119 $1,171,154 $1,255,341 $102,821 $445,065 $107,373 $0 $17,738,809 $17,883,591

2020-2021 $15,781,053 $15,699,678 $1,418,194 $1,291,613 $1,435,902 $1,064,663 $339,613 $255,212 $100,551 $0 $19,075,313 $18,311,166

2021-2022 $17,370,983 $19,261,845 $1,383,000 $1,604,560 $1,465,510 $1,456,525 $100,500 $267,348 $100,000 $0 $20,419,993 $22,590,278

Notes: 1.  All 2020-2021 numbers are subject to audit
2.  All 2021-2022 figures are budget estimates as of September 13, 2021
3.  The O&M revenue for 2019-2020 does not include income received from land sale ($1,928,822)
4.  2021-2022 calculations include significant increases in revenue and expense due to ESSER II and III funds

Exhibit 1



End of Year Fund Balance Report

Education O&M
Debt 

Services Transportation IMRF/SS
Capital 
Projects

Working 
Cash Tort Total

June 30, 2011 $3,714,630 $1,500,838 $3,036,171 $263,341 $351,049 $3,319,269 $208,138 $44,148 $12,437,584
June 30, 2012 $2,091,404 $1,463,348 $3,305,403 $788,859 $445,812 $3,406,939 $310,944 $62,340 $11,875,049
June 30, 2013 $424,287 $1,395,786 $2,144,766 $883,802 $426,990 $3,021,940 $476,615 $67,503 $8,841,689
June 30, 2014 -$1,074,061 $1,239,021 $2,410,521 $726,812 $290,655 $2,569,348 $632,047 $32,892 $6,827,235
June 30, 2015 -$1,320,080 $776,267 $2,531,146 $263,931 $68,122 $2,077,869 $776,276 $50,100 $5,223,631
June 30, 2016 $522,560 $601,681 $2,593,837 $287,525 -$17,575 $1,885,989 $914,005 $54,429 $6,842,451
June 30, 2017 $2,444,295 $614,574 $2,763,940 $514,560 $5,340 $1,328,334 $985,059 $53,837 $8,709,939
June 30, 2018 $4,588,736 $807,523 $2,837,567 $792,762 $128,949 $1,321,119 $1,044,766 $69,466 $11,590,888
June 30, 2019 $5,093,183 $1,067,191 $2,840,420 $592,923 $209,082 $1,135,807 $1,158,105 $63,380 $12,160,091
June 30, 2020 $4,963,587 $3,299,886 $2,581,500 $508,736 $222,777 $793,563 $1,265,478 $45,128 $13,680,655

June 30, 2021 $5,033,819 $3,426,468 $2,652,583 $879,975 $126,403 $877,964 $1,366,029 $43,681 $14,406,922
June 30, 2022 $3,142,957 $3,204,908 $2,693,237 $888,960 $46,881 $711,116 $1,466,029 $33,745 $12,187,833

Notes: 1.  June 30, 2021 figures are subject to audit
2.  June 30, 2022 figures are budget estimates as of September 13, 2021

Exhibit 2



X School District

Joint Agreement

Accounting Basis:

x Cash

Accrual

Date of Amended Budget:

District Name:

District RCDT No:

,  County of ,

.

, 

   County of ,

13th day of ,     20 21 ,

.

*
** Type in the members who voted "YEA" nor "NAY".  Actual school board member signatures are not required for electronic submission.

(1) A certified copy of this document must be filed with the county clerk within 30 days of adoption as required 

by Section 18-50 of the Property Tax Code (35 ILCS 200/18-50).  

(2) Districts are required to submit the adopted/amended budget electronically to ISBE within 30 days of adoption or by October 30,

whichever comes first. Budgets are submitted to School Finance Report (SFR): https://sec1.isbe.net/attachmgr/default.aspx 

Please type the member signatures before submitting to ISBE.  We do not accept PDF copies.

ISBE SD50-36/JA50-39 SB2021 05/21

Big Hollow School District 38

34-04903-8002

Based on the 23 Illinois Administrative Code-Part 100 and inconformity with Section 17-1 of the School Code. 

** MEMBERS VOTING YEA: ** MEMBERS VOTING NAY:

(MM/DD/YY)

September

July 1, 2021

Big Hollow School District 38

Lake

June 30, 2022

 If your FY21 AFR states that you need to do a deficit reduction plan and your FY22 budget is balanced please state the measures you took 

to have your budget become balanced.  (Bckgrnd-Assumpt 25-26)

June 30, 2022July 1, 2021

Big Hollow School District 38

ILLINOIS STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION

SCHOOL DISTRICT/JOINT AGREEMENT BUDGET FORM *

School Business Services Division

Lake

Unbalanced budget, however, a deficit 

reduction plan is not required at this 

time. 

Big Hollow School District 38

34-04903-8002

July 1, 2021 - June 30, 2022

Budget of 

State of Illinois, for the Fiscal Year beginning and ending

WHEREAS the Board of Education of

State of Illinois, caused to be prepared in tentative form a budget, and the Secretary

of this Board has made the same conveniently available to public inspection for at least thirty days prior to final action thereon;

AND WHEREAS a public hearing was held as to such budget on the 

notice of said hearing was given at least thirty days prior thereto as required by law, and all other legal requirements have been complied with;

NOW, THEREFORE, Be it resolved by the Board of Education of said district as follows:   

Section 1:  That the fiscal year of this school district be and the same hereby is fixed and declared to be 

beginning

Section 2: That the following budget containing an estimate of amounts available in each Fund, separately, and expenditures from each be 
and the same is hereby adopted as the budget of this school district for said fiscal year.

ADOPTION OF BUDGET  

The budget shall be approved and signed below by members of the School Board.    Adopted this     

and ending

day of by a roll call vote of Yeas, and Nays, to wit:,  20

Page 1 21-22 Budget Form 9-8-21

Exhibit 3

https://sec1.isbe.net/attachmgr/default.aspx


Page 2 BUDGET SUMMARY Page 2

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27
28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35
36

37

38

39

40

41

42
43

44

45

46

A B C D E F G H I J K L

Begin entering data on EstRev 5-10 and EstExp 11-17 tabs. (10) (20) (30) (40) (50) (60) (70) (80) (90)

Description:  Enter Whole Numbers Only

Acct #   Educational   Operations & 

Maintenance

Debt Service Transportation    Municipal 

Retirement/ Social 

Security

Capital Projects Working Cash Tort Fire Prevention & 

Safety

ESTIMATED BEGINNING FUND BALANCE July 1, 2021 1 (without Student 

Activity Funds) 5,033,819 3,426,468 2,652,583 879,975 126,403 877,964 1,366,029 43,681 0

RECEIPTS/REVENUES (without Student Activity Funds)

LOCAL SOURCES 1000 9,028,770 1,383,000 5,147,305 685,650 538,978 100,500 100,000 186,000 0

FLOW-THROUGH RECEIPTS/REVENUES FROM ONE                                 

DISTRICT TO ANOTHER DISTRICT

2000

0 0 0 0

STATE SOURCES 3000 6,265,323 0 0 779,860 0 0 0 0 0

FEDERAL SOURCES 4000 2,076,890 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Direct Receipts/Revenues 8 17,370,983 1,383,000 5,147,305 1,465,510 538,978 100,500 100,000 186,000 0

Receipts/Revenues for "On Behalf" Payments 
2 3998

Total Receipts/Revenues 17,370,983 1,383,000 5,147,305 1,465,510 538,978 100,500 100,000 186,000 0

DISBURSEMENTS/EXPENDITURES (without Student Activity Funds)

INSTRUCTION 1000 12,805,186 225,965 0

SUPPORT SERVICES 2000 5,847,700 1,534,560 1,456,525 368,485 267,348 195,936 0

COMMUNITY SERVICES 3000 5,959 0 0 50 0

PAYMENTS TO OTHER DISTRICTS & GOVT UNITS 4000 603,000 70,000 0 0 24,000 0 0 0

DEBT SERVICES 5000 0 0 5,106,651 0 0 0 0

PROVISION FOR CONTINGENCIES 6000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Direct Disbursements/Expenditures 
9 19,261,845 1,604,560 5,106,651 1,456,525 618,500 267,348 195,936 0

Disbursements/Expenditures for "On Behalf" Payments 
2

4180 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Disbursements/Expenditures 19,261,845 1,604,560 5,106,651 1,456,525 618,500 267,348 195,936 0

Excess of Direct Receipts/Revenues Over (Under) Direct 

Disbursements/Expenditures (1,890,862) (221,560) 40,654 8,985 (79,522) (166,848) 100,000 (9,936) 0

OTHER SOURCES/USES OF FUNDS

OTHER SOURCES OF FUNDS (7000)

PERMANENT TRANSFER FROM VARIOUS FUNDS

Abolishment the Working Cash Fund 
16 7110

Abatement of the Working Cash Fund 
16 7110

Transfer of Working Cash Fund Interest 7120

Transfer Among Funds 7130

Transfer of Interest 7140

Transfer from Capital Projects Fund to O&M Fund 7150 0

Transfer of Excess Fire Prev & Safety Tax & Interest 
3 

Proceeds to O&M Fund 7160
0

Transfer of Excess Accumulated Fire Prev & Safety Bond and Int 
3a

 Proceeds to 

Debt Service Fund                             
7170

0

SALE OF BONDS (7200)

Principal on Bonds Sold 4 7210

Premium on Bonds Sold 7220

Accrued Interest on Bonds Sold 7230

Sale or Compensation for Fixed Assets 
5 7300

Transfer to Debt Service to Pay Principal on Capital Leases 7400 0
Transfer to Debt Service Fund to Pay Interest on Capital Leases 7500 0
Transfer to Debt Service Fund to Pay Principal on Revenue Bonds 7600 0
Transfer to Debt Service Fund to Pay Interest on Revenue Bonds 7700 0
Transfer to Capital Projects Fund 7800 0
ISBE Loan Proceeds 7900

Other Sources Not Classified Elsewhere 7990

Total Other Sources of Funds 
8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

C:\Users\bobgold\Desktop\21-22 Budget Form 9-8-21 9/8/2021

Exhibit 3



Page 3 BUDGET SUMMARY Page 3

1

2

A B C D E F G H I J K L

Begin entering data on EstRev 5-10 and EstExp 11-17 tabs. (10) (20) (30) (40) (50) (60) (70) (80) (90)

Description:  Enter Whole Numbers Only

Acct #   Educational   Operations & 

Maintenance

Debt Service Transportation    Municipal 

Retirement/ Social 

Security

Capital Projects Working Cash Tort Fire Prevention & 

Safety

47

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56
57

58

59

60

61
62

63

64
65

66

67

68
69

70

71

72

73
74

75

76

77
78

79

80

81

82

83

84

85

86

87

88

89

90

91

92

93

94

95

OTHER USES OF FUNDS (8000)

TRANSFER TO VARIOUS OTHER FUNDS (8100)

Abolishment or Abatement of the Working Cash Fund 
16 8110 0

Transfer of Working Cash Fund Interest 8120 0
Transfer Among Funds 8130

Transfer of Interest 
6

8140

Transfer from Capital Projects Fund to O&M Fund 8150

Transfer of Excess Fire Prev & Safety Tax & Interest 
3
 Proceeds to O&M Fund

8160

Transfer of Excess Accumulated Fire Prev & Safety Bond 
3a                                  

and Int Proceeds to Debt Service Fund                             

8170

Taxes Pledged to Pay Principal on Capital Leases 8410

Grants/Reimbursements Pledged to Pay Principal on Capital Leases 8420

Other Revenues Pledged to Pay Principal on Capital Leases 8430

Fund Balance Transfers Pledged to Pay Principal on Capital Leases 8440

Taxes Pledged to Pay Interest on Capital Leases 8510

Grants/Reimbursements Pledged to Pay Interest on Capital Leases 8520

Other Revenues Pledged to Pay Interest on Capital Leases 8530

Fund Balance Transfers Pledged to Pay Interest on Capital Leases 8540

Taxes Pledged to Pay Principal on Revenue Bonds 8610

Grants/Reimbursements Pledged to Pay Principal on Revenue Bonds 8620

Other Revenues Pledged  to Pay Principal on Revenue Bonds 8630

Fund Balance Transfers Pledged to Pay Principal on Revenue Bonds 8640

Taxes Pledged to Pay Interest on Revenue Bonds 8710

Grants/Reimbursements Pledged to Pay Interest on Revenue Bonds 8720

Other Revenues Pledged to Pay Interest on Revenue Bonds 8730

Fund Balance Transfers Pledged to Pay Interest on Revenue Bonds 8740

Taxes Transferred to Pay for Capital Projects 8810

Grants/Reimbursements Pledged to Pay for Capital Projects 8820

Other Revenues Pledged to Pay for Capital Projects 8830

Fund Balance Transfers Pledged to Pay for Capital Projects 8840

Transfer to Debt Service Fund to Pay Principal on ISBE Loans 8910

Other Uses Not Classified Elsewhere 8990

Total Other Uses of Funds 
9

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Other Sources/Uses of Fund 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

ESTIMATED ENDING FUND BALANCE June 30, 2022 (Without Student Activity 

Funds) 3,142,957 3,204,908 2,693,237 888,960 46,881 711,116 1,466,029 33,745 0

Student Activity ESTIMATED BEGINNING FUND BALANCE July 1, 2021  

Fund 11 17,382

RECEIPTS/REVENUES (For Student Activity Funds)

Total Student Activity Direct Receipts/Revenues  (Local Sources) 1799 0

DISBURSEMENTS/EXPENDITURES (For Student Activity Funds)

Total Student Activity Direct Disbursements/Expenditures 1999 0

Excess of Direct Receipts/Revenues Over (Under) Direct 

Disbursements/Expenditures 0

Student Activity ESTIMATED ENDING FUND BALANCE June 30, 2022 17,382

Total ESTIMATED BEGINNING FUND BALANCE July 1, 2021 (All Sources 

Including Student Activity Funds) 5,051,201 3,426,468 2,652,583 879,975 126,403 877,964 1,366,029 43,681 0

RECEIPTS/REVENUES  (All Sources with Student Activity Funds)

LOCAL SOURCES 1000 9,028,770 1,383,000 5,147,305 685,650 538,978 100,500 100,000 186,000 0

FLOW-THROUGH RECEIPTS/REVENUES FROM ONE                                 

DISTRICT TO ANOTHER DISTRICT

2000

0 0 0 0

STATE SOURCES 3000 6,265,323 0 0 779,860 0 0 0 0 0

C:\Users\bobgold\Desktop\21-22 Budget Form 9-8-21 9/8/2021

Exhibit 3



Page 4 BUDGET SUMMARY Page 4

1

2

A B C D E F G H I J K L

Begin entering data on EstRev 5-10 and EstExp 11-17 tabs. (10) (20) (30) (40) (50) (60) (70) (80) (90)

Description:  Enter Whole Numbers Only

Acct #   Educational   Operations & 

Maintenance

Debt Service Transportation    Municipal 

Retirement/ Social 

Security

Capital Projects Working Cash Tort Fire Prevention & 

Safety

96

97

98

99

100

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

116

117

118

119

120
121

122

123

124

125

126

127
128

129

130

131
132

FEDERAL SOURCES 4000 2,076,890 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Direct Receipts/Revenues 8 17,370,983 1,383,000 5,147,305 1,465,510 538,978 100,500 100,000 186,000 0

Receipts/Revenues for "On Behalf" Payments 
2 3998 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Receipts/Revenues 17,370,983 1,383,000 5,147,305 1,465,510 538,978 100,500 100,000 186,000 0

DISBURSEMENTS/EXPENDITURES (All Sources with Student Activity Funds)

INSTRUCTION 1000 12,805,186 225,965 0

SUPPORT SERVICES 2000 5,847,700 1,534,560 1,456,525 368,485 267,348 195,936 0

COMMUNITY SERVICES 3000 5,959 0 0 50 0

PAYMENTS TO OTHER DISTRICTS & GOVT UNITS 4000 603,000 70,000 0 0 24,000 0 0 0

DEBT SERVICES 5000 0 0 5,106,651 0 0 0 0

PROVISION FOR CONTINGENCIES 6000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Direct Disbursements/Expenditures 
9 19,261,845 1,604,560 5,106,651 1,456,525 618,500 267,348 195,936 0

Disbursements/Expenditures for "On Behalf" Payments 
2

4180 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Disbursements/Expenditures 19,261,845 1,604,560 5,106,651 1,456,525 618,500 267,348 195,936 0

Excess of Direct Receipts/Revenues Over (Under) Direct 

Disbursements/Expenditures (1,890,862) (221,560) 40,654 8,985 (79,522) (166,848) 100,000 (9,936) 0

OTHER SOURCES/USES OF FUNDS

OTHER SOURCES OF FUNDS (7000)

Total Other Sources of Funds 
8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

OTHER USES OF FUNDS (8000)

Total Other Uses of Funds 
9

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Other Sources/Uses of Fund 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

ESTIMATED ENDING FUND BALANCE June 30, 2022 (All Sources With student 

Activity Funds) 3,160,339 3,204,908 2,693,237 888,960 46,881 711,116 1,466,029 33,745 0

SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURES Without Student Activity Funds (by Major Object)
(10) (20) (30) (40) (50) (60) (70) (80) (90)

Description Acct 

#

Educational Operations & 

Maintenance

Debt Service Transportation Municipal 

Retirement/ Social 

Security

Capital Projects Working Cash Tort Fire Prevention & 

Safety

Total By Object

Object Name

Salaries 100 12,919,938 375,000 826,500 0 0 0 14,121,438

Employee Benefits 200 1,593,085 30,560 30,825 618,500 0 0 0 2,272,970

Purchased Services 300 1,257,059 714,700 1,000 136,600 10,000 195,936 0 2,315,295

Supplies & Materials 400 1,814,238 484,300 111,400 0 0 0 2,409,938

Capital Outlay 500 0 0 0 241,348 0 0 241,348

Other Objects 600 1,155,025 0 5,105,651 351,200 0 0 0 0 6,611,876

Non-Capitalized Equipment 700 522,500 0 0 16,000 0 0 538,500

Termination Benefits 800 0 0 0 0 0

Total Expenditures 19,261,845 1,604,560 5,106,651 1,456,525 618,500 267,348 195,936 0 28,511,365

C:\Users\bobgold\Desktop\21-22 Budget Form 9-8-21 9/8/2021

Exhibit 3



Page 5 SUMMARY OF CASH TRANSACTIONS Page 5

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

A B C D E F G H I J K

(10) (20) (30) (40) (50) (60) (70) (80) (90)

Description:  Enter Whole Numbers Only Acct #   Educational   
Operations & 

Maintenance
Debt Service Transportation

   Municipal 

Retirement/ Social 

Security

Capital Projects Working Cash Tort
Fire Prevention & 

Safety

BEGINNING CASH BALANCE ON HAND July 1, 2021 7 (Without Student 

Activity Funds) 5,033,819 3,426,468 2,652,583 879,975 126,403 877,964 1,366,029 43,681 0

17,370,983 1,383,000 5,147,305 1,465,510 538,978 100,500 100,000 186,000 0

OTHER RECEIPTS

Interfund Loans Payable (Loans from Other Funds) 411

Interfund Loans Receivable (Repayment of Loans) 141

Notes and Warrants Payable 433

Other Current Assets 199

Total Other Receipts 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

17,370,983 1,383,000 5,147,305 1,465,510 538,978 100,500 100,000 186,000 0

Total Amount Available 22,404,802 4,809,468 7,799,888 2,345,485 665,381 978,464 1,466,029 229,681 0

19,261,845 1,604,560 5,106,651 1,456,525 618,500 267,348 0 195,936 0

OTHER DISBURSEMENTS

Interfund Loans Receivable (Loans to Other Funds) 
10 141

Interfund Loans Payable (Repayment of Loans) 411

Notes and Warrants Payable 433

Other Current Liabilities 499

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Direct Disbursements, Other Uses, & Other Disbursements 19,261,845 1,604,560 5,106,651 1,456,525 618,500 267,348 0 195,936 0

3,142,957 3,204,908 2,693,237 888,960 46,881 711,116 1,466,029 33,745 0

Activity Funds BEGINNING CASH BALANCE ON HAND July 1, 2021 7

17,382

0

Total Amount Available 17,382

0

17,382

Total BEGINNING CASH BALANCE ON HAND July 1, 2021 7 (With Student 

Activity Funds) 5,051,201 3,426,468 2,652,583 879,975 126,403 877,964 1,366,029 43,681 0

17,370,983 1,383,000 5,147,305 1,465,510 538,978 100,500 100,000 186,000 0

Total Other Receipts 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

17,370,983 1,383,000 5,147,305 1,465,510 538,978 100,500 100,000 186,000 0

Total Amount Available 22,422,184 4,809,468 7,799,888 2,345,485 665,381 978,464 1,466,029 229,681 0

19,261,845 1,604,560 5,106,651 1,456,525 618,500 267,348 0 195,936 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Direct Disbursements, Other Uses, & Other Disbursements 19,261,845 1,604,560 5,106,651 1,456,525 618,500 267,348 0 195,936 0

3,160,339 3,204,908 2,693,237 888,960 46,881 711,116 1,466,029 33,745 0

Total Direct Receipts & Other Sources 
8

Total Direct Receipts & Other Sources 
8

Total Direct Receipts, Other Sources, & Other Receipts

Total Direct Disbursements & Other Uses 
9

Total Other Disbursements

ENDING CASH BALANCE ON HAND June 30, 2022 7 (Without Student Activity 

Funds)

Total Direct Disbursements & Other Uses 
9

Total Other Disbursements

Total ENDING CASH BALANCE ON HAND June 30, 2022 7 (With Student Activity 

Funds)

Total Direct Disbursements & Other Uses 
9

Activity funds ENDING CASH BALANCE ON HAND June 30, 2022 7

Total Direct Receipts & Other Sources 
8

Total Direct Receipts, Other Sources, & Other Receipts

Exhibit 3



Page 6 ESTIMATED RECEIPTS/REVENUES Page 6

1

2

3

4

5

6
7
8
9
10
11
12

13
14
15

16
17
18

19
20
21
22
23

24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40

41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55

A B C D E F G H I J K
(10) (20) (30) (40) (50) (60) (70) (80) (90)

Description:  Enter Whole Numbers Only

Acct      

#

Educational     Operations & 

Maintenance

Debt Service Transportation Municipal 

Retirement/ Social 

Security

Capital Projects Working Cash Tort Fire Prevention & 

Safety

RECEIPTS/REVENUES FROM LOCAL SOURCES (1000)

AD VALOREM TAXES LEVIED BY LOCAL EDUCATION AGENCY 1100

Designated Purposes Levies   11  (1110-1120)  8,440,800 1,367,000 5,145,305 662,000 161,000 99,000 186,000

Leasing Purposes Levy 12 
1130

Special Education Purposes Levy 1140 100,500

FICA and Medicare Only Levies 1150 305,000

Area Vocational Construction Purposes Levy 1160

Summer School Purposes Levy 1170

Other Tax Levies (Describe & Itemize) 1190 22,778

Total Ad Valorem Taxes Levied by District 8,541,300 1,367,000 5,145,305 662,000 488,778 0 99,000 186,000 0

PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF TAXES 1200

Mobile Home Privilege Tax 1210

Payments from Local Housing Authority 1220

Corporate Personal Property Replacement Taxes13
1230 100,000 50,000

Other Payments in Lieu of Taxes (Describe & Itemize) 1290

Total Payments in Lieu of Taxes 100,000 0 0 0 50,000 0 0 0 0

TUITION 1300

Regular Tuition from Pupils or Parents (In State) 1311 55,000

Regular Tuition from Other Districts (In State) 1312

Regular Tuition from Other Sources (In State) 1313

Regular Tuition from Other Sources (Out of State) 1314

Summer School Tuition from Pupils or Parents (In State) 1321

Summer School Tuition from Other Districts (In State) 1322

Summer School Tuition from Other Sources (In State) 1323

Summer School Tuition from Other Sources (Out of State) 1324

CTE Tuition from Pupils or Parents (In State) 1331

CTE Tuition from Other Districts (In State) 1332

CTE Tuition from Other Sources (In State) 1333

CTE Tuition from Other Sources (Out of State) 1334

Special Education Tuition from Pupils or Parents (In State) 1341

Special Education Tuition from Other Districts (In State) 1342

Special Education Tuition from Other Sources (In State) 1343

Special Education Tuition from Other Sources (Out of State) 1344

Adult Tuition from Pupils or Parents (In State) 1351

Adult Tuition from Other Districts (In State) 1352

Adult Tuition from Other Sources (In State) 1353

Adult Tuition from Other Sources (Out of State) 1354

Total Tuition 55,000

TRANSPORTATION FEES 1400

Regular Transportation Fees from Pupils or Parents (In State) 1411 6,500
Regular Transportation Fees from Other Districts (In State) 1412 5,000
Regular Transportation Fees from Other Sources (In State) 1413 10,000
Regular Transportation Fees from Co-curricular Activities (In State) 1415 2,000
Regular Transportation Fees from Other Sources (Out of State) 1416

Summer School Transportation Fees from Pupils or Parents (In State) 1421

Summer School Transportation Fees from Other Districts (In State) 1422

Summer School Transportation Fees from Other Sources (In State) 1423

Summer School Transportation Fees from Other Sources (Out of State) 1424

CTE Transportation Fees from Pupils or Parents (In State) 1431

CTE Transportation Fees from Other Districts (In State) 1432

CTE Transportation Fees from Other Sources (In State) 1433

CTE Transportation Fees from Other Sources (Out of State) 1434

Special Education Transportation Fees from Pupils or Parents (In State) 1441

C:\Users\bobgold\Desktop\21-22 Budget Form 9-8-21 9/8/2021

Exhibit 3



Page 7 ESTIMATED RECEIPTS/REVENUES Page 7

1

2

A B C D E F G H I J K
(10) (20) (30) (40) (50) (60) (70) (80) (90)

Description:  Enter Whole Numbers Only

Acct      

#

Educational     Operations & 

Maintenance

Debt Service Transportation Municipal 

Retirement/ Social 

Security

Capital Projects Working Cash Tort Fire Prevention & 

Safety

56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63

64
65
66
67

68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75

76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83

84

85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94
95

96
97
98
99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109

Special Education Transportation Fees from Other Districts (In State) 1442

Special Education Transportation Fees from Other Sources (In State) 1443

Special Education Transportation Fees from Other Sources (Out of State) 1444

Adult Transportation Fees from Pupils or Parents (In State) 1451

Adult Transportation Fees from Other Districts (In State) 1452

Adult Transportation Fees from Other Sources (In State) 1453

Adult Transportation Fees from Other Sources (Out of State) 1454

Total Transportation Fees 23,500

EARNINGS ON INVESTMENTS 1500

Interest on Investments 1510 3,000 1,000 2,000 150 200 500 1,000
Gain or Loss on Sale of Investments 1520

Total Earnings on Investments 3,000 1,000 2,000 150 200 500 1,000 0 0

FOOD SERVICE 1600

Sales to Pupils - Lunch 1611 5,000
Sales to Pupils - Breakfast 1612

Sales to Pupils - A la Carte 1613

Sales to Pupils - Other (Describe & Itemize) 1614

Sales to Adults 1620 2,000

Other Food Service (Describe & Itemize) 1690 36,000

Total Food Service 43,000

DISTRICT/SCHOOL ACTIVITY INCOME 1700

Admissions - Athletic 1711 2,000
Admissions - Other 1719

Fees 1720 85,000
Book Store Sales 1730 13,420
Other District/School Activity Revenue (Describe & Itemize) 1790 50
Student Activity Fund Revenues 1799

Total District/School Activity Income (without Student Activity Funds 1799) 100,470 0

Total District/School Activity Income (with Student Activity Funds 1799) 100,470

TEXTBOOK INCOME 1800

Rentals - Regular Textbooks 1811 165,000
Rentals - Summer School Textbooks 1812

Rentals - Adult/Continuing Education Textbooks 1813

Rentals - Other (Describe) 1819

Sales - Regular Textbooks 1821

Sales - Summer School Textbooks 1822

Sales - Adult/Continuing Education Textbooks 1823

Sales - Other (Describe & Itemize) 1829

Other (Describe & Itemize) 1890

Total Textbooks 165,000

OTHER REVENUE FROM LOCAL SOURCES 1900

Rentals 1910 15,000
Contributions and Donations from Private Sources 1920 8,000
Impact Fees from Municipal or County Governments 1930 100,000
Services Provided Other Districts 1940

Refund of Prior Years' Expenditures 1950

Payments of Surplus Moneys from TIF Districts 1960

Drivers' Education Fees 1970

Proceeds from Vendors' Contracts 1980 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

School Facility Occupation Tax Proceeds 1983

Payment from Other Districts 1991

Sale of Vocational Projects 1992

Other Local Fees (Describe & Itemize) 1993

Other Local Revenues (Describe & Itemize) 1999 13,000

C:\Users\bobgold\Desktop\21-22 Budget Form 9-8-21 9/8/2021

Exhibit 3



Page 8 ESTIMATED RECEIPTS/REVENUES Page 8

1

2

A B C D E F G H I J K
(10) (20) (30) (40) (50) (60) (70) (80) (90)

Description:  Enter Whole Numbers Only

Acct      

#

Educational     Operations & 

Maintenance

Debt Service Transportation Municipal 

Retirement/ Social 

Security

Capital Projects Working Cash Tort Fire Prevention & 

Safety

110

111

112

113
114
115
116

117

118

119
120
121
122

123
124

125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134

135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143

144
145
146
147

148

149

150

151

152

153
154
155
156
157

Total Other Revenue from Local Sources 21,000 15,000 0 0 0 100,000 0 0 0

Total Receipts/Revenues from Local Sources (without Student Activity Funds 

1799)
1000

9,028,770 1,383,000 5,147,305 685,650 538,978 100,500 100,000 186,000 0

Total Receipts/Revenues from Local Sources (with Student Activity Funds 1799)
9,028,770

FLOW-THROUGH RECEIPTS/REVENUES FROM ONE                                               

DISTRICT TO ANOTHER DISTRICT (2000)

Flow-Through Revenue from State Sources 2100

Flow-Through Revenue from Federal Sources 2200

Other Flow-Through Revenue (Describe & Itemize) 2300

Total Flow-Through Receipts/Revenues From                                                         

One District to Another District
2000

0 0 0 0

RECEIPTS/REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES (3000)

UNRESTRICTED GRANTS-IN-AID (3001-3099)

Evidence Based Funding Formula (Section 18-8.15) 3001 6,140,846

Reorganization Incentives (Accounts 3005-3021) 3005

Fast Growth District Grants 3030

Other Unrestricted Grants-In-Aid From State Sources (Describe & Itemize)
3099

Total Unrestricted Grants-In-Aid 6,140,846 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

RESTRICTED GRANTS-IN-AID (3100-3900)

SPECIAL EDUCATION
Special Education - Private Facility Tuition 3100 111,977
Special Education - Funding for Children Requiring Sp Ed Services 3105

Special Education - Personnel 3110

Special Education - Orphanage - Individual 3120 5,000

Special Education - Orphanage - Summer Individual 3130

Special Education - Summer School 3145

Special Education - Other (Describe & Itemize) 3199 4,000

Total Special Education 120,977 0 0

CAREER AND TECHNICAL EDUCATION (CTE)

CTE - Technical Education - Tech Prep 3200

CTE - Secondary Program Improvement (CTEI) 3220

CTE - WECEP 3225

CTE - Agriculture Education 3235

CTE - Instructor Practicum 3240

CTE - Student Organizations 3270

CTE - Other (Describe & Itemize) 3299

Total Career and Technical Education 0 0 0

BILINGUAL EDUCATION

Bilingual Education - Downstate - TPI and TBE 3305

Bilingual Education - Downstate - Transitional Bilingual Education 3310

Total Bilingual Education 0 0

State Free Lunch & Breakfast 3360 1,000

School Breakfast Initiative 3365

Driver Education 3370

Adult Education (from ICCB) 3410

Adult Education - Other (Describe & Itemize) 3499

TRANSPORTATION

Transportation - Regular and Vocational 3500 374,234

Transportation - Special Education 3510 405,626

Transportation - Other (Describe & Itemize) 3599

Total Transportation 0 0 779,860 0

C:\Users\bobgold\Desktop\21-22 Budget Form 9-8-21 9/8/2021

Exhibit 3



Page 9 ESTIMATED RECEIPTS/REVENUES Page 9

1

2

A B C D E F G H I J K
(10) (20) (30) (40) (50) (60) (70) (80) (90)

Description:  Enter Whole Numbers Only

Acct      

#

Educational     Operations & 

Maintenance

Debt Service Transportation Municipal 

Retirement/ Social 

Security

Capital Projects Working Cash Tort Fire Prevention & 

Safety

158

159

160

161

162

163

164

165

166

167

168

169

170

171

172

173

174
175

176

177

178
179
180
181

182
183

184

185
186
187
188
189
190

191
192
193
194
195
196
197
198
199
200

201
202
203
204
205

Learning Improvement - Change Grants 3610

Scientific Literacy 3660

Truant Alternative/Optional Education 3695

Early Childhood - Block Grant 3705

Chicago General Education Block Grant 3766

Chicago Educational Services Block Grant 3767

School Safety & Educational Improvement Block Grant 3775

Technology - Technology for Success 3780

State Charter Schools 3815

Extended Learning Opportunities - Summer Bridges 3825

Infrastructure Improvements - Planning/Construction 3920

School Infrastructure - Maintenance Projects 3925

Other Restricted Revenue from State Sources (Describe & Itemize) 3999 2,500

Total Restricted Grants-In-Aid 124,477 0 0 779,860 0 0 0 0 0

Total Receipts/Revenues from State Sources 3000 6,265,323 0 0 779,860 0 0 0 0 0

RECEIPTS/REVENUES FROM FEDERAL SOURCES (4000)

Federal Impact Aid 4001

Other Unrestricted Grants-In-Aid Received Directly from the Federal Govt. (Describe 

& Itemize)

4009

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Head Start 4045

Construction (Impact Aid) 4050

MAGNET 4060

Other Restricted Grants-In-Aid Received Directly from Federal Govt.                      

(Describe & Itemize)

4090

Total Restricted Grants-In-Aid Received Directly  from Federal Govt. 0 0 0 0 0 0

TITLE V

Title V - Flexibility and Accountability 4100

Title V - SEA Projects 4105

Title V - Rural Education Initiative (REI) 4107

Title V - Other (Describe & Itemize) 4199

Total Title V 0 0 0 0

FOOD SERVICE

Breakfast Start-Up Expansion 4200

National School Lunch Program 4210

Special Milk Program 4215

School Breakfast Program 4220

Summer Food Service Admin/Program 4225 450,000
Child and Adult Care Food Program 4226

Fresh Fruit and Vegetables 4240

Food Service - Other (Describe & Itemize) 4299

Total Food Service 450,000 0

TITLE I

Title I - Low Income 4300 218,961

Title I - Low Income - Neglected, Private 4305

Title I - Migrant Education 4340

Title I - Other (Describe & Itemize) 4399

UNRESTRICTED GRANTS-IN-AID RECEIVED DIRECTLY FROM FEDERAL GOVT. (4001-

4009)

Total Unrestricted Grants-In-Aid Received Directly from Fed Govt

RESTRICTED GRANTS-IN-AID RECEIVED DIRECTLY FROM FEDERAL GOVT                     

(4045-4090)

RESTRICTED GRANTS-IN-AID RECEIVED FROM FEDERAL                                                     

GOVT. THRU THE STATE  (4100-4999)

C:\Users\bobgold\Desktop\21-22 Budget Form 9-8-21 9/8/2021

Exhibit 3



Page 10 ESTIMATED RECEIPTS/REVENUES Page 10

1

2

A B C D E F G H I J K
(10) (20) (30) (40) (50) (60) (70) (80) (90)

Description:  Enter Whole Numbers Only

Acct      

#

Educational     Operations & 

Maintenance

Debt Service Transportation Municipal 

Retirement/ Social 

Security

Capital Projects Working Cash Tort Fire Prevention & 

Safety

206

207
208
209
210
211

212
213
214
215
216
217
218
219

220
221
222
223

224

225
226
227
228
229
230
231
232
233
234
235
236
237
238
239
240
241
242
243
244
245
246
247
248
249
250
251
252
253
254

255

256

257

258

259

Total Title I 218,961 0 0 0

TITLE IV

Title IV - Student Support & Academic Enrichment Grant 4400

Title IV - 21st Century 4421

Title IV - Other (Describe & Itemize) 4499

Total Title IV 0 0 0 0

FEDERAL - SPECIAL EDUCATION

Federal Special Education - Preschool Flow-Through 4600 4,663

Federal Special Education - Preschool Discretionary 4605

Federal Special Education - IDEA Flow Through 4620 285,335

Federal Special Education - IDEA Room & Board 4625

Federal Special Education - IDEA Discretionary 4630

Federal Special Education - IDEA - Other (Describe & Itemize) 4699

Total Federal Special Education 289,998 0 0 0

CTE - PERKINS

CTE - Perkins-Title IIIE Tech Prep 4770

CTE - Other (Describe & Itemize) 4799

Total CTE - Perkins 0 0 0

Federal - Adult Education 4810

ARRA - General State Aid - Education Stabilization 4850

ARRA - Title I - Low Income 4851

ARRA - Title I - Neglected, Private 4852

ARRA - Title I - Delinquent, Private 4853

ARRA - Title I - School Improvement (Part A) 4854

ARRA - Title I - School Improvement (Section 1003g) 4855

ARRA - IDEA - Part B - Preschool 4856

ARRA - IDEA - Part B - Flow-Through 4857

ARRA - Title IID - Technology - Formula 4860

ARRA - Title IID - Technology - Competitive 4861

ARRA - McKinney - Vento Homeless Education 4862

ARRA - Child Nutrition Equipment Assistance 4863

Impact Aid Formula Grants 4864

Impact Aid Competitive Grants 4865

Qualified Zone Academy Bond Tax Credits 4866

Qualified School Construction Bond Credits 4867

Build America Bond Tax Credits 4868

Build America Bond Interest Reimbursement 4869

ARRA - General State Aid - Other Government Services Stabilization 4870

Other ARRA Funds - II 4871

Other ARRA Funds - III 4872

Other ARRA Funds - IV 4873

Other ARRA Funds - V 4874

ARRA - Early Childhood 4875

Other ARRA Funds - VII 4876

Other ARRA Funds - VIII 4877

Other ARRA Funds - IX 4878

Other ARRA Funds - X 4879

Other ARRA Funds - Ed Job Fund Program 4880

Total Stimulus Programs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

    Race to the Top Program 4901

Race to the Top - Preschool Expansion Grant 4902

Title III - Instruction for English Learners & Immigrant Students 4905

Title III - English Language Acquistion 4909 24,800

McKinney Education for Homeless Children 4920

C:\Users\bobgold\Desktop\21-22 Budget Form 9-8-21 9/8/2021

Exhibit 3



Page 11 ESTIMATED RECEIPTS/REVENUES Page 11

1

2

A B C D E F G H I J K
(10) (20) (30) (40) (50) (60) (70) (80) (90)

Description:  Enter Whole Numbers Only

Acct      

#

Educational     Operations & 

Maintenance

Debt Service Transportation Municipal 

Retirement/ Social 

Security

Capital Projects Working Cash Tort Fire Prevention & 

Safety

260

261

262

263

264

265

266

267

268

269

270

271

Title II - Eisenhower - Professional Development Formula 4930

Title II - Teacher Quality 4932

Federal Charter Schools 4960

State Assessment Grants 4981

Grant for State Assessments and Related Activities 4982

Medicaid Matching Funds - Administrative Outreach 4991 20,000

Medicaid Matching Funds - Fee-For-Service Program 4992 20,000

Other Restricted Grants Received from Federal Government through State (Describe 

& Itemize)
4998

1,053,131

Total Restricted Grants-In-Aid Received from Federal Govt. Thru the 

State 2,076,890 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL RECEIPTS/REVENUES FROM FEDERAL SOURCES 4000 2,076,890 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL DIRECT RECEIPTS/REVENUES (without Student Activity Funds 

1799) 17,370,983 1,383,000 5,147,305 1,465,510 538,978 100,500 100,000 186,000 0

TOTAL DIRECT RECEIPTS/REVENUES (with Student Activity Funds 

1799) 17,370,983

C:\Users\bobgold\Desktop\21-22 Budget Form 9-8-21 9/8/2021

Exhibit 3



Page 12 ESTIMATED DISBURSEMENTS/EXPENDITURES Page 12

1

2

3

4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33

34

35

36

37
38
39
40
41

42

43
44

45
46
47
48
49

50
51
52
53

54
55

56
57
58

A B C D E F G H I J K

(100) (200) (300) (400) (500) (600) (700) (800) (900)

Funct 

#
Salaries Employee Benefits

Purchased 

Services

Supplies & 

Materials
Capital Outlay Other Objects

Non-Capitalized 

Equipment

Termination 

Benefits
Total

10 - EDUCATIONAL FUND (ED)

INSTRUCTION (ED) 1000

Regular Programs 1100 6,842,900 743,115 10,450 725,252 0 2,200 0 0 8,323,917
Tuition Payment to Charter Schools 1115 0
Pre-K Programs 1125 0
Special Education Programs (Functions 1200 - 1220) 1200 1,774,378 181,535 1,000 116,293 2,073,206
Special Education Programs Pre-K 1225 205,350 26,070 8,000 239,420
Remedial and Supplemental Programs K-12 1250 70,000 5,000 342,393 35,000 519,000 971,393
Remedial and Supplemental Programs Pre-K 1275 0

Adult/Continuing Education Programs 1300 0
CTE Programs 1400 0

Interscholastic Programs 1500 172,320 3,435 10,350 45,800 10,025 241,930

Summer School Programs 1600 67,600 1,895 1,100 18,500 89,095
Gifted Programs 1650 0
Driver's Education Programs 1700 0
Bilingual Programs 1800 407,220 56,005 3,000 466,225
Truant Alternative & Optional Programs 1900 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Pre-K Programs - Private Tuition 1910 0
Regular K-12 Programs  Private Tuition 1911 0

Special Education Programs K-12 Private Tuition 1912 400,000 400,000
Special Education Programs Pre-K Tuition 1913 0

Remedial/Supplemental Programs K-12 Private Tuition 1914 0

Remedial/Supplemental Programs Pre-K Private Tuition 1915 0
Adult/Continuing Education Programs Private Tuition 1916 0
CTE Programs Private Tuition 1917 0
Interscholastic Programs Private Tuition 1918 0
Summer School Programs Private Tuition 1919 0
Gifted Programs Private Tuition 1920 0
Bilingual Programs Private Tuition 1921 0

Truants Alternative/Opt Ed Programs Private Tuition 1922 0
Student Activity Fund Expenditures 1999 0

Total Instruction
14

 (Without Student Activity Funds 1999) 1000 9,539,768 1,017,055 22,900 1,259,238 0 447,225 519,000 0 12,805,186

Total Instruction14 (With Student Activity Funds 1999) 1000 9,539,768 1,017,055 22,900 1,259,238 0 447,225 519,000 0 12,805,186

SUPPORT SERVICES (ED) 2000

Support Services - Pupil 2100

Attendance & Social Work Services 2110 332,285 29,180 361,465
Guidance Services 2120 0
Health Services 2130 111,000 7,845 192,800 6,400 318,045
Psychological Services 2140 164,500 3,000 128,000 295,500

Speech Pathology & Audiology Services 2150 279,385 27,925 15,500 1,000 1,200 3,500 328,510

Other Support Services - Pupils (Describe & Itemize) 2190 150,700 200 150,900

Total Support Services - Pupil 2100 1,037,870 68,150 336,300 7,400 0 1,200 3,500 0 1,454,420

Support Services - Instructional Staff 2200

Improvement of Instruction Services 2210 252,800 9,000 261,800
Educational Media Services 2220 87,500 15,470 500 17,500 600 121,570
Assessment & Testing 2230 53,000 1,000 54,000

Total Support Services - Instructional Staff 2200 87,500 15,470 306,300 27,500 0 600 0 0 437,370

Support Services - General Administration 2300

Board of Education Services 2310 172,800 14,300 39,000 226,100

Executive Administration Services 2320 312,000 80,815 1,900 8,000 3,000 405,715
Special Area Administration Services 2330 79,000 19,400 1,200 99,600

Tort Immunity Services
2360 - 

2370 0

Total Support Services - General Administration 2300 391,000 100,215 174,700 22,300 0 43,200 0 0 731,415

Support Services - School Administration 2400

Office of the Principal Services 2410 800,500 200,275 1,000 3,200 3,900 1,008,875
Other Support Services - School Administration (Describe & Itemize) 2490 0

Description:  Enter Whole Numbers Only

C:\Users\bobgold\Desktop\21-22 Budget Form 9-8-21 9/8/2021

Exhibit 3



Page 13 ESTIMATED DISBURSEMENTS/EXPENDITURES Page 13

1

2

A B C D E F G H I J K

(100) (200) (300) (400) (500) (600) (700) (800) (900)

Funct 

#
Salaries Employee Benefits

Purchased 

Services

Supplies & 

Materials
Capital Outlay Other Objects

Non-Capitalized 

Equipment

Termination 

Benefits
Total

Description:  Enter Whole Numbers Only

59

60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67

68
69
70
71
72
73
74

75
76

77

78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86

87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94

95
96
97
98
99
100
101
102

103
104

105

106
107
108
109
110
111
112

113
114

115

Total Support Services - School Administration 2400 800,500 200,275 1,000 3,200 0 3,900 0 0 1,008,875

Support Services - Business 2500

Direction of Business Support Services 2510 0
Fiscal Services 2520 244,000 16,200 21,000 3,800 1,000 286,000
Operation & Maintenance of Plant Services 2540 132,000 1,900 133,900
Pupil Transportation Services 2550 0
Food Services 2560 301,000 45,605 11,500 329,500 1,900 689,505
Internal Services 2570 0

Total Support Services - Business 2500 545,000 61,805 164,500 333,300 0 4,800 0 0 1,109,405

Support Services - Central 2600

Direction of Central Support Services 2610 405,000 121,200 1,000 6,000 533,200

Planning, Research, Development & Evaluation Services 2620 42,000 42,000
Information Services 2630 109,500 8,615 118,115
Staff Services 2640 0
Data Processing Services 2660 204,000 154,800 54,100 412,900

Total Support Services - Central 2600 514,500 129,815 247,000 160,800 0 54,100 0 0 1,106,215

Other Support Services (Describe & Itemize) 2900 0

Total Support Services 2000 3,376,370 575,730 1,229,800 554,500 0 107,800 3,500 0 5,847,700

COMMUNITY SERVICES (ED) 3000 3,800 300 1,359 500 5,959

PAYMENTS TO OTHER DIST & GOVT UNITS (ED) 4000

Payments to Other Dist & Govt Units (In-State) 4100
Payments for Regular Programs 4110 0
Payments for Special Education Programs 4120 3,000 3,000
Payments for Adult/Continuing Education Programs 4130 0
Payments for CTE Programs 4140 0

Payments for Community College Programs 4170 0
Other Payments to In-State Govt Units (Describe & Itemize) 4190 0

Total Payments to Other Dist & Govt Units (In-State) 4100 3,000 0 3,000

Payments for Regular Programs - Tuition 4210 0
Payments for Special Education Programs - Tuition 4220 600,000 600,000

Payments for Adult/Continuing Education Programs - Tuition 4230 0
Payments for CTE Programs - Tuition 4240 0
Payments for Community College Programs - Tuition 4270 0

Payments for Other Programs - Tuition 4280 0
Other Payments to In-State Govt Units (Describe & Itemize) 4290 0

Total Payments to Other Dist & Govt Units - Tuition (In State) 4200 600,000 600,000

Payments for Regular Programs - Transfers 4310 0
Payments for Special Education Programs - Transfers 4320 0

Payments for Adult/Continuing Ed Programs - Transfers 4330 0
Payments for CTE Programs - Transfers 4340 0

Payments for Community College Program - Transfers 4370 0

Payments for Other Programs - Transfers 4380 0
Other Payments to In-State Govt Units - Transfers (Describe & Itemize) 4390 0

Total Payments to Other Dist & Govt Units-Transfers (In State) 4300 0 0 0

Payments to Other Dist & Govt Units (Out of State) 4400 0

Total Payments to Other Dist & Govt Units 4000 3,000 600,000 603,000

DEBT SERVICE (ED) 5000

Debt Service - Interest on Short-Term Debt 5100

Tax Anticipation Warrants 5110 0

Tax Anticipation Notes 5120 0
Corporate Personal Property Repl Tax Anticipated Notes 5130 0
State Aid Anticipation Certificates 5140 0

Other Interest on Short-Term Debt (Describe & Itemize) 5150 0
Total Debt Service - Interest on Short-Term Debt 5100 0 0

Debt Service - Interest on Long-Term Debt 5200 0

Total Debt Service 5000 0 0

PROVISION FOR CONTINGENCIES (ED) 6000 0

C:\Users\bobgold\Desktop\21-22 Budget Form 9-8-21 9/8/2021

Exhibit 3



Page 14 ESTIMATED DISBURSEMENTS/EXPENDITURES Page 14

1

2

A B C D E F G H I J K

(100) (200) (300) (400) (500) (600) (700) (800) (900)

Funct 

#
Salaries Employee Benefits

Purchased 

Services

Supplies & 

Materials
Capital Outlay Other Objects

Non-Capitalized 

Equipment

Termination 

Benefits
Total

Description:  Enter Whole Numbers Only

116

117

118

119
120

121

122

123
124

125
126

127

128

129

130
131

132
133

134

135

136
137
138
139
140
141

142

143

144

145
146
147
148
149
150
151

152
153

154
155

156
157

158

159

160
161
162
163
164

165

166
167

Total Direct Disbursements/Expenditures (without Student Activity Funds (1999) 12,919,938 1,593,085 1,257,059 1,814,238 0 1,155,025 522,500 0 19,261,845

Total Direct Disbursements/Expenditures (with Student Activity Funds (1999) 12,919,938 1,593,085 1,257,059 1,814,238 0 1,155,025 522,500 0 19,261,845

Excess (Deficiency) of Receipts/Revenues Over Disbursements/Expenditures (Without 

Student Activity Funds 1999) (1,890,862)

Excess (Deficiency) of Receipts/Revenues Over Disbursements/Expenditures (With 

Student Activity Funds 1999) (1,890,862)

20 - OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE FUND (O&M)

SUPPORT SERVICES (O&M) 2000

Support Services - Pupil 2100

Other Support Services - Pupils (Describe & Itemize) 2190 0

Support Services - Business 2500

Direction of Business Support Services 2510 0

Facilities Acquisition & Construction Services 2530 0

Operation & Maintenance of Plant Services 2540 375,000 30,560 644,700 484,300 1,534,560

Pupil Transportation Services 2550 0

Food Services 2560 0
Total Support Services - Business 2500 375,000 30,560 644,700 484,300 0 0 0 0 1,534,560

Other Support Services  (Describe & Itemize) 2900 0
Total Support Services 2000 375,000 30,560 644,700 484,300 0 0 0 0 1,534,560

COMMUNITY SERVICES (O&M) 3000 0

PAYMENTS TO OTHER DIST & GOVT UNITS (O&M) 4000

Payments to Other Dist & Govt Units (In-State) 4100

Payments for Regular Programs 4110 0
Payments for Special Education Programs 4120 70,000 70,000
Payments for CTE Program 4140 0
Other Payments to In-State Govt Units (Describe & Itemize) 4190 0

Total Payments to Other Dist & Govt Units (In-State) 4100 70,000 0 70,000

Payments to Other Dist & Govt Units (Out of State) 
14 4400 0

Total Payments to Other Dist & Govt Unit 4000 70,000 0 70,000

DEBT SERVICE (O&M) 5000

Debt Service - Interest on Short-Term Debt 5100

Tax Anticipation Warrants 5110 0

Tax Anticipation Notes 5120 0
Corporate Personal Prop Repl Tax Anticipated Notes 5130 0
State Aid Anticipation Certificates 5140 0
Other Interest on Short-Term Debt (Describe & Itemize) 5150 0

Total Debt Service - Interest on Short-Term Debt 5100 0 0

Debt Service - Interest on Long-Term Debt 5200 0

Total Debt Service 5000 0 0

PROVISION FOR CONTINGENCIES (O&M) 6000 0

Total Direct Disbursements/Expenditures 375,000 30,560 714,700 484,300 0 0 0 0 1,604,560

Excess (Deficiency) of Receipts/Revenues Over Disbursements/Expenditures (221,560)

30 - DEBT SERVICE FUND (DS)

PAYMENTS TO OTHER DIST & GOVT UNITS (DS) 4000

Payments to Other Dist & Govt Units (In-State) 4100

Payments for Regular Programs 4110 0
Payments for Special Education Programs 4120 0

Other Payments to In-State Govt Units (Describe & Itemize) 4190 0

Total Payments to Other Dist & Govt Units (In-State) 4000 0 0

DEBT SERVICE (DS) 5000

Debt Service - Interest on Short-Term Debt 5100

Tax Anticipation Warrants 5110 0

C:\Users\bobgold\Desktop\21-22 Budget Form 9-8-21 9/8/2021

Exhibit 3



Page 15 ESTIMATED DISBURSEMENTS/EXPENDITURES Page 15

1

2

A B C D E F G H I J K

(100) (200) (300) (400) (500) (600) (700) (800) (900)

Funct 

#
Salaries Employee Benefits

Purchased 

Services

Supplies & 

Materials
Capital Outlay Other Objects

Non-Capitalized 

Equipment

Termination 

Benefits
Total

Description:  Enter Whole Numbers Only

168
169
170
171
172

173

174

175
176

177
178

179
180

181

182

183
184

185
186
187
188

189

190
191
192
193
194
195
196
197
198

199

200

201

202
203
204
205
206
207
208

209

210

211
212

213
214

215
216

217

218

Tax Anticipation Notes 5120 0
Corporate Personal Prop Repl Tax Anticipation Notes 5130 0

State Aid Anticipation Certificates 5140 0
Other Interest on Short-Term Debt (Describe & Itemize) 5150 0

Total Debt Service - Interest On Short-Term Debt 5100 0 0

Debt Service - Interest on Long-Term Debt 5200 169,860 169,860

Debt Service - Payments of Principal on Long-Term Debt 
15                                                         

(Lease/Purchase Principal Retired)  
5300

4,935,791 4,935,791

Debt Service Other (Describe & Itemize) 5400 1,000 1,000

Total Debt Service 5000 1,000 5,105,651 5,106,651

PROVISION FOR CONTINGENCIES (DS) 6000 0

Total Direct Disbursements/Expenditures 1,000 5,105,651 5,106,651

40,654

40 - TRANSPORTATION FUND (TR)

SUPPORT SERVICES (TR) 2000

Support Services - Pupils 2100

Other Support Services - Pupils (Describe & Itemize) 2190 0

Support Services - Business

Pupil Transportation Services 2550 826,500 30,825 136,600 111,400 351,200 1,456,525
Other Support Services (Describe & Itemize) 2900 0

Total Support Services 2000 826,500 30,825 136,600 111,400 0 351,200 0 0 1,456,525

COMMUNITY SERVICES (TR) 3000 0

PAYMENTS TO OTHER DIST & GOVT UNITS (TR) 4000

Payments to Other Dist & Govt Units (In-State) 4100
Payments for Regular Program 4110 0
Payments for Special Education Programs 4120 0
Payments for Adult/Continuing Education Programs 4130 0
Payments for CTE Programs 4140 0

Payments for Community College Programs 4170 0
Other Payments to In-State Govt Units (Describe & Itemize) 4190 0

Total Payments to Other Dist & Govt Units (In-State) 4100 0 0 0

Payments to Other Dist & Govt Units (Out-of-State)                                    

(Describe & Itemize)
4400

0

Total Payments to Other Dist & Govt Units 4000 0 0 0

DEBT SERVICE (TR) 5000

Debt Service - Interest on Short-Term Debt 5100

Tax Anticipation Warrants 5110 0

Tax Anticipation Notes 5120 0
Corporate Personal Prop Repl Tax Anticipation Notes 5130 0
State Aid Anticipation Certificates 5140 0
Other Interest on Short-Term Debt (Describe and Itemize) 5150 0

Total Debt Service - Interest On Short-Term Debt 5100 0 0

Debt Service - Interest on Long-Term Debt 5200 0

Debt Service - Payments of Principal on Long-Term Debt 15 (Lease/Purchase 

Principal Retired)

5300

0

Debt Service - Other (Describe and Itemize) 5400 0

Total Debt Service 5000 0 0

PROVISION FOR CONTINGENCIES (TR) 6000 0
826,500 30,825 136,600 111,400 0 351,200 0 0 1,456,525

Excess (Deficiency) of Receipts/Revenues Over Disbursements/Expenditures 8,985

50 - MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT/SOC SEC FUND (MR/SS)

INSTRUCTION (MR/SS) 1000

Total Direct Disbursements/Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Receipts/Revenues Over Disbursements/Expenditures

C:\Users\bobgold\Desktop\21-22 Budget Form 9-8-21 9/8/2021

Exhibit 3



Page 16 ESTIMATED DISBURSEMENTS/EXPENDITURES Page 16

1

2

A B C D E F G H I J K

(100) (200) (300) (400) (500) (600) (700) (800) (900)

Funct 

#
Salaries Employee Benefits

Purchased 

Services

Supplies & 

Materials
Capital Outlay Other Objects

Non-Capitalized 

Equipment

Termination 

Benefits
Total

Description:  Enter Whole Numbers Only

219
220
221
222
223
224
225
226
227
228
229
230
231
232
233

234

235
236
237
238
239
240
241
242

243
244
245
246
247

248
249
250
251
252
253
254
255
256
257
258
259
260
261

262
263
264
265

266
267
268
269
270
271
272
273
274

275

Regular Program 1100 103,355 103,355
Pre-K Programs 1125 0

Special Education Programs (Functions 1200-1220) 1200 105,375 105,375
Special Education Programs Pre-K 1225 2,400 2,400
Remedial and Supplemental Programs K-12 1250 2,700 2,700
Remedial and Supplemental Programs Pre-K 1275 0
Adult/Continuing Education Programs 1300 0
CTE Programs 1400 0
Interscholastic Programs 1500 4,845 4,845

Summer School Programs 1600 1,860 1,860
Gifted Programs 1650 0
Driver's Education Programs 1700 0

Bilingual Programs 1800 5,430 5,430
Truant Alternative & Optional Programs 1900 0

Total Instruction 1000 225,965 225,965

SUPPORT SERVICES (MR/SS) 2000

Support Services - Pupil 2100

Attendance & Social Work Services 2110 5,100 5,100
Guidance Services 2120 0
Health Services 2130 12,590 12,590
Psychological Services 2140 2,700 2,700

Speech Pathology & Audiology Services 2150 4,075 4,075

Other Support Services - Pupils (Describe & Itemize) 2190 11,440 11,440
Total Support Services - Pupil 2100 35,905 35,905

Support Services - Instructional Staff 2200

Improvement of Instruction Services 2210 10 10
Educational Media Services 2220 13,050 13,050
Assessment & Testing 2230 0

Total Support Services - Instructional Staff 2200 13,060 13,060

Support Services - General Administration 2300

Board of Education Services 2310 700 700
Executive Administration Services 2320 4,800 4,800
Special Area Administrative Services 2330 2,800 2,800
Claims Paid from Self Insurance Fund 2361 0

Workers' Compensation or Workers' Occupation Disease Acts Payments 2362 0
Unemployment Insurance Payments 2363 0
Insurance Payments (regular or self-insurance) 2364 0
Risk Management and Claims Services Payments 2365 0
Judgment and Settlements 2366 0
Educatl, Inspectl, Supervisory Serv. Related to Loss Prevention or Reduction 2367 0

Reciprocal Insurance Payments 2368 0
Legal Service 2369 0

Total Support Services - General Administration 2300 8,300 8,300

Support Services - School Administration 2400

Office of the Principal Services 2410 42,570 42,570
Other Support Services - School Administration (Describe & Itemize) 2490 0

Total Support Services - School Administration 2400 42,570 42,570

Support Services - Business 2500

Direction of Business Support Services 2510 0

Fiscal Services 2520 34,900 34,900
Facilities Acquisition & Construction Services 2530 0
Operation & Maintenance of Plant Service 2540 41,800 41,800

Pupil Transportation Services 2550 128,350 128,350

Food Services 2560 44,650 44,650
Internal Services 2570 0

Total Support Services - Business 2500 249,700 249,700

Support Services - Central 2600

C:\Users\bobgold\Desktop\21-22 Budget Form 9-8-21 9/8/2021

Exhibit 3



Page 17 ESTIMATED DISBURSEMENTS/EXPENDITURES Page 17

1

2

A B C D E F G H I J K

(100) (200) (300) (400) (500) (600) (700) (800) (900)

Funct 

#
Salaries Employee Benefits

Purchased 

Services

Supplies & 

Materials
Capital Outlay Other Objects

Non-Capitalized 

Equipment

Termination 

Benefits
Total

Description:  Enter Whole Numbers Only

276
277
278
279
280
281

282
283

284

285
286
287
288
289

290

291
292
293
294
295
296
297

298
299

300
301

302

303

304
305
306
307

308

309
310
311
312
313
314

315
316

317
318

319320

321

322

323
324
325
326
327
328
329
330
331

Direction of Central Support Services 2610 6,600 6,600
Planning, Research, Development & Evaluation Services 2620 0

Information Services 2630 12,350 12,350
Staff Services 2640 0
Data Processing Services 2660 0

Total Support Services - Central 2600 18,950 18,950

Other Support Services (Describe & Itemize) 2900 0
Total Support Services 2000 368,485 368,485

COMMUNITY SERVICES (MR/SS) 3000 50 50

PAYMENTS TO OTHER DIST & GOVT UNITS (MR/SS) 4000

Payments for Regular Programs 4110 0

Payments for Special Education Programs 4120 24,000 24,000

Payments for CTE Programs 4140 0

Total Payments to Other Dist & Govt Units 4000 24,000 24,000

DEBT SERVICE (MR/SS) 5000

Debt Service - Interest on Short-Term Debt 5100

Tax Anticipation Warrants 5110 0
Tax Anticipation Notes 5120 0
Corporate Personal Prop Repl Tax Anticipation Notes 5130 0

State Aid Anticipation Certificates 5140 0

Other (Describe & Itemize) 5150 0
Total Debt Service 5000 0 0

PROVISION FOR CONTINGENCIES (MR/SS) 6000 0

618,500 0 618,500

(79,522)

60 - CAPITAL PROJECTS (CP)

SUPPORT SERVICES (CP) 2000

Support Services - Business

Facilities Acquisition & Construction Services 2530 10,000 241,348 16,000 267,348

Other Support Services (Describe & Itemize) 2900 0
Total Support Services 2000 0 0 10,000 0 241,348 0 16,000 267,348

PAYMENTS TO OTHER DIST & GOVT UNITS (CP) 4000

Payments to Other Dist & Govt Units (In-State) 4100

Payments to Regular Programs 4110 0
Payment for Special Education Programs 4120 0
Payment for CTE Programs 4140 0

Payments to Other Govt Units (In-State) (Describe & Itemize) 4190 0

Total Payments to Other Districts & Govt Units 4000 0 0 0

PROVISION FOR CONTINGENCIES (CP) 6000 0

Total Direct Disbursements/Expenditures 0 0 10,000 0 241,348 0 16,000 267,348

Excess (Deficiency) of Receipts/Revenues Over Disbursements/Expenditures (166,848)

70 WORKING CASH FUND (WC)

80 - TORT FUND (TF)

INSTRUCTION (TF) 1000

Regular Programs 1100 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Tuition Payment to Charter Schools 1115 0
Pre-K Programs 1125 0

Special Education Programs (Functions 1200 - 1220) 1200 0

Special Education Programs Pre-K 1225 0

Remedial and Supplemental Programs K-12 1250 0

Remedial and Supplemental Programs Pre-K 1275 0
Adult/Continuing Education Programs 1300 0

CTE Programs 1400 0

Total Direct Disbursements/Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Receipts/Revenues Over Disbursements/Expenditures

C:\Users\bobgold\Desktop\21-22 Budget Form 9-8-21 9/8/2021

Exhibit 3



Page 18 ESTIMATED DISBURSEMENTS/EXPENDITURES Page 18

1

2

A B C D E F G H I J K

(100) (200) (300) (400) (500) (600) (700) (800) (900)

Funct 

#
Salaries Employee Benefits

Purchased 

Services

Supplies & 

Materials
Capital Outlay Other Objects

Non-Capitalized 

Equipment

Termination 

Benefits
Total

Description:  Enter Whole Numbers Only

332
333
334
335

336
337
338
339

340

341
342
343
344
345

346
347
348

349

350

351

352
353
354

355
356

357
358
359
360

361

362

363
364
365

366
367
368
369
370
371
372

373
374
375
376

377
378
379
380
381
382
383
384

385
386
387

Interscholastic Programs 1500 0
Summer School Programs 1600 0

Gifted Programs 1650 0
Driver's Education Programs 1700 0

Bilingual Programs 1800 0
Truant Alternative & Optional Programs 1900 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Pre-K Programs - Private Tuition 1910 0
Regular K-12 Programs  Private Tuition 1911 0

Special Education Programs K-12 Private Tuition 1912 0

Special Education Programs Pre-K Tuition 1913 0
Remedial/Supplemental Programs K-12 Private Tuition 1914 0

Remedial/Supplemental Programs Pre-K Private Tuition 1915 0

Adult/Continuing Education Programs Private Tuition 1916 0
CTE Programs Private Tuition 1917 0

Interscholastic Programs Private Tuition 1918 0
Summer School Programs Private Tuition 1919 0
Gifted Programs Private Tuition 1920 0

Bilingual Programs Private Tuition 1921 0

Truants Alternative/Opt Ed Programs Private Tuition 1922 0

Total Instruction
14 1000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

SUPPORT SERVICES (TF) 2000

Support Services - Pupil 2100
Attendance & Social Work Services 2110 0

Guidance Services 2120 0
Health Services 2130 0

Psychological Services 2140 0
Speech Pathology & Audiology Services 2150 0

Other Support Services - Pupils (Describe & Itemize) 2190 0

Total Support Services - Pupil 2100 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Support Services - Instructional Staff 2200

Improvement of Instruction Services 2210 0

Educational Media Services 2220 0
Assessment & Testing 2230 0

Total Support Services - Instructional Staff 2200 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Support Services - General Administration 2300

Board of Education Services 2310 0
Executive Administration Services 2320 0
Special Area Administration Services 2330 0
Claims Paid from Self Insurance Fund 2361 0
Risk Management and Claims Services Payments 2365 195,936 195,936

Total Support Services - General Administration 2300 0 0 195,936 0 0 0 0 0 195,936

Support Services - School Administration 2400

Office of the Principal Services 2410 0
Other Support Services - School Administration (Describe & Itemize) 2490 0

Total Support Services - School Administration 2400 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Support Services - Business 2500
Direction of Business Support Services 2510 0
Fiscal Services 2520 0

Operation & Maintenance of Plant Services 2540 0
Pupil Transportation Services 2550 0
Food Services 2560 0

Internal Services 2570 0

Total Support Services - Business 2500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Support Services - Central 2600

Direction of Central Support Services 2610 0

Planning, Research, Development & Evaluation Services 2620 0

C:\Users\bobgold\Desktop\21-22 Budget Form 9-8-21 9/8/2021

Exhibit 3



Page 19 ESTIMATED DISBURSEMENTS/EXPENDITURES Page 19

1

2

A B C D E F G H I J K

(100) (200) (300) (400) (500) (600) (700) (800) (900)

Funct 

#
Salaries Employee Benefits

Purchased 

Services

Supplies & 

Materials
Capital Outlay Other Objects

Non-Capitalized 

Equipment

Termination 

Benefits
Total

Description:  Enter Whole Numbers Only

388
389
390
391

392
393

394

395
396
397
398
399
400
401
402
403

404
405
406
407
408
409
410
411

412
413
414
415
416
417
418
419

420
421

422
423
424
425
426
427

428

429

430
431
432
433
434
435
436
437

438
439

440
441
442
443
444

445

Information Services 2630 0
Staff Services 2640 0

Data Processing Services 2660 0

Total Support Services - Central 2600 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Other Support Services (Describe & Itemize) 2900 0

Total Support Services 2000 0 0 195,936 0 0 0 0 0 195,936

COMMUNITY SERVICES (TF) 3000 0

PAYMENTS TO OTHER DIST & GOVT UNITS (TF) 4000

Payments to Other Dist & Govt Units (In-State) 4100
Payments for Regular Programs 4110 0
Payments for Special Education Programs 4120 0

Payments for Adult/Continuing Education Programs 4130 0
Payments for CTE Programs 4140 0
Payments for Community College Programs 4170 0
Other Payments to In-State Govt Units (Describe & Itemize) 4190 0

Total Payments to Other Dist & Govt Units (In-State) 4100 0 0 0

Payments for Regular Programs - Tuition 4210 0
Payments for Special Education Programs - Tuition 4220 0
Payments for Adult/Continuing Education Programs - Tuition 4230 0
Payments for CTE Programs - Tuition 4240 0

Payments for Community College Programs - Tuition 4270 0

Payments for Other Programs - Tuition 4280 0
Other Payments to In-State Govt Units (Describe & Itemize) 4290 0

Total Payments to Other Dist & Govt Units - Tuition (In State) 4200 0 0

Payments for Regular Programs - Transfers 4310 0
Payments for Special Education Programs - Transfers 4320 0
Payments for Adult/Continuing Ed Programs - Transfers 4330 0
Payments for CTE Programs - Transfers 4340 0

Payments for Community College Program - Transfers 4370 0
Payments for Other Programs - Transfers 4380 0
Other Payments to In-State Govt Units - Transfers (Describe & Itemize) 4390 0

Total Payments to Other Dist & Govt Units-Transfers (In State) 4300 0 0 0

Payments to Other Dist & Govt Units (Out of State) 4400 0

Total Payments to Other Dist & Govt Units 4000 0 0 0

DEBT SERVICE (TF) 5000

Debt Service - Interest on Short-Term Debt
Tax Anticipation Warrants 5110 0
Corporate Personal Property Replacement Tax Anticipation Notes 5130 0
Other Interest or Short-Term Debt (Describe & Itemize) 5150 0

Total Debt Service 5000 0 0

PROVISION FOR CONTINGENCIES (TF) 6000 0

0 0 195,936 0 0 0 0 0 195,936

(9,936)

90 - FIRE PREVENTION & SAFETY FUND (FP&S)

SUPPORT SERVICES (FP&S) 2000

Support Services - Business 2500
Facilities Acquisition & Construction Services 2530 0
Operation & Maintenance of Plant Service 2540 0

Total Support Services - Business 2500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Other Support Services (Describe & Itemize) 2900 0

Total Support Services 2000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

PAYMENTS TO OTHER DISTRICTS & GOVT UNITS (FP&S) 4000

Payments to Regular Programs 4110 0

Payments to Special Education Programs 4120 0
Other Payments to In-State Govt Units (Describe & Itemize) 4190 0

Total Payments to Other Districts & Govt Units (FPS) 4000 0 0

DEBT SERVICE (FP&S) 5000

Total Direct Disbursements/Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Receipts/Revenues Over Disbursements/Expenditures

C:\Users\bobgold\Desktop\21-22 Budget Form 9-8-21 9/8/2021

Exhibit 3



Page 20 ESTIMATED DISBURSEMENTS/EXPENDITURES Page 20

1

2

A B C D E F G H I J K

(100) (200) (300) (400) (500) (600) (700) (800) (900)

Funct 

#
Salaries Employee Benefits

Purchased 

Services

Supplies & 

Materials
Capital Outlay Other Objects

Non-Capitalized 

Equipment

Termination 

Benefits
Total

Description:  Enter Whole Numbers Only

446
447
448
449

450

451

452

453

454

455

Debt Service - Interest on Short-Term Debt 5100
Tax Anticipation Warrants 5110 0

Other Interest on Short-Term Debt (Describe & Itemize) 5150 0

Total Debt Service - Interest on Short-Term Debt 5100 0 0

Debt Service - Interest on Long-Term Debt 5200 0

Debt Service - Payments of Principal on Long-Term Debt 15    (Lease/Purchase 

Principal Retired)  

5300

0

Total Debt Service 5000 0 0

PROVISIONS FOR CONTINGENCIES (FP&S) 6000 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0Excess (Deficiency) of Receipts/Revenues Over Disbursements/Expenditures

Total Direct Disbursements/Expenditures

C:\Users\bobgold\Desktop\21-22 Budget Form 9-8-21 9/8/2021

Exhibit 3



Page 21 Page 21

     This page is provided for detailed itemizations as requested within the body of the Report.

1.
2.
3.
4.

C:\Users\bobgold\Desktop\21-22 Budget Form 9-8-21 9/8/2021

Exhibit 3



Page 22 Page 22

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

89

10

12

13

A B C D E F

Description EDUCATIONAL FUND (10)
OPERATIONS & 

MAINTENANCE FUND (20)

TRANSPORTATION FUND 

(40)

WORKING CASH FUND 

(70)
TOTAL

Direct Revenues 17,370,983 1,383,000 1,465,510 100,000 20,319,493

Direct Expenditures 19,261,845 1,604,560 1,456,525 22,322,930

Difference (1,890,862) (221,560) 8,985 100,000 (2,003,437)

Estimated Fund Balance - June 30, 2022 3,142,957 3,204,908 888,960 1,466,029 8,702,854

The deficit reduction plan, if required, is developed using ISBE guidelines and format. 

DEFICIT BUDGET SUMMARY INFORMATION - Operating Funds Only (School Districts Only)

Unbalanced budget, however, a deficit reduction plan is not required at this time.

A deficit reduction plan is required if the local board of education adopts (or amends) the 2021-22 school district budget in which the “operating funds” listed above 

result in direct revenues (line 9) being less than direct expenditures (line 19) by an amount equal to or greater than one-third (1/3) of the ending fund balance (line 81).

Note:  The balance is determined using only the four funds listed above.  That is, if the estimated ending fund balance is less than three times the deficit spending, the 

district must adopt and file with ISBE a deficit reduction plan to balance the shortfall within three years.

The School Code, Section 17-1 (105 ILCS 5/17-1) - If the 2020-2021 Annual Financial Report (AFR) reflects a deficit as defined above (page 36), then the school district 

shall adopt and submit a deficit reduction plan (found here on page 23-27) to ISBE within 30 days after acceptance of the AFR.

C:\Users\bobgold\Desktop\21-22 Budget Form 9-8-21 9/8/2021

Exhibit 3



Page 23 ILLINOIS STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION

School Business Services Division

Page 23

1
2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

A B C D E F G

*School Districts Only

34-04903-8002
District Number

Big Hollow School District 38
District Name

Educational Fund
Operations & 

Maintenance Fund
Transportation Fund Working Cash Fund Total

5,033,819 3,426,468 879,975 1,366,029 10,706,291

  RECEIPTS/REVENUES Acct  #

LOCAL SOURCES 1000 9,028,770 1,383,000 685,650 100,000 11,197,420

FLOW-THROUGH RECEIPTS/REVENUES FROM ONE DISTRICT TO 

ANOTHER DISTRICT
2000

0 0 0 0

STATE SOURCES 3000 6,265,323 0 779,860 0 7,045,183

FEDERAL SOURCES 4000 2,076,890 0 0 0 2,076,890

17,370,983 1,383,000 1,465,510 100,000 20,319,493

DISBURSEMENTS/EXPENDITURES Funct #

INSTRUCTION 1000 12,805,186 12,805,186

SUPPORT SERVICES 2000 5,847,700 1,534,560 1,456,525 8,838,785

COMMUNITY SERVICES 3000 5,959 0 0 5,959

PAYMENTS TO OTHER DISTRICTS & GOVT. UNITS 4000 603,000 70,000 0 673,000

DEBT SERVICES 5000 0 0 0 0

PROVISION FOR CONTINGENCIES 6000 0 0 0 0

19,261,845 1,604,560 1,456,525 22,322,930

(1,890,862) (221,560) 8,985 100,000 (2,003,437)

OTHER SOURCES/USES OF FUNDS

OTHER SOURCES OF FUNDS (7000) 0 0 0 0 0

OTHER USES OF FUNDS (8000) 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0

3,142,957 3,204,908 888,960 1,466,029 8,702,854

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES/USES OF FUNDS

ESTIMATED ENDING FUND BALANCE

Total Receipts/Revenues

Excess of Receipts/Revenue Over/(Under) Disbursements/Expenditures

Total Disbursements/Expenditures

ESTIMATED BEGINNING FUND BALANCE                                                             

(must equal prior Ending Fund Balance)

DEFICIT REDUCTION PLAN

FY2021-2022
ESTIMATED BUDGET

C:\Users\bobgold\Desktop\21-22 Budget Form 9-8-21 9/8/2021

Exhibit 3



Page 24 ILLINOIS STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION

School Business Services Division

Page 24

1
2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

A B

*School Districts Only

34-04903-8002
District Number

Big Hollow School District 38
District Name

  RECEIPTS/REVENUES Acct  #

LOCAL SOURCES 1000

FLOW-THROUGH RECEIPTS/REVENUES FROM ONE DISTRICT TO 

ANOTHER DISTRICT
2000

STATE SOURCES 3000

FEDERAL SOURCES 4000

DISBURSEMENTS/EXPENDITURES Funct #

INSTRUCTION 1000

SUPPORT SERVICES 2000

COMMUNITY SERVICES 3000

PAYMENTS TO OTHER DISTRICTS & GOVT. UNITS 4000

DEBT SERVICES 5000

PROVISION FOR CONTINGENCIES 6000

OTHER SOURCES/USES OF FUNDS

OTHER SOURCES OF FUNDS (7000)

OTHER USES OF FUNDS (8000)

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES/USES OF FUNDS

ESTIMATED ENDING FUND BALANCE

Total Receipts/Revenues

Excess of Receipts/Revenue Over/(Under) Disbursements/Expenditures

Total Disbursements/Expenditures

ESTIMATED BEGINNING FUND BALANCE                                                             

(must equal prior Ending Fund Balance)

H I J K L

Educational Fund
Operations & 

Maintenance Fund
Transportation Fund Working Cash Fund Total

3,142,957 3,204,908 888,960 1,466,029 8,702,854

0

0

0

0

0 0 0 0 0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0

0

0

0 0 0 0 0

3,142,957 3,204,908 888,960 1,466,029 8,702,854

FY2022-2023
ESTIMATED BUDGET

C:\Users\bobgold\Desktop\21-22 Budget Form 9-8-21 9/8/2021

Exhibit 3



Page 25 ILLINOIS STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION

School Business Services Division

Page 25

1
2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

A B

*School Districts Only

34-04903-8002
District Number

Big Hollow School District 38
District Name

  RECEIPTS/REVENUES Acct  #

LOCAL SOURCES 1000

FLOW-THROUGH RECEIPTS/REVENUES FROM ONE DISTRICT TO 

ANOTHER DISTRICT
2000

STATE SOURCES 3000

FEDERAL SOURCES 4000

DISBURSEMENTS/EXPENDITURES Funct #

INSTRUCTION 1000

SUPPORT SERVICES 2000

COMMUNITY SERVICES 3000

PAYMENTS TO OTHER DISTRICTS & GOVT. UNITS 4000

DEBT SERVICES 5000

PROVISION FOR CONTINGENCIES 6000

OTHER SOURCES/USES OF FUNDS

OTHER SOURCES OF FUNDS (7000)

OTHER USES OF FUNDS (8000)

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES/USES OF FUNDS

ESTIMATED ENDING FUND BALANCE

Total Receipts/Revenues

Excess of Receipts/Revenue Over/(Under) Disbursements/Expenditures

Total Disbursements/Expenditures

ESTIMATED BEGINNING FUND BALANCE                                                             

(must equal prior Ending Fund Balance)

M N O P Q

Educational Fund
Operations & 

Maintenance Fund

Transportation 

Fund
Working Cash Fund Total

3,142,957 3,204,908 888,960 1,466,029 8,702,854

0

0

0

0

0 0 0 0 0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0

0

0

0 0 0 0 0

3,142,957 3,204,908 888,960 1,466,029 8,702,854

FY2023-2024
ESTIMATED BUDGET

C:\Users\bobgold\Desktop\21-22 Budget Form 9-8-21 9/8/2021

Exhibit 3



Page 26 ILLINOIS STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION

School Business Services Division

Page 26

1
2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

A B

*School Districts Only

34-04903-8002
District Number

Big Hollow School District 38
District Name

  RECEIPTS/REVENUES Acct  #

LOCAL SOURCES 1000

FLOW-THROUGH RECEIPTS/REVENUES FROM ONE DISTRICT TO 

ANOTHER DISTRICT
2000

STATE SOURCES 3000

FEDERAL SOURCES 4000

DISBURSEMENTS/EXPENDITURES Funct #

INSTRUCTION 1000

SUPPORT SERVICES 2000

COMMUNITY SERVICES 3000

PAYMENTS TO OTHER DISTRICTS & GOVT. UNITS 4000

DEBT SERVICES 5000

PROVISION FOR CONTINGENCIES 6000

OTHER SOURCES/USES OF FUNDS

OTHER SOURCES OF FUNDS (7000)

OTHER USES OF FUNDS (8000)

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES/USES OF FUNDS

ESTIMATED ENDING FUND BALANCE

Total Receipts/Revenues

Excess of Receipts/Revenue Over/(Under) Disbursements/Expenditures

Total Disbursements/Expenditures

ESTIMATED BEGINNING FUND BALANCE                                                             

(must equal prior Ending Fund Balance)

R S T U V

Educational Fund
Operations & 

Maintenance Fund

Transportation 

Fund
Working Cash Fund Total

3,142,957 3,204,908 888,960 1,466,029 8,702,854

0

0

0

0

0 0 0 0 0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0

0

0

0 0 0 0 0

3,142,957 3,204,908 888,960 1,466,029 8,702,854

ESTIMATED BUDGET
FY2024-2025

C:\Users\bobgold\Desktop\21-22 Budget Form 9-8-21 9/8/2021

Exhibit 3



Page 27 ILLINOIS STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION

School Business Services Division

Page 27

1
2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

A B

*School Districts Only

34-04903-8002
District Number

Big Hollow School District 38
District Name

  RECEIPTS/REVENUES Acct  #

LOCAL SOURCES 1000

FLOW-THROUGH RECEIPTS/REVENUES FROM ONE DISTRICT TO 

ANOTHER DISTRICT
2000

STATE SOURCES 3000

FEDERAL SOURCES 4000

DISBURSEMENTS/EXPENDITURES Funct #

INSTRUCTION 1000

SUPPORT SERVICES 2000

COMMUNITY SERVICES 3000

PAYMENTS TO OTHER DISTRICTS & GOVT. UNITS 4000

DEBT SERVICES 5000

PROVISION FOR CONTINGENCIES 6000

OTHER SOURCES/USES OF FUNDS

OTHER SOURCES OF FUNDS (7000)

OTHER USES OF FUNDS (8000)

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES/USES OF FUNDS

ESTIMATED ENDING FUND BALANCE

Total Receipts/Revenues

Excess of Receipts/Revenue Over/(Under) Disbursements/Expenditures

Total Disbursements/Expenditures

ESTIMATED BEGINNING FUND BALANCE                                                             

(must equal prior Ending Fund Balance)

W X Y Z

(Enter as MM/DD/YY)

FY2021-2022 FY2022-2023 FY2023-2024 FY2024-2025

10,706,291 8,702,854 8,702,854 8,702,854

11,197,420 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

7,045,183 0 0 0

2,076,890 0 0 0

20,319,493 0 0 0

12,805,186 0 0 0

8,838,785 0 0 0

5,959 0 0 0

673,000 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

22,322,930 0 0 0

(2,003,437) 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

8,702,854 8,702,854 8,702,854 8,702,854

SUMMARY

Date of Adoption:

BUDGET ADDENDUM - DEFICIT REDUCTION PLAN
ESTIMATED BUDGET

C:\Users\bobgold\Desktop\21-22 Budget Form 9-8-21 9/8/2021

Exhibit 3



Page 28 Page 28

Deficit Reduction Plan-Background/Assumptions (School Districts Only) 

Fiscal Year 2021-2022 through Fiscal Year 2024-2025

Big Hollow School District 38              34-04903-8002

Please complete the following schedule and include a brief description to identify any areas of the budget that will be impacted from one year to the next.  If the 

deficit reduction plan relies upon new local revenues, identify contingencies for further budget reductions which will be enacted in the event those new revenues are 

not available.  

1. Background and Narrative of Budget Reductions:

2. Assumptions Used in the Deficit Reduction Plan:

- EBF and Estimated New Tier Funding:

- Equal Assessed Valuation and Tax Rates:

- Employee Salaries and Benefits:

- Short and Long Term Borrowing:

- Educational Impact:

C:\Users\bobgold\Desktop\21-22 Budget Form 9-8-21 9/8/2021

Exhibit 3



Page 29 Page 29

- Other Assumptions:

- Has the district considered shared services or outsourcing (Ex: Transportation, Insurance) If yes please explain:

C:\Users\bobgold\Desktop\21-22 Budget Form 9-8-21 9/8/2021

Exhibit 3



Page 30

This is an estimated Limitation of Administrative Costs Worksheet only and will not be accepted for Official Submission of the Limitation of Administrative Costs Worksheet.    

The official Limitation of Administrative Costs Worksheet is attached to the end of the Annual Financial Report (ISBE Form 50-35) and may be submitted in conjunction with that report.

An official Limitation of Administrative Costs Worksheet can also be found on the ISBE website at: Limitation of Administrative Costs

ESTIMATED LIMITATION OF ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS WORKSHEET School District Name:

RCDT Number:

Estimated Actual Expenditures, Fiscal Year 2021 Budgeted Expenditures, Fiscal Year 2022

(10) (20) (80) (10) (20) (80)

Funct. 

No.

Educational 

Fund

Operations & 

Maintenance 

Fund

Tort Fund Total
Educational 

Fund

Operations & 

Maintenance 

Fund

Tort Fund Total

1. Executive Administration Services 2320 381,443 381,443 405,715 0 405,715

2. Special Area Administration Services 2330 91,730 91,730 99,600 0 99,600

3. Other Support Services - School Administration 2490 0 0 0 0

4. Direction of Business Support Services 2510 0 0 0 0 0

5. Internal Services 2570 0 0 0 0

6. Direction of Central Support Services 2610 554,903 554,903 533,200 0 533,200

7.
0 0

8. Totals 1,028,076 0 0 1,028,076 1,038,515 0 0 1,038,515

9. 1%

ESTIMATED LIMITATION OF ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS (School Districts Only) 
(For Local Use Only)

The worksheet is intended for use during the budgeting process to estimate the district's percent increase of FY2022 budgeted expenditures over FY2021 actual expenditures. Budget information is copied to this page.  Insert 

the prior year estimated actual expenditures to compute the estimated percentage increase (decrease).  

Big Hollow School District 38

(Section 17-1.5 of the School Code) 34-04903-8002

Description

Deduct - Early Retirement or other pension obligations required 

by state law and included above.

Estimated Percent Increase (Decrease) for FY2022 (Budgeted) 

over FY2021 (Actual)

Exhibit 3

https://www.isbe.net/Pages/Limitation-of-Administrative-Costs.aspx


Page 31 Page 31

  See:  School Code, Section 10-20.21 - Contracts

(Sheet is unprotected and can be re-formatted as needed, but must be used for submission)

Name of Vendor Product or Service Provided Net Revenue
Non-Monetary 

Remuneration
Purpose of Proceeds

Distribution Method and Recipient of Non-

Monetary Remunerations Distributed

N/A

In accordance with the School Code, Section 10-20.21, all school districts  are required to file a report listing ‘vendor contracts’ as an attachment to their budget.   In this context, the term "vendor contracts" refers to "all 

contracts and agreements that pertain to goods and services that were intended to generate additional revenue and other remunerations for the school district  in excess of $1,000, including without limitation vending machine 

contracts, sports and other attire, class rings, and photographic services.  The report is to list information regarding such contracts for the fiscal year immediately preceding the fiscal year of the budget.  All such contracts 

executed on or after July 1, 2007 must be approved by the school board.

REPORTING OF PUBLIC VENDOR CONTRACTS OF $1,000 OR MORE (School Districts Only) 

C:\Users\bobgold\Desktop\21-22 Budget Form 9-8-21 9/8/2021

Exhibit 3

http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=010500050HArt%2E+10&ActID=1005&ChapAct=105%26nbsp%3BILCS%26nbsp%3B5%2F&ChapterID=17&ChapterName=SCHOOLS&SectionID=48899&SeqStart=53200000&SeqEnd=74800000&ActName=School+Code%2E


Page 32 REFERENCE PAGE Page 32

Reference Description

1 Each fund balance should correspond to the fund balance reflected on the books as of June 30th - Balance Sheet Accounts #720 and #730 (audit figures, if 

available).

2 Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Grants and Other Financial Assistance.  The "On-Behalf" Payments should only be reflected on this page 

(Budget Summary, Lines 10 and 20).

3 Requires the secretary of the school board to notify the county clerk (within 30 days of the transfer approval) to abate an equal amount of taxes to be 

next extended.  See Sec. 10-22.14 & 17-2.11.
3a Requires notification to the county clerk to abate an equal amount from taxes next extended.  See section 10-22.14

4 Principal on Bonds Sold:

(1)  Funding Bonds are to be entered in the fund or funds in which the liability occurs.

(2)  Refunding Bonds can be entered in the Debt Services Fund only.

(3)  Building Bonds can be entered in the Capital Projects Fund only.

(4)  Fire Prevention and Safety Bonds can be entered in the Fire Prevention & Safety Fund only.

5

The proceeds from the sale of school sites, buildings, or other real estate shall be used first to pay the principal and interest on any outstanding bonds on 

the property being sold, and after all such bonds have been retired, the remaining proceeds from the sale next shall be used by the school board to meet 

any urgent district needs as determined under Sections 2-3.12 and 17-2.11 of the School Code.  Once these issues have been addressed, any remaining 

proceeds may be used for any other authorized purpose and for deposit into any district fund.

6 The School Code, Section 10-22.44 prohibits the transfer of interest earned on the investment of "any funds for purposes of Illinois Municipal Retirement 

under the Pension Code."  This prohibition does not include funds for Social Security and Medicare-only purposes.  For additional requirements on 

interest earnings, see 23 Illinois Administrative Code, Part 100, Section 100.50.

7 Cash plus investments must be greater than or equal to zero.

8
For cash basis budgets, this total will equal the Budget Summary - Total Direct Receipts/Revenues (Line 9) plus Total Other Sources of Funds (Line 46).

9 For cash basis budgets, this total will equal the Budget Summary - Total Direct Disbursements/Expenditures (Line 19) plus Total Other Uses of Funds (Line 

79).

10
Working Cash Fund loans may be made to any district fund for which taxes are levied (Section 20-5 of the School Code).

11
Include revenue accounts 1110 through 1115, 1117,1118 & 1120.

12
The School Code Section 17-2.2c.  Tax for leasing educational facilities or computer technology or both, and for temporary relocation expense purposes.

13
Corporate personal property replacement tax revenue must be first applied to the Municipal Retirement/Social Security Fund to replace tax revenue lost 

due to the abolition of the corporate personal property tax (30 ILCS 115/12).  This provision does not apply to taxes levied for Medicare-Only purposes.

14

Only tuition payments made to private facilities.  See Functions 4200 or 4400 for estimated public facility disbursements/expenditures.

15 Payment towards the retirement of lease/purchase agreements or bonded/other indebtedness (principal only) otherwise reported within the fund - e.g.: 

alternate revenue bonds.  (Describe & Itemize)

16 Only abolishment of Working Cash Fund must transfer its funds directly to the Educational Fund upon adoption of a resolution and

at the close of the current school Year (see 105 ILCS 5/20-8 for further explanation)

Only abatement of working cash fund can transfer its funds to any fund in most need of money 

(see 105 ILCS 5/20-10 for further explanation)

C:\Users\bobgold\Desktop\21-22 Budget Form 9-8-21     9/8/2021

Exhibit 3



Page 30 Page 30

Budget Item References Message

Is Deficit Reduction Plan Required? (Joint Agreements do not complete a deficit reduction plan.) Deficit reduction plan is not required.

If required, is Deficit Reduction Plan Completed (Page:  DefReductPlan 23-27)?

1. Cover Page - "School District or Joint Agreement" and "CASH or ACCRUAL"

Check School District or Joint Agreement.  School District

Check one type of Accounting Basis used on the Cover sheet. CASH

2.
Estimated Beginning Fund Balance July,1 2021 for all Funds (Cells C3 - K3)                               (Line must have 

a number or zero.  Do not leave blank.)
OK

Estimated  Activity Fund Beginning Fund Balance July,1 2021 (Cell C83)                               (Cell must have a 

number or zero.  Do not leave blank.)
OK

Transfer Among Funds (Funds 10, 20, 40 - Acct 7130 - Cells C29, D29, F29), must equal (Funds 10, 20 & 40 - 

Acct 8130 - Cells C52, D52, F52).
OK

Transfer of Interest (Funds 10 thru 90 - Acct 7140 - Cells C30:K30), must equal (Funds 10 thru 60, & 80 - 

Acct 8140 - Cells C53:H53, J53).
OK

Transfer to Debt Service to Pay Principal on Capital Leases (Fund 30 - Acct 7400 - Cell E39) must equal 

(Funds 10, 20 & 60 - Acct 8400 Cells C57:H60).
OK

Transfer to Debt Service to Pay Interest on Capital Leases (Fund 30 - Acct 7500 - Cell E40) must equal (Funds 

10, 20 & 60 - Acct 8500 - Cells C61:H64).
OK

Transfer to Debt Service Fund to Pay Principal on Revenue Bonds (Fund 30 - Acct 7600 - Cell E41) must 

equal (Funds 10 & 20 - Acct 8600 - Cells C65:D68).
OK

Transfer to Debt Service to Pay Interest on Revenue Bonds (Fund 30 - Acct 7700 - Cell E42) must equal 

(Funds 10 & 20 - Acct 8700 - Cells C69:D72).
OK

Transfer to Capital Projects Fund (Fund 60 - Acct 7800 - Cell H43) must equal (Fund 10 & 20, Acct 8800 - 

Cells C73:D76).
OK

3.
 Educational (Fund 10 - Cell C3) OK

Operations & Maintenance (Fund 20 - Cell D3) OK

Debt Service (Fund 30 - Cell E3) OK

Transportation (Fund 40 - Cell F3) OK

Municipal Retirement/Social Security (Fund 50 - Cell G3) OK

Capital Projects (Fund 60 - Cell H3) OK

Working Cash (Fund 70 - Cell I3) OK

Tort (Fund 80 - Cell J3) OK

Fire Prevention & Safety (Fund 90 - Cell K3) OK

Activity Funds (Cell C23) OK

4.
Educational (Fund 10 - Cell C21) OK

Operations & Maintenance (Fund 20 - Cell D21) OK

Debt Service (Fund 30 - Cell E21) OK

Transportation (Fund 40 - F21) OK

Municipal Retirement/Social Security (Fund 50 - Cell G21) OK

Capital Projects (Fund 60 - H21) OK

Working Cash (Fund 70 - Cell I21) OK

Tort (Fund 80 - Cell J21) OK

Fire Prevention & Safety (Fund 90 - Cell K21) OK

5.

Interfund Loans Payable (Funds 10:60, 80, 90 - Acct 411 - Cells C6:H6, J6:K6) must equal Interfund Loans 

Receivable (Funds 10:20, 40, 70 - Acct 141 - Cells C15:D15, F15, I15).
OK

Interfund Loans Receivable (Funds 10, 20, 40 & 70 - Acct 141 - Cells C7:D7, F7, I7) must equal Interfund 

Loans Payable (Funds 10:60, 80, 90 - Acct 411 - Cells C16:H16, J16, K16).
OK

End of Balancing

Summary of Cash Transactions:  Ending Cash Balance on Hand June 30, 2022, (Page CashSum 4 - All Funds), cannot be negative.

Summary of Cash Transactions:  Other Receipts, (Page CashSum 4), must equal Other Disbursements, (Page CashSum 4).

CHECK FOR ERRORS
This worksheet checks various cells to assure that selected items are in balance.

Out-of-balance conditions are accompanied by an error message.

Errors must be corrected before the budget is finalized and submitted to ISBE.

Summary of Cash Transactions:  Beginning Cash Balance on Hand July 1, 2021, (CashSum 4, All Funds), cannot be negative.

Budget Summary:  Other Sources (Page BudgetSum 2-3 - Acct 7000), must equal Other Uses (BudgetSum 2-3 - Acct. 8000).

C:\Users\bobgold\Desktop\21-22 Budget Form 9-8-21 9/8/2021

Exhibit 3



Big Hollow School District #38 Ingleside, IL  60041

REGULAR BOARD OF EDUCATION MEETING MINUTES

Monday, August 9, 2021

1. Call to Order and Roll Call:

The regular meeting of the Board of Education was called to order at 6:00 p.m. on Monday,

August 9, 2021.

Roll Call:

The following member were in attendance:  Bennett, Cernuska, Dollinger, Kueter, Lyons,

Pedersen, Plescia

The following members were absent:  None

The following administration was present:  Gold

2. Motion to move to Closed Session:

A motion was made by Cernuska and seconded by Dollinger to move to closed session at 6:01pm

Motion carried.

Aye:  Cernuska, Dollinger, Kueter, Bennett, Lyons, Pedersen, Plescia

Nay:  None

3. Resume to Open Session:

Open session began at 6:13 pm.

The following members were in attendance:  Bennett, Cernuska, Dollinger, Kueter, Lyons,

Pedersen, Plescia

The following members were absent:  None

The following administration were present:  Gold, Arndt, Biancalana, Hetrovicz, Janusz, King,

McCulley, Pitman

The meeting was available via live stream.

4. Pledge of Allegiance:

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.

5. Added Items/Approval of the Agenda:

A motion was made by Plescia and seconded by Kueter to approve the agenda as written.

Motion carried.

Aye:  Plescia, Kueter, Cernuska, Dollinger, Lyons, Pedersen, Bennett

Nay:  None

Exhibit 4



6. Board  Member “Code of Conduct” Review:

Item #8: “I will be sufficiently informed about and prepared to act on the specific issues before

the board, and remain reasonably knowledgeable about local, state, national, and global

education issues.”

7. Approve Consent Agenda Items:

A motion was made by Kueter and seconded by Pedersen to approve the consent agenda items

as presented.

Motion carried.

Aye:  Kueter, Pedersen, Cernuska, Dollinger, Lyons, Plescia, Bennett

Nay:  None

8. Public Comments:

No public comments were presented.

9. Superintendent’s Report:

a. Review the vendor expense report for 2020-2021

An exhibit was shared of a listing of vendors who were paid more than $5,000 in

2020-2021.

Questions were addressed on a few line items.  The amount paid to SEDOL was

questioned and addressed by Mr. Gold and Dr. Pittman.  More information will be

provided to the Board at a later date.

b. Approve the Citizen’s Advisory Council Members for 2021-2022

Mr. Gold presented the board with a listing of parents, students and community

members who have volunteered for the CAC for this upcoming school year, a listing of

the CAC meetings for the 2021-2022 school year, and the draft objectives that the CAC

will be discussing in the 2021-2022 school year.

A motion was made by Bennett and seconded by Dollinger to approve the Citizen’s

Advisory Council Members for the 2021-2022 school year.

Motion carried.

Aye:  All

Nay:  None

c. Board Policy update on 1st reading

Press Plus Issue 107 was presented and discussed.

Board policy 2:270, which is a newly presented policy, was discussed in detail.  Many

questions were raised on how this policy will be enforced and tracked and the wording

of the policy.  The board would like this policy, as well as policy 8:25, revisited with the

Exhibit 4



intent of the policy changes to say that the Big Hollow logo, etc, cannot be used for

personal gain and/or endorsements.

A motion was made by Plescia and seconded by Kueter to approve on 1st reading the

recent Board Policy update Issue 107

Motion carried.

Aye:  Plescia, Kueter, Lyons, Bennett, Dollinger, Cernuska, Pedersen

Nay:  None

d. Student Registration Update

Mr. Gold provided a short update on the status of the registration for the 2021-2022

school year.  We are currently at approximately 80-85% of the previously existing

students being registered.  Approximately 159 kindergarten students to date, this is

lower than past numbers.

e. Curriculum and Instruction Update

Dr. Hetrovicz and Dr. King shared an exhibit updating the various initiatives that the

Curriculum and Instruction department are preparing for.

They will be implementing Common Core as it was intended.  Standards based grading

will be broken down into specifics using a point system.  This will be implemented

beginning in the 2022-2023 school year, beginning first in middle school and then

gradually at the elementary and primary levels.  This will align with Grant High School’s

grading system

Dr. Hetrovicz also briefly discussed the updates to spelling instruction and how it will

correlate to students' reading level.

10. Tentative Budget for SY 21-22 First Reading

In preparation of the budget, over 80 revenue codes and nearly 700 expense codes were

reviewed.  The State requires that a balanced budget be submitted or the District must complete

a deficit reduction plan to balance the District’s budget within three years.  The hearing on the

annual budget will be held during our Monday, September 13, 2021 Board of Education meeting

in the Big Hollow Middle School Multi Purpose Room.  The budget has been on display since

Monday, August 5, 2021 in order to meet the 30-day requirement.  The legal notice appeared on

the August 5, 2021 edition of the Daily Herald.

Mr. Gold detailed the tentative budget addressing questions from the board.

A motion was made by Bennett and seconded by Pedersen to approve the SY 21-22 Tentative

Budget.

Motion carried.

Aye:  Bennett, Pedersen, Plescia, Cernuska, Kueter, Lyons, Dollinger

Exhibit 4



Nay:  None

11. Other Action Items:

a. July Employment Report

A motion was made by Plescia and seconded by Kueter to approve the July

employment report with the addition of Kirsten Wilhelm, 4th grade Teacher and 8th

grade girls basketball coach.

Motion carried.

Aye:  Plescia, Kueter, Cernuska, Bennett, Lyons, Dollinger, Pedersen

Nay:  None

b. 2021-2022 Parent/Student Handbook

The Student/Parent Handbook for SY21-22 has been updated for all schools and includes

an addendum for COVID-19 related items.  The handbook will be available on the District

website.  Parents can also request a printed copy of the handbook.  The handbook

reflects all the revisions to Board Policy that have been previously approved.

A motion was made by Dollinger and seconded by Bennett to approve the updated

version of the current Student/Parent Handbook

Motion carried.

Aye:  All

Nay:  None

c. Strategic Planning Process Proposal from Educational Leadership Solutions

A proposal was presented to the board detailing the steps that will be taken to review

the district’s current Mission, Vision, Beliefs and Goals to determine to what extent each

of these are still valid, in use, in practice and/or serving a purpose within the district.

A motion was made by Pedersen and seconded by Dollinger to approve the proposal as

submitted by Educational Leadership Solutions

Motion carried.

Aye:  Pedersen, Dollinger, Bennett, Cernuska, Kueter, Lyons, Plescia

Nay:  None

d. Closed Meeting Minutes

Each July and January, Mr. Gold is to report to the Board of Education any closed session

minutes that have been closed to the public that should be released.  Mr. Gold is

recommending that current closed minutes should remain in closed status.

A motion was made by Cernuska and seconded by Bennett to keep all closed meeting

minutes in closed status.

Exhibit 4



Aye:  All

Nay:  None

12. Resignations Accepted:

● Accepted resignation from Kristina DeNapoli, Bus Driver, effective July 20, 2021.

● Accepted resignation from Christy Niernberg, 10 Month Primary School
Secretary, effective July 27, 2021.

● Accepted resignation from Jason Watt, 8th Grade Special Education Teacher,
effective August 3, 2021.

● Accepted resignation from Lynn Wingard, 8th Grade Math Teacher, effective
August 3, 2021.

● Accepted resignation from Kennedy Vilt, Primary School Music Teacher, effective
August 3, 2021.

13. Informational Items:

a. Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) Requests

No FOIA requests were received for the month of July.

b. Monthly Reports
The Monthly Administrator Report from July was presented to the board.

c. The next regularly scheduled Board Meeting will take place on Monday, September 13,
2021.

d. An IASB Board Member training will take place on Tuesday, August 24, 2021 at 6:00 p.m.

14. Motion to move to Closed Session:

Not needed

15. Return to Open Session:

Not needed

16. Take any necessary action following closed session regarding minutes, employment of personnel,

resignations, terminations or leaves of absence:

None

17. Adjournment:

A motion was made by Kueter and seconded by Plescia to adjourn the meeting at 7:20 p.m.

Motion carried.

Aye:  All

Nay:  None

Exhibit 4



_________________________________                        __________________________________
Board of Education President Board of Education Secretary
Big Hollow School District #38 Big Hollow School District #38

Exhibit 4



Big Hollow School District 38 Combined Balance Sheet August 2021

EDUCATION OPER. & DEBT SVC TRANS. SS/MED/IMRF CAPITAL PROJ WORKING TORT
FUND MAINT. FUND FUND FUND FUND FUND CASH FUND  FUND TOTAL

(10) (20) (30) (40) (50/51) (60) (70) (80) ALL FUNDS
 

A S S E T S
Cash & Investments
Imprest Fund 2,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,000
Cash in Bank BMO 50 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 50
Cash in Bank Win Trust Land of Lakes Bank 3,000,190 2,919,831 2,681,333 696,844 176,877 620,445 1,195,796 -144,439 11,146,876
PMA Investment 611,723 446,268 244,388 113,623 39,374 112,191 177,151 3,882 1,748,600
PMA Savings Deposit Account 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
     TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS 3,613,963 3,366,099 2,925,721 810,467 216,251 732,636 1,372,947 -140,558 12,897,526

Due From Education Fund 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
    TOTAL ASSETS 3,613,963 3,366,099 2,925,721 810,467 216,251 732,636 1,372,947 -140,558 12,897,526

L I A B I L I T I E S
Tax Anticipation Warrants Payable 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Accounts Payable 99,190 -26,620 0 -45,164 0 -3,690 0 0 23,716
Due To Working Cash Fund 0 0 0 0  0 0 0 0
    TOTAL LIABILITIES 99,190 -26,620 0 -45,164 0 -3,690 0 0 23,716

 
YTD Revenue 1,592,297 94,697 345,288 263,362 33,914 12,473 6,918 11,697 2,360,645
Sale of Assets 0
YTD Expenditures -2,912,964 -181,686 -72,150 -378,033 -78,935 -154,111 0 -195,936 -3,973,814
YTD Excess/ (Deficiency) -1,320,667 -86,989 273,138 -114,671 -45,021 -141,638 6,918 -184,239 -1,613,170
 
Beginning Fund Balance 07/01/21 5,033,819 3,426,468 2,652,583 879,975 261,272 877,964 1,366,029 43,681 14,541,791
Ending Fund Balance 3,713,153 3,339,479 2,925,721 765,304 216,251 736,326 1,372,947 -140,558 12,928,622

    TOTAL LIABILITIES & FUND BAL. 3,613,963 3,366,099 2,925,721 810,467 216,251 732,636 1,372,947 -140,558 12,897,526

   

Date Board of Education Secretary Date

Big Hollow School District 38 Big Hollow School District 38

Exhibit 5



Big Hollow District #38
Bank Balances

8/31/2021

Ledger/ Outstanding Outstanding Adjusting Adjusted
Statement Deposits Checks Entry Balance

Education (10) ( 3,000,190.16) ( 3,000,190.16) 
Building (20) ( 2,919,830.70) ( 2,919,830.70) 
Bond & Interest (30) ( 2,681,332.71) ( 2,681,332.71) 
Transportation (40) ( 696,844.01)   ( 696,844.01)    
IMRF/SS/MC Fund (50,51) ( 176,876.58)   ( 176,876.58)    
Capital Projects (60) ( 620,444.75)   ( 620,444.75)    
Working Cash (70) ( 1,195,796.31) ( 1,195,796.31) 
Tort (80) ( (144,439.37)  ( (144,439.37)   

( 11,146,875.85) ( -  )            ( -  )                 ( -  )                ( 11,146,875.85)

Bank of the Ozarks (0.00) (0.00)
PMA Savings-11534-101 (0.00) (0.00)
PMA Max Class General Fund (10,506,437.32) (10,506,437.32)
PMA Max Tax Anticipation Warrants (0.00) (0.00)
State Bank of the Lakes (749,392.38) (108,953.85) (640,438.53)
Bancorp Bank (0.00) (0.00)

( 11,255,829.70) ( -  )            (116,701.85) (0.00) (11,146,875.85)
( 0.00)               

Exhibit 5



Big Hollow School District 38 Treasurer's Report August 2021

Education Fund
Revenue Budget Month to Date Year to Date Budget Balance % of Budget

Local Sources $9,004,770 $430,843 $750,346 $8,254,424 8%
State Sources $6,265,323 $546,074 $575,550 $5,689,773 9%
Federal Sources $2,076,890 $220,197 $265,775 $1,811,115 13%
Fees $24,000 $256 $627 $23,374 3%

Total Revenue $17,370,983 $1,197,370 $1,592,297 $15,778,686 9%
    

Expenses Budget Month to Date Year to Date Budget Balance % of Budget

Salary $12,864,938 $914,636 $1,821,342 $11,043,596 14%
Benefits $1,593,085 $106,695 $221,016 $1,372,069 14%
Purchased Services $1,257,059 $73,936 $255,630 $1,001,429 20%
Supplies and Mat $1,837,238 $163,837 $394,857 $1,442,381 21%
Capital Outlay $0 $0 $0 $0 0%
Dues and Fees/Tuition $0 $0 $0 $0 0%
Non-Capital Equipment $0 $0 $0 $0 0%
Other Objects $1,155,025 $157,139 $220,120 $0 19%
Transfers $522,500 $0 $0 $522,500 0%

Total Expenses  $19,229,845  $1,416,243  $2,912,964 $16,316,881 15%

Exhibit 5



Big Hollow School District 38 Treasurer's Report August 2021

Operations and Maintenance
Revenue Budget Month to Date Year to Date Budget Balance % of Budget

Local Sources $1,383,000 $57,678 $94,697 $1,288,303 7%
State Sources $0 $0 $0 $0 0%
Federal Sources $0 $0 $0 $0 0%
Other Sources Sale of Land $0 $0 $0 $0) 0%

$0 $0 $0 $0) 0%
Grant Maintenance $0 $0 $0 $0) 0%

Total Revenue $1,383,000 $57,678 $94,697 $1,288,303) 7%

Expenses Budget Month to Date Year to Date Budget Balance % of Budget

Salary $375,000 $26,349 $52,415 $322,585 7%
Benefits $30,560 $2,868 $5,805 $24,755 19%
Purchased Services $714,700 $32,466 $89,168 $625,532 12%
Supplies and Materials $484,300 $15,174 $34,298 $450,002 7%
Capital Outlay $0 $0 $0 $0 0%
Dues, Fees,Tuition $0) $0 $0 $0 0%

Total Expenses  $1,604,560  $76,856  $181,686 $1,422,874 11%

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              

Exhibit 5



Big Hollow School District 38 Treasurer's Report August 2021

Debt Service Fund
Revenue Budget Month to Date Year to Date Budget Balance % of Budget

Local Sources $5,147,305 $210,338 $345,288 $4,802,017 7%
State Sources $0 $0 $0 $0 0%
Federal Sources $0 $0 $0 $0 0%

Total Revenue $5,147,305 $210,338 $345,288 $4,802,017 7%

Expenses Budget Month to Date Year to Date Budget Balance % of Budget

Purchased Services $1,000 $0 $0 $1,000) 0%
Principal and Interest $0 $0 $0) $0 0%
Other Objects $5,105,651 $0 $72,150 $5,033,501 1%

Total Expenses $5,106,651 $0 $72,150 $5,034,501) 1%

Exhibit 5



Big Hollow School District 38 Treasurer's Report August 2021

Transportation Fund
Revenue Budget Month to Date Year to Date Budget Balance % of Budget

Local Sources $685,650 $30,174 $48,500 $637,150) 7%
State Sources $779,860 $0 $214,861 $564,999) 28%
Federal Sources $0 $0 $0 $0 0%

Total Revenue $1,465,510 $30,174 $263,362 $1,202,148) 18%

Expenses Budget Month to Date Year to Date Budget Balance % of Budget

Salary $821,500 $27,476 $62,589 $758,911 8%
Benefits $30,825 $764 $1,586 $29,239 5%
Purchased Services $136,600 $272 $1,677 $134,923 1%
Supplies and Mat $111,400 $417 $3,835 $107,565 3%
Capital Outlay $25,000 $0 $0 $25,000 0%
Other Objects $351,200 $0 $308,346 $42,854) 88%

Total Expenses  $1,476,525  $28,929  $378,033 $1,098,492) 26%

Exhibit 5



Big Hollow School District 38 Treasurer's Report August 2021

IMRF/SS Fund
Revenue Budget Month to Date Year to Date Budget Balance % of Budget

Local Sources $538,978 $20,659 $33,914 $505,064 6%
State Sources $0 $0 $0 $0 0%
Federal Sources $0 $0 $0 $0 0%

Total Revenue $538,978 $20,659 $33,914 $505,064 6%

Expenses Budget Month to Date Year to Date Budget Balance % of Budget

Salary $0 $0 $0 $0 0%
Benefits $618,500 $33,171 $78,935 $539,565 13%
Purchased Services $0 $0 $0 $0 0%
Supplies and Mat $0 $0 $0 $0 0%
Capital Outlay $0 $0 $0 $0 0%
Dues and Fees $0 $0 $0 $0 0%

Total Expenses  $618,500  $33,171  $78,935 $539,565 13%

Exhibit 5



Big Hollow School District 38 Treasurer's Report August 2021

Capital Projects
Revenue Budget Month to Date Year to Date Budget Balance % of Budget

Local Sources $100,500 $1,962 $12,473 $88,027) 12%
State Sources $0 $0 $0 $0 0%
Federal Sources $0 $0 $0 $0 0%

Total Revenue $100,500 $1,962 $12,473 $88,027) 12%

Expenses Budget Month to Date Year to Date Budget Balance % of Budget

Salary $0 $0 $0 $0 0%
Benefits $0 $0 $0 $0 0%
Purchased Services $10,000 $0 $0 $10,000 0%
Supplies and Mat $0 $0 $0 $0 0%
Capital Outlay $241,348 $106,448 $154,111 $87,237 64%
Transfers $16,000 $0 $0 $16,000 0%

Total Expenses  $267,348 $106,448  $154,111 $113,237 58%
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            

Exhibit 5



Big Hollow School District 38 Treasurer's Report August 2021

Working Cash Fund
Revenue Budget Month to Date Year to Date Budget Balance % of Budget

Local Sources $100,000 $4,210 $6,918 $93,082 7%
State Sources $0 $0 $0 $0 0%
Federal Sources $0 $0 $0 $0 0%

Total Revenue $100,000 $4,210 $6,918 $93,082 7%

Expenses Budget Month to Date Year to Date Budget Balance % of Budget

Salary $0 $0 $0 $0 0%
Benefits $0 $0 $0 $0 0%
Purchased Services $0 $0 $0 $0 0%
Supplies and Mat $0 $0 $0 $0 0%
Capital Outlay $0 $0 $0 $0 0%
Dues and Fees/Tuition $0 $0 $0 $0 0%

Total Expenses $0 $0 $0 $0 0%

Exhibit 5



Big Hollow School District 38 Treasurer's Report August 2021

TORT FUND
Revenue Budget Month to Date Year to Date Budget Balance % of Budget

Local Sources $186,000 $7,126 $11,697 $174,303) 6%
State Sources $0 $0 $0 $0 0%
Federal Sources $0 $0 $0 $0 0%

Total Revenue $186,000 $7,126 $11,697 $174,303) 6%

Expenses Budget Month to Date Year to Date Budget Balance % of Budget
Salary $0 $0 $0 $0 0%
Benefits $0 $0 $0 $0 0%
Purchased Services $195,936 $0 $195,936 $0 100%
Supplies and Mat $0 $0 $0 $0 0%
Capital Outlay $0 $0 $0 $0 0%
Dues and Fees/Tuition $0 $0 $0 $0 0%

Total Expenses  $195,936 $0  $195,936 $0 100%

Total All Funds

Exhibit 5



Big Hollow School District 38 Treasurer's Report August 2021

Total All Funds
Revenue Budget Month to Date Year to Date Budget Balance % of Budget

Local Sources $17,146,203 $762,990 $1,303,832 $15,842,371 8%
State Sources $7,045,183 $546,074 $790,412 $6,254,771) 11%
Federal Sources $2,076,890 $220,197 $265,775 $1,811,115) 13%
Other Sources Sale of Land $0 $0 $0 $0) 0%
Fees $24,000 $256 $627 $23,374) 3%
Maintenance Grant $0 $0 $0 $0) 0%
Total Revenue $26,292,276 $1,529,517 $2,360,645 $23,931,631) 9%

Expenses Budget Month to Date Year to Date Budget Balance % of Budget

Salary $14,061,438) $968,461) $1,936,346) $12,125,092 14%
Benefits $2,272,970) $143,499) $307,341) $1,965,629 14%
Purchased Services $2,315,295) $106,674) $542,411) $1,772,884 23%
Supplies and Mat $2,432,938) $179,428) $432,990) $1,999,948 18%
Capital Outlay $266,348) $106,448) $154,111) $112,237) 58%
Dues and Fees/Tuition $0) $0) $0) $0 0%
Transfers $538,500 $0 $0 $538,500) 0%
Other Objects  $6,611,876 $157,139  $600,616 $6,011,260) 9%
Total Expenses  $28,499,365  $1,661,648  $3,973,814 $24,525,551) 14%

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
          

      

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

Exhibit 5



Fund Fund # Accounts Payable 
Education 10 $557,991.51

O & M 20 $49,768.45

Debt Service 30

Transportation 40 $5,831.87

IMRF/SS 50 $33,171.11

Capitol Projects 60 $106,448.00

Working Cash 70

TORT 80

Fire Prev/Safety 90

Totals $753,210.94

Board of Education Secretary Date

Big Hollow School District #38

Board of Education President Date

Big Hollow School District #38

Big Hollow School Distrcit #38

Accounts Payable Approval Form for September 13, 2021

Exhibit 6 



3frdtl01.p 89-4 Big Hollow School District 38 09/06/21 Page:1

05.21.06.00.00 August 2021 Check History (Dates: 08/01/21 - 08/31/21) 10:30 AM

CHECK CHECK ACCOUNT ACCOUNT LEVEL

DATE          NUMBER            AMOUNT VENDOR               DESCRIPTION          DESCRIPTION                                TOTAL

08/04/2021     50109             25.00 Illinois Dept Of Rev EDUCATION/District EDUCATION ILLINOIS TAX

08/04/2021     50109         13,262.43 Illinois Dept Of Rev EDUCATION/District EDUCATION ILLINOIS TAX

08/04/2021     50109          4,525.76 Illinois Dept Of Rev EDUCATION/District EDUCATION ILLINOIS TAX

08/04/2021     50109            599.86 Illinois Dept Of Rev O & M/District Building- IL State Withholding

08/04/2021     50109            422.14 Illinois Dept Of Rev TRANSPORTATION/Distr Transportation - IL State With         18,835.19

ict

08/04/2021     50110            391.82 Teacher's Health Ins EDUCATION/District/E EDUCATION Employee Deductions

mployee Deductions

08/04/2021     50110              8.23 Teacher's Health Ins O & Building-Insurance Withholding

M/District/Employee

Deductions

08/04/2021     50110              8.24 Teacher's Health Ins TRANSPORTATION/Distr Transportation-Insurance With

ict/Employee

Deductions

08/04/2021     50110            526.51 Teacher's Health Ins EDUCATION/District/E EDUCATION Employee Deductions

mployee Deductions

08/04/2021     50110             11.07 Teacher's Health Ins O & Building-Insurance Withholding

M/District/Employee

Deductions

08/04/2021     50110             11.07 Teacher's Health Ins TRANSPORTATION/Distr Transportation-Insurance With            956.94

ict/Employee

Deductions

08/04/2021     50111          5,264.92 Teachers Retirement EDUCATION/District/E EDUCATION Employee Deductions

mployee Deductions

08/04/2021     50111            110.67 Teachers Retirement O & Building-Insurance Withholding

M/District/Employee

Deductions

08/04/2021     50111            110.67 Teachers Retirement TRANSPORTATION/Distr Transportation-Insurance With

ict/Employee

Deductions

08/04/2021     50111            339.28 Teachers Retirement EDUCATION/District/E EDUCATION Employee Deductions

mployee Deductions

08/04/2021     50111              7.13 Teachers Retirement O & Building-Insurance Withholding

M/District/Employee

Deductions

08/04/2021     50111              7.13 Teachers Retirement TRANSPORTATION/Distr Transportation-Insurance With          5,839.80

ict/Employee

Deductions

08/04/2021     50112            575.00 United States Treasu EDUCATION/District/F EDUCATION FED W/H TAX

Exhibit 6 



3frdtl01.p 89-4 Big Hollow School District 38 09/06/21 Page:2

05.21.06.00.00 August 2021 Check History (Dates: 08/01/21 - 08/31/21) 10:30 AM

CHECK CHECK ACCOUNT ACCOUNT LEVEL

DATE          NUMBER            AMOUNT VENDOR               DESCRIPTION          DESCRIPTION                                TOTAL

ederal Tax Withheld

08/04/2021     50112             50.00 United States Treasu EDUCATION/District/F EDUCATION FED W/H TAX

ederal Tax Withheld

08/04/2021     50112         27,495.77 United States Treasu EDUCATION/District/F EDUCATION FED W/H TAX

ederal Tax Withheld

08/04/2021     50112          4,890.11 United States Treasu EDUCATION/District EDUCATION Medicare Withiheld

08/04/2021     50112          4,890.11 United States Treasu SOCIAL SS/Medicare-Medicare Withheld

SECURITY/MEDICARE/Di

strict

08/04/2021     50112          2,931.92 United States Treasu EDUCATION/District EDUCATION FICA

08/04/2021     50112            752.12 United States Treasu O & M/District Building - FICA Withholding

08/04/2021     50112            648.67 United States Treasu TRANSPORTATION/Distr

ict

08/04/2021     50112            588.00 United States Treasu EDUCATION/District/F EDUCATION FED W/H TAX

ederal Tax Withheld

08/04/2021     50112          8,618.15 United States Treasu EDUCATION/District/F EDUCATION FED W/H TAX

ederal Tax Withheld

08/04/2021     50112          1,051.41 United States Treasu O & Building - Federal Withholding

M/District/Federal

Tax Withheld

08/04/2021     50112            437.45 United States Treasu TRANSPORTATION/Distr Transportation-Federal Withold

ict/Federal Tax

Withheld

08/04/2021     50112          1,446.78 United States Treasu EDUCATION/District EDUCATION Medicare Withiheld

08/04/2021     50112            192.07 United States Treasu O & M/District Building- Medicare Withholding

08/04/2021     50112            167.86 United States Treasu TRANSPORTATION/Distr Transportation-Medicare With

ict

08/04/2021     50112          4,332.71 United States Treasu SOCIAL SS/Medicare - FICA Withholding

SECURITY/MEDICARE/Di

strict

08/04/2021     50112          1,806.71 United States Treasu SOCIAL SS/Medicare-Medicare Withheld         60,874.84

SECURITY/MEDICARE/Di

strict

08/04/2021     50113            857.61 Wisconsin Dept Of Re EDUCATION/District EDUCATION WISC ST TAX

08/04/2021     50113             71.09 Wisconsin Dept Of Re EDUCATION/District EDUCATION WISC ST TAX

08/04/2021     50113              0.00 Wisconsin Dept Of Re TRANSPORTATION/Distr Transportation -WI State With            928.70

ict

08/09/2021     50114          3,500.00 Ball, Hannah Hultman EDUCATION/District/E Distr-- Tuition Reimb.          3,500.00

LEMENTARY/TUITION

Exhibit 6 



3frdtl01.p 89-4 Big Hollow School District 38 09/06/21 Page:3

05.21.06.00.00 August 2021 Check History (Dates: 08/01/21 - 08/31/21) 10:30 AM

CHECK CHECK ACCOUNT ACCOUNT LEVEL

DATE          NUMBER            AMOUNT VENDOR               DESCRIPTION          DESCRIPTION                                TOTAL

REIMBURSEMENT

08/09/2021     50115            150.00 DeNovo, Kira EDUCATION/District/S Distr--- Summer schl Supp/Mat            150.00

UMMER

SCHOOL/SUPPLIES

08/09/2021     50116             50.00 Frazier, Kimberly EDUCATION/District/C EDUCATION CASH ON HAND GENERAL             50.00

ASH IN BANK

08/09/2021     50117            500.00 Kellmann, Michelle EDUCATION/District/E Distr-- Tuition Reimb.            500.00

LEMENTARY/TUITION

REIMBURSEMENT

08/09/2021     50118            560.00 PMA Leasing, INC EDUCATION/District/C Dist-- Copy Machine Lease            560.00

ARE AND UPKEEP OF

EQUIPMENT S/RENTALS

08/09/2021     50119            227.96 Rusciolelli, Samanth EDUCATION/District/R Dist--- Convenience Acct S/M            227.96

EGULAR

PROGRAMS/SUPPLIES

08/09/2021     50120          4,995.00 Specialty Floors, In O & M/PRIMARY/CARE Pri-- gym floor refinish/paint          4,995.00

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/PROFESSIONAL AND

TECHNICAL SER

08/11/2021     50122            399.98 Amazon EDUCATION/District/S SPED--- Supp/Mat

PECIAL

EDUCATION/SUPPLIES

08/11/2021     50122             29.98 Amazon O & Dist--- O&M Pur Svc

M/District/OPERATION

AND MAINTENANCE OF

P/PROFESSIONAL AND

TECHNICAL SER

08/11/2021     50122             33.86 Amazon EDUCATION/District/O Supt-- Supp/Mat

FFICE OF THE

SUPERINTENDENT

S/SUPPLIES

08/11/2021     50122             94.45 Amazon EDUCATION/MIDDLE/MID MS-- Supp/Mat

DLE-JUNIOR

HIGH/SUPPLIES

08/11/2021     50122             74.31 Amazon EDUCATION/MIDDLE/MID MS-- Supp/Mat

DLE-JUNIOR

HIGH/SUPPLIES

08/11/2021     50122            405.05 Amazon TRANSPORTATION/Distr Trans--- Supp/Mat

Exhibit 6 



3frdtl01.p 89-4 Big Hollow School District 38 09/06/21 Page:4

05.21.06.00.00 August 2021 Check History (Dates: 08/01/21 - 08/31/21) 10:30 AM

CHECK CHECK ACCOUNT ACCOUNT LEVEL

DATE          NUMBER            AMOUNT VENDOR               DESCRIPTION          DESCRIPTION                                TOTAL

ict/PUPIL

TRANSPORTATION

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

08/11/2021     50122             40.84 Amazon EDUCATION/MIDDLE/MID MS-- Supp/Mat

DLE-JUNIOR

HIGH/SUPPLIES

08/11/2021     50122             20.94 Amazon EDUCATION/District/R Dist--- Convenience Acct S/M

EGULAR

PROGRAMS/SUPPLIES

08/11/2021     50122             98.68 Amazon EDUCATION/MIDDLE/MID MS-- Supp/Mat

DLE-JUNIOR

HIGH/SUPPLIES

08/11/2021     50122             97.29 Amazon EDUCATION/PRIMARY/EL Pri-- Supp/Mat

EMENTARY/SUPPLIES

08/11/2021     50122            632.50 Amazon EDUCATION/District/O Supt-- Supp/Mat

FFICE OF THE

SUPERINTENDENT

S/SUPPLIES

08/11/2021     50122             62.93 Amazon EDUCATION/MIDDLE/MID MS-- Supp/Mat

DLE-JUNIOR

HIGH/SUPPLIES

08/11/2021     50122            390.00 Amazon EDUCATION/District/S SPED--- Summer School Supp/Mat

PECIAL

EDUCATION/SUPPLIES

08/11/2021     50122            390.00 Amazon EDUCATION/District/S SPED--- Supp/Mat

PECIAL

EDUCATION/SUPPLIES

08/11/2021     50122            102.79 Amazon EDUCATION/MIDDLE/MID MS-- Supp/Mat

DLE-JUNIOR

HIGH/SUPPLIES

08/11/2021     50122             59.97 Amazon EDUCATION/District/D Tech--- Supp/Mat

ATA PROCESSING

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

08/11/2021     50122            677.22 Amazon EDUCATION/District/S SPED--- Supp/Mat

PECIAL

EDUCATION/SUPPLIES

08/11/2021     50122             50.99 Amazon EDUCATION/District/S SPED--- PreK Supp/Mat

PECIAL ED PROGRAMS

PRE-K/SUPPLIES

Exhibit 6 



3frdtl01.p 89-4 Big Hollow School District 38 09/06/21 Page:5

05.21.06.00.00 August 2021 Check History (Dates: 08/01/21 - 08/31/21) 10:30 AM

CHECK CHECK ACCOUNT ACCOUNT LEVEL

DATE          NUMBER            AMOUNT VENDOR               DESCRIPTION          DESCRIPTION                                TOTAL

08/11/2021     50122             18.05 Amazon EDUCATION/MIDDLE/MID MS-- Supp/Mat

DLE-JUNIOR

HIGH/SUPPLIES

08/11/2021     50122          1,612.95 Amazon EDUCATION/District/O Asst. Supt--- Mentor Program

FFICE OF THE

SUPERINTENDENT

S/SUPPLIES

08/11/2021     50122            238.13 Amazon EDUCATION/District/F Business-- Supp/Mat

ISCAL

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

08/11/2021     50122             53.76 Amazon EDUCATION/District/I Impr. of Instr--- Supplies/Mat

MPROVEMENT OF

INSTRUCTION

SER/SUPPLIES

08/11/2021     50122            199.95 Amazon EDUCATION/PRIMARY/EL Pri-- Supp/Mat

EMENTARY/SUPPLIES

08/11/2021     50122             40.57 Amazon EDUCATION/ELEMENTARY Elem-- Supp/Mat

/ELEMENTARY/SUPPLIES

08/11/2021     50122             82.51 Amazon TRANSPORTATION/Distr Trans--- Purchase Services

ict/PUPIL

TRANSPORTATION

SERVICES/PROFESSIONA

L AND TECHNICAL SER

08/11/2021     50122             55.92 Amazon EDUCATION/MIDDLE/MID MS--- ELA resources          5,963.62

DLE-JUNIOR

HIGH/TEXTBOOKS

08/11/2021     50123         72,440.74 Amplify EDUCATION/MIDDLE/MID MS-- Science curr. resources

DLE-JUNIOR

HIGH/TEXTBOOKS

08/11/2021     50123          6,500.00 Amplify EDUCATION/MIDDLE/IMP MS-- Impr of Inst (Amplify)         78,940.74

ROVEMENT OF

INSTRUCTION

SER/PROFESSIONAL

AND TECHNICAL SER

08/11/2021     50124            564.42 Blick Art Materials EDUCATION/MIDDLE/MID MS--- Art Supp/Mat            564.42

DLE-JUNIOR

HIGH/SUPPLIES

08/11/2021     50125            436.36 Discount School Supp EDUCATION/District/S SPED--- PreK Supp/Mat

PECIAL ED PROGRAMS

Exhibit 6 



3frdtl01.p 89-4 Big Hollow School District 38 09/06/21 Page:6

05.21.06.00.00 August 2021 Check History (Dates: 08/01/21 - 08/31/21) 10:30 AM

CHECK CHECK ACCOUNT ACCOUNT LEVEL

DATE          NUMBER            AMOUNT VENDOR               DESCRIPTION          DESCRIPTION                                TOTAL

PRE-K/SUPPLIES

08/11/2021     50125             49.98 Discount School Supp EDUCATION/District/S SPED--- PreK Supp/Mat            486.34

PECIAL ED PROGRAMS

PRE-K/SUPPLIES

08/11/2021     50126            700.00 Dyopath EDUCATION/District/F Distr-- Bus P/S (SinglePath)            700.00

ISCAL

SERVICES/PROFESSIONA

L AND TECHNICAL SER

08/11/2021     50127         14,500.00 First Educational Re EDUCATION/District/I ESSERIII-- Math PD         14,500.00

MPROVEMENT OF

INSTRUCTION

SER/PROFESSIONAL

AND TECHNICAL SER

08/11/2021     50128             25.00 Heinemann EDUCATION/District/I IDEA-- Impr of Inst

MPROVEMENT OF

INSTRUCTION

SER/PROFESSIONAL

AND TECHNICAL SER

08/11/2021     50128          1,402.50 Heinemann EDUCATION/District/I IDEA-- Impr of Inst          1,427.50

MPROVEMENT OF

INSTRUCTION

SER/PROFESSIONAL

AND TECHNICAL SER

08/11/2021     50129          3,340.00 K & M Printing EDUCATION/PRIMARY/EL Pri--- Math Workbooks          3,340.00

EMENTARY/Workbooks

08/11/2021     50130            371.40 Kendall Hunt Publish EDUCATION/MIDDLE/MID MS--- ELA resources

DLE-JUNIOR

HIGH/TEXTBOOKS

08/11/2021     50130            230.40 Kendall Hunt Publish EDUCATION/MIDDLE/MID MS--- ELA resources            601.80

DLE-JUNIOR

HIGH/TEXTBOOKS

08/11/2021     50131            600.00 Learning Without Tea EDUCATION/PRIMARY/IM Pri-- Impr of Inst. (staff)

PROVEMENT OF

INSTRUCTION

SER/PROFESSIONAL

AND TECHNICAL SER

08/11/2021     50131              0.00 Learning Without Tea EDUCATION/ELEMENTARY Elem-- Impr of Inst. (staff)            600.00

/IMPROVEMENT OF

INSTRUCTION

Exhibit 6 



3frdtl01.p 89-4 Big Hollow School District 38 09/06/21 Page:7

05.21.06.00.00 August 2021 Check History (Dates: 08/01/21 - 08/31/21) 10:30 AM

CHECK CHECK ACCOUNT ACCOUNT LEVEL

DATE          NUMBER            AMOUNT VENDOR               DESCRIPTION          DESCRIPTION                                TOTAL

SER/PROFESSIONAL

AND TECHNICAL SER

08/11/2021     50132          6,057.79 McGraw-Hill School E EDUCATION/PRIMARY/EL Pri-- Phonics Prgrm          6,057.79

EMENTARY/TEXTBOOKS

08/11/2021     50133             25.25 Monroe, Qiana EDUCATION/District/S FoodSvc--- Lunch/Breakfst Rev             25.25

ALES TO PUPILS -

LUNCH

08/11/2021     50134            644.30 Nasco EDUCATION/MIDDLE/MID MS--- Art Supp/Mat            644.30

DLE-JUNIOR

HIGH/SUPPLIES

08/11/2021     50135          1,400.00 Net56 O & M/District/CARE Internet Services (Net 56)          1,400.00

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING SE/Net56

08/11/2021     50136            367.65 Nicor Gas O & Elem--- Natural Gas

M/ELEMENTARY/CARE

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING SE/NATURAL

GAS

08/11/2021     50136            553.19 Nicor Gas O & M/MIDDLE/CARE MS--- Natural Gas

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING SE/NATURAL

GAS

08/11/2021     50136            498.15 Nicor Gas O & M/PRIMARY/CARE Pri--- Natural Gas          1,418.99

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING SE/NATURAL

GAS

08/11/2021     50137            500.00 Quadient Finance USA EDUCATION/District/B Board-- Communication            500.00

OARD OF EDUCATION

SERVICES/COMMUNICATI

ON

08/11/2021     50138            197.25 Quadient Leasing USA EDUCATION/District/B Board-- Communication            197.25

OARD OF EDUCATION

SERVICES/COMMUNICATI

ON

08/11/2021     50139            266.34 Quill Corp EDUCATION/ELEMENTARY Elem-- Supp/Mat

/ELEMENTARY/SUPPLIES

08/11/2021     50139             95.81 Quill Corp EDUCATION/MIDDLE/MID MS-- Supp/Mat

DLE-JUNIOR

HIGH/SUPPLIES

Exhibit 6 



3frdtl01.p 89-4 Big Hollow School District 38 09/06/21 Page:8

05.21.06.00.00 August 2021 Check History (Dates: 08/01/21 - 08/31/21) 10:30 AM

CHECK CHECK ACCOUNT ACCOUNT LEVEL

DATE          NUMBER            AMOUNT VENDOR               DESCRIPTION          DESCRIPTION                                TOTAL

08/11/2021     50139             64.74 Quill Corp O & Dist--- O&M Pur Svc            426.89

M/District/OPERATION

AND MAINTENANCE OF

P/PROFESSIONAL AND

TECHNICAL SER

08/11/2021     50140            232.50 Rabine Mechanical O & Elem--- O&M Repairs and Maint

M/ELEMENTARY/CARE

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING SE/REPAIR

AND MAINTENANCE

SERVICE

08/11/2021     50140            777.50 Rabine Mechanical O & M/MIDDLE/CARE MS--- O&M Repairs and Maint

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING SE/REPAIR

AND MAINTENANCE

SERVICE

08/11/2021     50140            435.00 Rabine Mechanical O & M/PRIMARY/CARE Pri--- O&M Repair & Maint          1,445.00

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING SE/REPAIR

AND MAINTENANCE

SERVICE

08/11/2021     50141             29.21 ReadyRefresh by Nest O & M/MIDDLE/CARE MS--- Water/Sewer Services

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/WATER/SEWER

SERVICES

08/11/2021     50141             68.12 ReadyRefresh by Nest O & Elem--- Water/Sewer Services

M/ELEMENTARY/CARE

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/WATER/SEWER

SERVICES

08/11/2021     50141             16.98 ReadyRefresh by Nest O & M/PRIMARY/CARE Pri--- Water/Sewer Services            114.31

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/WATER/SEWER

SERVICES

08/11/2021     50142            660.10 Riegle Press, Inc EDUCATION/District/F Business-- Supp/Mat            660.10

ISCAL

Exhibit 6 



3frdtl01.p 89-4 Big Hollow School District 38 09/06/21 Page:9

05.21.06.00.00 August 2021 Check History (Dates: 08/01/21 - 08/31/21) 10:30 AM

CHECK CHECK ACCOUNT ACCOUNT LEVEL

DATE          NUMBER            AMOUNT VENDOR               DESCRIPTION          DESCRIPTION                                TOTAL

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

08/11/2021     50143         12,184.00 Riverside Insights EDUCATION/District/G General State Aid         12,184.00

eneral State Aid

08/11/2021     50144            402.00 Securitas Electronic O & Elem--- Security Svc

M/ELEMENTARY/SECURIT

Y

SERVICES/PROFESSIONA

L AND TECHNICAL SER

08/11/2021     50144            402.00 Securitas Electronic O & MS--- Security Svc

M/MIDDLE/SECURITY

SERVICES/PROFESSIONA

L AND TECHNICAL SER

08/11/2021     50144            402.00 Securitas Electronic O & Pri--- Security Svc          1,206.00

M/PRIMARY/SECURITY

SERVICES/PROFESSIONA

L AND TECHNICAL SER

08/11/2021     50145        149,257.68 SEDOL EDUCATION/SEDOL/Spec SPED--- SEDOL Tuition        149,257.68

ED/TutionOtherDistri

cts/Private Tuition

08/11/2021     50146             78.10 Shogren, Reisa EDUCATION/District/S FoodSvc--- Lunch/Breakfst Rev             78.10

ALES TO PUPILS -

LUNCH

08/11/2021     50147             60.00 Smithereen Pest Mana O & Dist--- Pest Control Services

M/District/OPERATION

AND MAINTENANCE OF

P/PROFESSIONAL AND

TECHNICAL SER

08/11/2021     50147             78.00 Smithereen Pest Mana O & Dist--- Pest Control Services

M/District/OPERATION

AND MAINTENANCE OF

P/PROFESSIONAL AND

TECHNICAL SER

08/11/2021     50147             60.00 Smithereen Pest Mana O & Dist--- Pest Control Services            198.00

M/District/OPERATION

AND MAINTENANCE OF

P/PROFESSIONAL AND

TECHNICAL SER

08/11/2021     50148          5,259.28 Spectrum Center Inc EDUCATION/Connection SPED--- Private School Tuition          5,259.28

Day

Exhibit 6 



3frdtl01.p 89-4 Big Hollow School District 38 09/06/21 Page:10

05.21.06.00.00 August 2021 Check History (Dates: 08/01/21 - 08/31/21) 10:30 AM

CHECK CHECK ACCOUNT ACCOUNT LEVEL

DATE          NUMBER            AMOUNT VENDOR               DESCRIPTION          DESCRIPTION                                TOTAL

SC-Palatine/Spec Ed

Private

Tuition/Private

Tuition

08/11/2021     50149          3,265.70 Tforce Freight, Inc EDUCATION/MIDDLE/MID MS-- Science curr. resources          3,265.70

DLE-JUNIOR

HIGH/TEXTBOOKS

08/11/2021     50150            306.80 Thomson Reuters-West EDUCATION/District/B Board--- Residency Purch Svc            306.80

OARD OF EDUCATION

SERVICES/PROFESSIONA

L AND TECHNICAL SER

08/11/2021     50151         15,606.00 Upland Construction CAPITAL Parking Lot/Concrete Impr.

PROJECTS/District/FA

CILITIES

ACQUISITION AND

CON/IMPROVEMENTS

OTHER THAN BUILDI

08/11/2021     50151         74,382.00 Upland Construction CAPITAL Parking Lot/Concrete Impr.

PROJECTS/District/FA

CILITIES

ACQUISITION AND

CON/IMPROVEMENTS

OTHER THAN BUILDI

08/11/2021     50151         16,460.00 Upland Construction CAPITAL Parking Lot/Concrete Impr.        106,448.00

PROJECTS/District/FA

CILITIES

ACQUISITION AND

CON/IMPROVEMENTS

OTHER THAN BUILDI

08/11/2021     50152          2,967.59 WM Corporate Service O & M/District/CARE Sanitation Services

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/SANITATION

SERVICES

08/11/2021     50152              0.00 WM Corporate Service TRANSPORTATION/Distr Trans--- Garbage pickup          2,967.59

ict/PUPIL

TRANSPORTATION

SERVICES/SANITATION

SERVICES

Exhibit 6 



3frdtl01.p 89-4 Big Hollow School District 38 09/06/21 Page:11

05.21.06.00.00 August 2021 Check History (Dates: 08/01/21 - 08/31/21) 10:30 AM

CHECK CHECK ACCOUNT ACCOUNT LEVEL

DATE          NUMBER            AMOUNT VENDOR               DESCRIPTION          DESCRIPTION                                TOTAL

08/12/2021     50153          2,187.78 Ill Municipal Retire EDUCATION/District/B EDUCATION IMRF Deduction

enefit Accrual

08/12/2021     50153            557.37 Ill Municipal Retire O & Building - IMRF Withholding

M/District/Benefit

Accrual

08/12/2021     50153            474.80 Ill Municipal Retire TRANSPORTATION/Distr

ict/Benefit Accrual

08/12/2021     50153          5,073.19 Ill Municipal Retire IMRF/District/Benefi IMRF - IMRF Withholding

t Accrual

08/12/2021     50153          2,279.69 Ill Municipal Retire EDUCATION/District/B EDUCATION IMRF Deduction

enefit Accrual

08/12/2021     50153            527.63 Ill Municipal Retire O & Building - IMRF Withholding

M/District/Benefit

Accrual

08/12/2021     50153            660.93 Ill Municipal Retire TRANSPORTATION/Distr

ict/Benefit Accrual

08/12/2021     50153          5,464.36 Ill Municipal Retire IMRF/District/Benefi IMRF - IMRF Withholding         17,225.75

t Accrual

08/12/2021     50154             25.00 Illinois Dept Of Rev EDUCATION/District EDUCATION ILLINOIS TAX

08/12/2021     50154         13,261.90 Illinois Dept Of Rev EDUCATION/District EDUCATION ILLINOIS TAX

08/12/2021     50154          4,784.98 Illinois Dept Of Rev EDUCATION/District EDUCATION ILLINOIS TAX

08/12/2021     50154            569.06 Illinois Dept Of Rev O & M/District Building- IL State Withholding

08/12/2021     50154            610.71 Illinois Dept Of Rev TRANSPORTATION/Distr Transportation - IL State With         19,251.65

ict

08/12/2021     50155             86.95 Teacher's Health Ins EDUCATION/District/E EDUCATION Employee Deductions

mployee Deductions

08/12/2021     50155            391.82 Teacher's Health Ins EDUCATION/District/E EDUCATION Employee Deductions

mployee Deductions

08/12/2021     50155              8.23 Teacher's Health Ins O & Building-Insurance Withholding

M/District/Employee

Deductions

08/12/2021     50155              8.24 Teacher's Health Ins TRANSPORTATION/Distr Transportation-Insurance With

ict/Employee

Deductions

08/12/2021     50155            526.51 Teacher's Health Ins EDUCATION/District/E EDUCATION Employee Deductions

mployee Deductions

08/12/2021     50155             11.07 Teacher's Health Ins O & Building-Insurance Withholding

M/District/Employee

Deductions

Exhibit 6 



3frdtl01.p 89-4 Big Hollow School District 38 09/06/21 Page:12

05.21.06.00.00 August 2021 Check History (Dates: 08/01/21 - 08/31/21) 10:30 AM

CHECK CHECK ACCOUNT ACCOUNT LEVEL

DATE          NUMBER            AMOUNT VENDOR               DESCRIPTION          DESCRIPTION                                TOTAL

08/12/2021     50155             11.07 Teacher's Health Ins TRANSPORTATION/Distr Transportation-Insurance With

ict/Employee

Deductions

08/12/2021     50155             64.70 Teacher's Health Ins EDUCATION/District/E EDUCATION Employee Deductions          1,108.59

mployee Deductions

08/12/2021     50156            869.40 Teachers Retirement EDUCATION/District/E EDUCATION Employee Deductions

mployee Deductions

08/12/2021     50156            244.86 Teachers Retirement EDUCATION/District/E EDUCATION Employee Deductions

mployee Deductions

08/12/2021     50156          5,264.92 Teachers Retirement EDUCATION/District/E EDUCATION Employee Deductions

mployee Deductions

08/12/2021     50156            110.67 Teachers Retirement O & Building-Insurance Withholding

M/District/Employee

Deductions

08/12/2021     50156            110.67 Teachers Retirement TRANSPORTATION/Distr Transportation-Insurance With

ict/Employee

Deductions

08/12/2021     50156            339.28 Teachers Retirement EDUCATION/District/E EDUCATION Employee Deductions

mployee Deductions

08/12/2021     50156              7.13 Teachers Retirement O & Building-Insurance Withholding

M/District/Employee

Deductions

08/12/2021     50156              7.13 Teachers Retirement TRANSPORTATION/Distr Transportation-Insurance With

ict/Employee

Deductions

08/12/2021     50156             56.04 Teachers Retirement EDUCATION/District/E EDUCATION Employee Deductions          7,010.10

mployee Deductions

08/12/2021     50157            575.00 United States Treasu EDUCATION/District/F EDUCATION FED W/H TAX

ederal Tax Withheld

08/12/2021     50157             50.00 United States Treasu EDUCATION/District/F EDUCATION FED W/H TAX

ederal Tax Withheld

08/12/2021     50157         27,493.96 United States Treasu EDUCATION/District/F EDUCATION FED W/H TAX

ederal Tax Withheld

08/12/2021     50157          4,889.96 United States Treasu EDUCATION/District EDUCATION Medicare Withiheld

08/12/2021     50157          4,889.96 United States Treasu SOCIAL SS/Medicare-Medicare Withheld

SECURITY/MEDICARE/Di

strict

08/12/2021     50157          3,068.73 United States Treasu EDUCATION/District EDUCATION FICA

08/12/2021     50157            711.81 United States Treasu O & M/District Building - FICA Withholding

Exhibit 6 



3frdtl01.p 89-4 Big Hollow School District 38 09/06/21 Page:13

05.21.06.00.00 August 2021 Check History (Dates: 08/01/21 - 08/31/21) 10:30 AM

CHECK CHECK ACCOUNT ACCOUNT LEVEL

DATE          NUMBER            AMOUNT VENDOR               DESCRIPTION          DESCRIPTION                                TOTAL

08/12/2021     50157            904.42 United States Treasu TRANSPORTATION/Distr

ict

08/12/2021     50157            588.00 United States Treasu EDUCATION/District/F EDUCATION FED W/H TAX

ederal Tax Withheld

08/12/2021     50157          8,574.23 United States Treasu EDUCATION/District/F EDUCATION FED W/H TAX

ederal Tax Withheld

08/12/2021     50157          1,000.12 United States Treasu O & Building - Federal Withholding

M/District/Federal

Tax Withheld

08/12/2021     50157            465.53 United States Treasu TRANSPORTATION/Distr Transportation-Federal Withold

ict/Federal Tax

Withheld

08/12/2021     50157          1,618.81 United States Treasu EDUCATION/District EDUCATION Medicare Withiheld

08/12/2021     50157            182.64 United States Treasu O & M/District Building- Medicare Withholding

08/12/2021     50157            227.66 United States Treasu TRANSPORTATION/Distr Transportation-Medicare With

ict

08/12/2021     50157          4,684.96 United States Treasu SOCIAL SS/Medicare - FICA Withholding

SECURITY/MEDICARE/Di

strict

08/12/2021     50157          2,029.11 United States Treasu SOCIAL SS/Medicare-Medicare Withheld         61,954.90

SECURITY/MEDICARE/Di

strict

08/12/2021     50158            857.56 Wisconsin Dept Of Re EDUCATION/District EDUCATION WISC ST TAX

08/12/2021     50158             71.09 Wisconsin Dept Of Re EDUCATION/District EDUCATION WISC ST TAX

08/12/2021     50158              0.00 Wisconsin Dept Of Re TRANSPORTATION/Distr Transportation -WI State With            928.65

ict

08/12/2021     50159             46.39 Home Depot Credit Se O & M/District/CARE Dist--- Grounds Supp/Mat

AND UPKEEP OF

GROUNDS

SER/SUPPLIES

08/12/2021     50159             61.95 Home Depot Credit Se O & M/District/CARE Dist--- Maintenance Supp/Mat

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/SUPPLIES

08/12/2021     50159             11.94 Home Depot Credit Se TRANSPORTATION/Distr Trans--- Supp/Mat

ict/PUPIL

TRANSPORTATION

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

08/12/2021     50159            168.00 Home Depot Credit Se O & M/District/CARE Dist--- Maintenance Supp/Mat

Exhibit 6 



3frdtl01.p 89-4 Big Hollow School District 38 09/06/21 Page:14

05.21.06.00.00 August 2021 Check History (Dates: 08/01/21 - 08/31/21) 10:30 AM

CHECK CHECK ACCOUNT ACCOUNT LEVEL

DATE          NUMBER            AMOUNT VENDOR               DESCRIPTION          DESCRIPTION                                TOTAL

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/SUPPLIES

08/12/2021     50159            167.34 Home Depot Credit Se O & M/District/CARE Dist--- Grounds Supp/Mat

AND UPKEEP OF

GROUNDS

SER/SUPPLIES

08/12/2021     50159             71.94 Home Depot Credit Se O & M/District/CARE Dist--- Grounds Supp/Mat

AND UPKEEP OF

GROUNDS

SER/SUPPLIES

08/12/2021     50159            219.94 Home Depot Credit Se O & M/District/CARE Dist--- Maintenance Supp/Mat

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/SUPPLIES

08/12/2021     50159             27.46 Home Depot Credit Se O & M/MIDDLE/CARE MS--- Maintenance Supp/Mat            774.96

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/SUPPLIES

08/12/2021     50160              9.99 Menards TRANSPORTATION/Distr Trans--- Rep/Maintenance

ict/PUPIL

TRANSPORTATION

SERVICES/REPAIR AND

MAINTENANCE SERVICE

08/12/2021     50160             64.90 Menards EDUCATION/District/D Tech--- Supp/Mat

ATA PROCESSING

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

08/12/2021     50160              5.90 Menards O & M/PRIMARY/CARE Pri--- Maintenance Supp/Mat

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/SUPPLIES

08/12/2021     50160             19.92 Menards O & M/District/CARE Dist--- Maintenance Supp/Mat

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/SUPPLIES

08/12/2021     50160             84.05 Menards O & Elem--- Maintenance Supp/Mat

M/ELEMENTARY/CARE

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

Exhibit 6 



3frdtl01.p 89-4 Big Hollow School District 38 09/06/21 Page:15

05.21.06.00.00 August 2021 Check History (Dates: 08/01/21 - 08/31/21) 10:30 AM

CHECK CHECK ACCOUNT ACCOUNT LEVEL

DATE          NUMBER            AMOUNT VENDOR               DESCRIPTION          DESCRIPTION                                TOTAL

SE/SUPPLIES

08/12/2021     50160              3.96 Menards EDUCATION/District/D Tech--- Supp/Mat

ATA PROCESSING

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

08/12/2021     50160              6.25 Menards O & M/MIDDLE/CARE MS--- Maintenance Supp/Mat

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/SUPPLIES

08/12/2021     50160             66.92 Menards O & M/MIDDLE/CARE MS--- Maintenance Supp/Mat

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/SUPPLIES

08/12/2021     50160             59.36 Menards O & M/MIDDLE/CARE MS--- Maintenance Supp/Mat

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/SUPPLIES

08/12/2021     50160             36.89 Menards O & M/District/CARE Dist--- Maintenance Supp/Mat

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/SUPPLIES

08/12/2021     50160             19.99 Menards O & M/District/CARE Dist--- Maintenance Supp/Mat            378.13

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/SUPPLIES

08/25/2021     50161             17.74 Amazon EDUCATION/District/F Business-- Supp/Mat

ISCAL

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

08/25/2021     50161             23.42 Amazon EDUCATION/District/O Supt-- Supp/Mat

FFICE OF THE

SUPERINTENDENT

S/SUPPLIES

08/25/2021     50161             19.98 Amazon EDUCATION/MIDDLE/Int Athletics--- Supp/Mat

erscholastic

Programs/SUPPLIES

08/25/2021     50161            129.81 Amazon EDUCATION/District/R Dist--- Convenience Acct S/M

EGULAR

PROGRAMS/SUPPLIES

08/25/2021     50161             61.76 Amazon EDUCATION/District/D Tech--- Supp/Mat

ATA PROCESSING

Exhibit 6 



3frdtl01.p 89-4 Big Hollow School District 38 09/06/21 Page:16

05.21.06.00.00 August 2021 Check History (Dates: 08/01/21 - 08/31/21) 10:30 AM

CHECK CHECK ACCOUNT ACCOUNT LEVEL

DATE          NUMBER            AMOUNT VENDOR               DESCRIPTION          DESCRIPTION                                TOTAL

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

08/25/2021     50161            880.21 Amazon EDUCATION/MIDDLE/Int Athletics--- Supp/Mat

erscholastic

Programs/SUPPLIES

08/25/2021     50161            657.94 Amazon EDUCATION/MIDDLE/MID

DLE-JUNIOR

HIGH/SUPPLIES

08/25/2021     50161              7.99 Amazon EDUCATION/MIDDLE/MID MS--- ELA resources

DLE-JUNIOR

HIGH/TEXTBOOKS

08/25/2021     50161            587.98 Amazon EDUCATION/MIDDLE/MID

DLE-JUNIOR

HIGH/SUPPLIES

08/25/2021     50161             46.89 Amazon EDUCATION/District/S SPED--- Supp/Mat

PECIAL

EDUCATION/SUPPLIES

08/25/2021     50161             17.99 Amazon EDUCATION/District/S SPED--- PreK Supp/Mat

PECIAL ED PROGRAMS

PRE-K/SUPPLIES

08/25/2021     50161             27.75 Amazon EDUCATION/MIDDLE/MID MS--- ELA resources

DLE-JUNIOR

HIGH/TEXTBOOKS

08/25/2021     50161             35.99 Amazon O & M/MIDDLE/CARE MS--- O&M Repairs and Maint

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING SE/REPAIR

AND MAINTENANCE

SERVICE

08/25/2021     50161             27.99 Amazon TRANSPORTATION/Distr Trans--- Purchase Services

ict/PUPIL

TRANSPORTATION

SERVICES/PROFESSIONA

L AND TECHNICAL SER

08/25/2021     50161             14.99 Amazon EDUCATION/MIDDLE/MID MS-- Supp/Mat          2,558.43

DLE-JUNIOR

HIGH/SUPPLIES

08/25/2021     50162            100.00 Ball, Hannah Hultman EDUCATION/ELEMENTARY Elem-- Supp/Mat            100.00

/ELEMENTARY/SUPPLIES

08/25/2021     50163            705.00 Brillion, Lindsay EDUCATION/District/E Distr-- Tuition Reimb.            705.00

LEMENTARY/TUITION

Exhibit 6 



3frdtl01.p 89-4 Big Hollow School District 38 09/06/21 Page:17

05.21.06.00.00 August 2021 Check History (Dates: 08/01/21 - 08/31/21) 10:30 AM

CHECK CHECK ACCOUNT ACCOUNT LEVEL

DATE          NUMBER            AMOUNT VENDOR               DESCRIPTION          DESCRIPTION                                TOTAL

REIMBURSEMENT

08/25/2021     50164            956.25 Carroll, Megan EDUCATION/District/H SPED-- OT/PT/Health Pur Svc            956.25

EALTH

SERVICES/PROFESSIONA

L AND TECHNICAL SER

08/25/2021     50165          3,344.75 ComEd O & M/District/CARE Energy Electricity

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/ELECTRICITY

08/25/2021     50165          2,434.54 ComEd O & M/District/CARE Energy Electricity          5,779.29

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/ELECTRICITY

08/25/2021     50166            338.83 Discount School Supp EDUCATION/District/S SPED--- PreK Supp/Mat

PECIAL ED PROGRAMS

PRE-K/SUPPLIES

08/25/2021     50166            169.99 Discount School Supp EDUCATION/District/S SPED--- PreK Supp/Mat

PECIAL ED PROGRAMS

PRE-K/SUPPLIES

08/25/2021     50166            146.63 Discount School Supp EDUCATION/District/S SPED--- PreK Supp/Mat

PECIAL ED PROGRAMS

PRE-K/SUPPLIES

08/25/2021     50166          1,199.90 Discount School Supp EDUCATION/District/S SPED--- PreK Supp/Mat

PECIAL ED PROGRAMS

PRE-K/SUPPLIES

08/25/2021     50166          2,576.44 Discount School Supp EDUCATION/District/S SPED--- PreK Supp/Mat          4,431.79

PECIAL ED PROGRAMS

PRE-K/SUPPLIES

08/25/2021     50167            700.00 Dyopath EDUCATION/District/F Distr-- Bus P/S (SinglePath)            700.00

ISCAL

SERVICES/PROFESSIONA

L AND TECHNICAL SER

08/25/2021     50168          5,000.00 Educational Leadersh EDUCATION/District/B Salary Study pur/svc          5,000.00

OARD OF EDUCATION

SERVICES/PROFESSIONA

L AND TECHNICAL SER

08/25/2021     50169            547.50 Erickson, Douglas EDUCATION/District/E Distr-- Tuition Reimb.            547.50

LEMENTARY/TUITION

REIMBURSEMENT

Exhibit 6 



3frdtl01.p 89-4 Big Hollow School District 38 09/06/21 Page:18

05.21.06.00.00 August 2021 Check History (Dates: 08/01/21 - 08/31/21) 10:30 AM

CHECK CHECK ACCOUNT ACCOUNT LEVEL

DATE          NUMBER            AMOUNT VENDOR               DESCRIPTION          DESCRIPTION                                TOTAL

08/25/2021     50170          7,689.00 FaciliServ, Inc. O & Dist--- Bleacher Inspection          7,689.00

M/District/OPERATION

AND MAINTENANCE OF

P/PROFESSIONAL AND

TECHNICAL SER

08/25/2021     50171             45.26 Frank, Sarah Marie EDUCATION/District/S Distr--- Summer schl Supp/Mat             45.26

UMMER

SCHOOL/SUPPLIES

08/25/2021     50172             25.00 Gager, Isabella EDUCATION/District/S FoodSvc--- Lunch/Breakfst Rev             25.00

ALES TO PUPILS -

LUNCH

08/25/2021     50173          1,778.21 Gander Publishing In EDUCATION/District/I IDEA-- Impr of Inst          1,778.21

MPROVEMENT OF

INSTRUCTION

SER/PROFESSIONAL

AND TECHNICAL SER

08/25/2021     50174             50.00 Glover, Kristen EDUCATION/ELEMENTARY Elem-- Supp/Mat

/ELEMENTARY/SUPPLIES

08/25/2021     50174             82.91 Glover, Kristen EDUCATION/ELEMENTARY Elem-- Supp/Mat            132.91

/ELEMENTARY/SUPPLIES

08/25/2021     50175          1,627.90 Granite Telecommunic O & M/District/CARE Phone Services (AT&T)          1,627.90

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING SE/At&t

08/25/2021     50176            844.80 Integrated Systems C EDUCATION/District/O Tech--- Purch Svc            844.80

PERATIONS

SERVICES/PROFESSIONA

L AND TECHNICAL SER

08/25/2021     50177            420.00 K & M Printing EDUCATION/ELEMENTARY Elem--- Math Workbooks

/ELEMENTARY/Workbook

s

08/25/2021     50177            480.00 K & M Printing EDUCATION/ELEMENTARY Elem--- Math Workbooks

/ELEMENTARY/Workbook

s

08/25/2021     50177            520.00 K & M Printing EDUCATION/District/A MTSS Handbooks          1,420.00

ssessment/SUPPLIES

08/25/2021     50178             73.94 Label City, Inc EDUCATION/District/D Tech--- Supp/Mat             73.94

ATA PROCESSING

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

08/25/2021     50179          1,015.30 Lake County Dept of O & M/PRIMARY/CARE Pri--- Water/Sewer Services

Exhibit 6 



3frdtl01.p 89-4 Big Hollow School District 38 09/06/21 Page:19

05.21.06.00.00 August 2021 Check History (Dates: 08/01/21 - 08/31/21) 10:30 AM

CHECK CHECK ACCOUNT ACCOUNT LEVEL

DATE          NUMBER            AMOUNT VENDOR               DESCRIPTION          DESCRIPTION                                TOTAL

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/WATER/SEWER

SERVICES

08/25/2021     50179          1,015.30 Lake County Dept of O & Elem--- Water/Sewer Services

M/ELEMENTARY/CARE

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/WATER/SEWER

SERVICES

08/25/2021     50179          1,199.90 Lake County Dept of O & M/MIDDLE/CARE MS--- Water/Sewer Services          3,230.50

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/WATER/SEWER

SERVICES

08/25/2021     50180          2,093.25 Learning Without Tea EDUCATION/District/S SPED--- Supp/Mat

PECIAL

EDUCATION/SUPPLIES

08/25/2021     50180          2,093.25 Learning Without Tea EDUCATION/PRIMARY/EL Pri-- Software (Handwriting)          4,186.50

EMENTARY/SOFTWARE

08/25/2021     50181          2,000.00 Lexia Learning Syste EDUCATION/District/S SPED--- Software (Lexia)

PECIAL

EDUCATION/SOFTWARE

08/25/2021     50181         11,900.00 Lexia Learning Syste EDUCATION/District/S SPED--- Software (Lexia)         13,900.00

PECIAL

EDUCATION/SOFTWARE

08/25/2021     50182          3,285.00 Lit N Glow Electric O & M/District/CARE Dist--- O&M Repairs and Maint          3,285.00

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING SE/REPAIR

AND MAINTENANCE

SERVICE

08/25/2021     50183             55.65 Nasco EDUCATION/MIDDLE/MID MS--- Art Supp/Mat             55.65

DLE-JUNIOR

HIGH/SUPPLIES

08/25/2021     50184            302.19 Nicor Gas O & Elem--- Natural Gas

M/ELEMENTARY/CARE

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING SE/NATURAL

GAS

Exhibit 6 



3frdtl01.p 89-4 Big Hollow School District 38 09/06/21 Page:20

05.21.06.00.00 August 2021 Check History (Dates: 08/01/21 - 08/31/21) 10:30 AM

CHECK CHECK ACCOUNT ACCOUNT LEVEL

DATE          NUMBER            AMOUNT VENDOR               DESCRIPTION          DESCRIPTION                                TOTAL

08/25/2021     50184            344.66 Nicor Gas O & M/PRIMARY/CARE Pri--- Natural Gas            646.85

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING SE/NATURAL

GAS

08/25/2021     50185         27,750.00 NWEA EDUCATION/District/A Dist- MAP Test Pur Svcs         27,750.00

ssessment/PROFESSION

AL AND TECHNICAL

SER

08/25/2021     50186          5,976.77 Onyx Asset Service G O & M/District/CARE Energy Electricity          5,976.77

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/ELECTRICITY

08/25/2021     50187            891.35 Oriental Trading Com EDUCATION/ELEMENTARY Elem-- Supp/Mat            891.35

/ELEMENTARY/SUPPLIES

08/25/2021     50188            825.00 Ovassapian, Madeline EDUCATION/District/E Distr-- Tuition Reimb.            825.00

LEMENTARY/TUITION

REIMBURSEMENT

08/25/2021     50189             37.78 Quill Corp EDUCATION/District/S SPED--- Supp/Mat             37.78

PECIAL

EDUCATION/SUPPLIES

08/25/2021     50190             11.98 ReadyRefresh by Nest O & M/MIDDLE/CARE MS--- Water/Sewer Services

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/WATER/SEWER

SERVICES

08/25/2021     50190            127.99 ReadyRefresh by Nest O & Elem--- Water/Sewer Services

M/ELEMENTARY/CARE

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/WATER/SEWER

SERVICES

08/25/2021     50190             36.98 ReadyRefresh by Nest O & M/PRIMARY/CARE Pri--- Water/Sewer Services            176.95

AND UPKEEP OF

BUILDING

SE/WATER/SEWER

SERVICES

08/25/2021     50191         25,230.00 Riverside Technologi EDUCATION/District/D Tech-- Laptop bags         25,230.00

ATA PROCESSING

SERVICES/SUPPLIES

Exhibit 6 



3frdtl01.p 89-4 Big Hollow School District 38 09/06/21 Page:21

05.21.06.00.00 August 2021 Check History (Dates: 08/01/21 - 08/31/21) 10:30 AM

CHECK CHECK ACCOUNT ACCOUNT LEVEL

DATE          NUMBER            AMOUNT VENDOR               DESCRIPTION          DESCRIPTION                                TOTAL

08/25/2021     50192          4,266.70 Schoolwide Inc EDUCATION/ELEMENTARY Elem-- Textbks (Schoolwide)          4,266.70

/ELEMENTARY/TEXTBOOK

S

08/25/2021     50193          5,225.00 SeeSaw EDUCATION/PRIMARY/EL Pri--- Software (SeeSaw)

EMENTARY/SOFTWARE

08/25/2021     50193          5,225.00 SeeSaw EDUCATION/ELEMENTARY Elem--- Software (SeeSaw)         10,450.00

/ELEMENTARY/SOFTWARE

08/25/2021     50194            800.00 Skyward, Inc EDUCATION/District/I Impr. of Instr--- Staff            800.00

MPROVEMENT OF

INSTRUCTION

SER/PROFESSIONAL

AND TECHNICAL SER

08/25/2021     50195            350.00 Super Teacher Worksh EDUCATION/District/I IDEA-- Impr of Inst            350.00

MPROVEMENT OF

INSTRUCTION

SER/PROFESSIONAL

AND TECHNICAL SER

08/25/2021     50196          9,320.00 Teaching Strategies EDUCATION/District/I Imp of Inst-- Creative Curr.          9,320.00

MPROVEMENT OF

INSTRUCTION

SER/PROFESSIONAL

AND TECHNICAL SER

08/25/2021     50197            100.00 Wegrzyn, Courtney EDUCATION/MIDDLE/MID MS-- Supp/Mat            100.00

DLE-JUNIOR

HIGH/SUPPLIES

08/25/2021     50198             80.00 Wex Health, Inc EDUCATION/District/B Board--Dues/Fee RevTrck & Bank             80.00

OARD OF EDUCATION

SERVICES/DUES &

FEES

  

       753,210.94 Totals for checks 

Exhibit 6 



3frdtl01.p 89-4 Big Hollow School District 38 09/06/21 Page:22

05.21.06.00.00 August 2021 Check History (Dates: 08/01/21 - 08/31/21) 10:30 AM

 F U N D  S U M M A R Y

  

FUND  DESCRIPTION                        BALANCE SHEET           REVENUE           EXPENSE             TOTAL

10 EDUCATION        150,081.32         12,312.35        395,597.84        557,991.51

20 O & M          6,418.29              0.00         43,350.16         49,768.45

40 TRANSPORTATION          5,294.39              0.00            537.48          5,831.87

50 SOCIAL SECURITY/MEDICARE         22,633.56              0.00              0.00         22,633.56

51 IMRF         10,537.55              0.00              0.00         10,537.55

60 CAPITAL PROJECTS              0.00              0.00        106,448.00        106,448.00

*** Fund Summary Totals ***        194,965.11         12,312.35        545,933.48        753,210.94

************************ End of report ************************

Exhibit 6 



CHECK DATE CHECK NUMBER VENDOR TOTAL

8/11/2021 50145 SEDOL $149,257.68

8/11/2021 50151 Upland Construction & Maintenance LLC $106,448.00

8/11/2021 50123 Amplify $78,940.74

8/12/2021 50157 United States Treasury $61,954.90

8/4/2021 50112 United States Treasury $60,874.84

8/25/2021 50185 NWEA $27,750.00

8/25/2021 50191 Riverside Technologies Inc $25,230.00

8/12/2021 50154 Illinois Dept Of Revenue $19,251.65

8/4/2021 50109 Illinois Dept Of Revenue $18,835.19

8/12/2021 50153 Ill Municipal Retirement Fund $17,225.75

8/11/2021 50127 First Educational Resources, LLC $14,500.00

8/25/2021 50181 Lexia Learning Systems LLC $13,900.00

8/11/2021 50143 Riverside Insights $12,184.00

8/25/2021 50193 SeeSaw $10,450.00

8/25/2021 50196 Teaching Strategies LLC $9,320.00

8/25/2021 50170 FaciliServ, Inc. $7,689.00

8/12/2021 50156 Teachers Retirement System $7,010.10

8/11/2021 50132 McGraw-Hill School Education Holdings, LLC $6,057.79

8/25/2021 50186 Onyx Asset Service Groups LLC $5,976.77

8/11/2021 50122 Amazon $5,963.62

8/4/2021 50111 Teachers Retirement System $5,839.80

8/25/2021 50165 ComEd $5,779.29

8/11/2021 50148 Spectrum Center Inc $5,259.28

8/25/2021 50168 Educational Leadership Solutions LLC $5,000.00

8/9/2021 50120 Specialty Floors, Inc $4,995.00

8/25/2021 50166 Discount School Supplies $4,431.79

8/25/2021 50192 Schoolwide Inc $4,266.70

8/25/2021 50180 Learning Without Tears $4,186.50

8/9/2021 50114 Ball, Hannah Hultman $3,500.00

8/11/2021 50129 K & M Printing $3,340.00

8/25/2021 50182 Lit N Glow Electric Inc $3,285.00

8/11/2021 50149 Tforce Freight, Inc $3,265.70

8/25/2021 50179 Lake County Dept of Public Works $3,230.50

8/11/2021 50152 WM Corporate Services, Inc $2,967.59

8/25/2021 50161 Amazon $2,558.43

8/25/2021 50173 Gander Publishing Inc. $1,778.21

8/25/2021 50175 Granite Telecommunications $1,627.90

8/11/2021 50140 Rabine Mechanical $1,445.00

8/11/2021 50128 Heinemann $1,427.50

8/25/2021 50177 K & M Printing $1,420.00

8/11/2021 50136 Nicor Gas $1,418.99

8/11/2021 50135 Net56 $1,400.00

8/11/2021 50144 Securitas Electronic Security, Inc $1,206.00

8/12/2021 50155 Teacher's Health Insurance Security Fund $1,108.59

8/4/2021 50110 Teacher's Health Insurance Security Fund $956.94

Exhibit 6 



8/25/2021 50164 Carroll, Megan $956.25

8/4/2021 50113 Wisconsin Dept Of Revenue $928.70

8/12/2021 50158 Wisconsin Dept Of Revenue $928.65

8/25/2021 50187 Oriental Trading Company $891.35

8/25/2021 50176 Integrated Systems Corporation $844.80

8/25/2021 50188 Ovassapian, Madeline Atourina $825.00

8/25/2021 50194 Skyward, Inc $800.00

8/12/2021 50159 Home Depot Credit Services $774.96

8/25/2021 50163 Brillion, Lindsay $705.00

8/11/2021 50126 Dyopath $700.00

8/25/2021 50167 Dyopath $700.00

8/11/2021 50142 Riegle Press, Inc $660.10

8/25/2021 50184 Nicor Gas $646.85

8/11/2021 50134 Nasco $644.30

8/11/2021 50130 Kendall Hunt Publishing Company $601.80

8/11/2021 50131 Learning Without Tears $600.00

8/11/2021 50124 Blick Art Materials $564.42

8/9/2021 50118 PMA Leasing, INC $560.00

8/25/2021 50169 Erickson, Douglas $547.50

8/9/2021 50117 Kellmann, Michelle $500.00

8/11/2021 50137 Quadient Finance USA, Inc $500.00

8/11/2021 50125 Discount School Supplies $486.34

8/11/2021 50139 Quill Corp $426.89

8/12/2021 50160 Menards $378.13

8/25/2021 50195 Super Teacher Worksheets $350.00

8/11/2021 50150 Thomson Reuters-West $306.80

8/9/2021 50119 Rusciolelli, Samantha Teri $227.96

8/11/2021 50147 Smithereen Pest Management $198.00

8/11/2021 50138 Quadient Leasing USA, Inc $197.25

8/25/2021 50190 ReadyRefresh by Nestle $176.95

8/9/2021 50115 DeNovo, Kira $150.00

8/25/2021 50174 Glover, Kristen $132.91

8/11/2021 50141 ReadyRefresh by Nestle $114.31

8/25/2021 50162 Ball, Hannah Hultman $100.00

8/25/2021 50197 Wegrzyn, Courtney $100.00

8/25/2021 50198 Wex Health, Inc $80.00

8/11/2021 50146 Shogren, Reisa $78.10

8/25/2021 50178 Label City, Inc $73.94

8/25/2021 50183 Nasco $55.65

8/9/2021 50116 Frazier, Kimberly $50.00

8/25/2021 50171 Frank, Sarah Marie $45.26

8/25/2021 50189 Quill Corp $37.78

8/11/2021 50133 Monroe, Qiana $25.25

8/25/2021 50172 Gager, Isabella $25.00

Exhibit 6 



Aug 31, 21

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
State Bank  Activity Bank Acct

Girls on the Run 49.13
In & Out Account 1,204.76
National Junior Honor Society 2,715.89
Nature Center 2,616.70
Recycling Club 2,676.83
Student Council 6,809.53
Sunshine Club - Elementary 42.02
Sunshine Club - Primary 861.01
State Bank  Activity Bank Acct - Other 406.65

Total State Bank  Activity Bank Acct 17,382.52

Total Checking/Savings 17,382.52

Total Current Assets 17,382.52

TOTAL ASSETS 17,382.52

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Equity

Retained Earnings 17,382.52

Total Equity 17,382.52

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 17,382.52

10:26 AM

09/8/21

Accrual Basis

Big Hollow Student Activity Funds 
Balance Sheet

As of August 31, 2021

Page 1

Exhibit 7



Convenience Fund Report

August 2021

Account Beginning Balance Debits Credits Ending Balance

Prek 1010.66 1010.66
KG 2054.18 20.00 2074.18
1st Grade 3898.28 3898.28
2nd Grade 1098.09 28.00 1126.09
3rd Grade 2338.69 227.96 2110.73
4th Grade 506.09 46.00 552.09
5th Grade 2269.67 2269.67
6th Grade 766.71 766.71
7th Grade 2457.51 2457.51
8th Grade 13361.50 13361.50

Art-P/E 0.00 0.00
Cheer 945.13 945.13
Computers-P 221.24 221.24
Computers-E -0.49 -0.49
Concessions-Athletic 2203.95 2203.95
Concessions-PE 7542.96 7542.96
Graphics Arts 331.77 331.77
Lets Read to Grow 313.96 313.96
Library-P/E 32.00 32.00
Library-MS 679.12 679.12
Music-P/E -39.71 -39.71
Noetic Math 59.50 59.50
PBIS-MS 2564.53 2564.53
PE-P 25.75 25.75
PE-E -245.98 -245.98
Poms 656.23 656.23
Prime Time 2670.00 2670.00
Reading P/E 4355.65 4355.65
Respect 665.00 665.00
Special Ed 33.00 33.00
Sports Camps 318.00 318.00
STARS-P 2020.60 2020.60
STARS-E 3310.77 3310.77
STEM CLUB 317.28 317.28
Yearbook-M 1020.30 1020.30
Yearbook-P/E 581.94 44.00 625.94

In & Out Account 2606.04 2606.04

Total 62949.92 227.96 138.00 62859.96

Exhibit 7



Convenience Fund Report

July 2021

Account Beginning Balance Debits Credits Ending Balance

Prek 1010.66 1010.66

KG 2054.18 2054.18

1st Grade 3894.28 4.00 3898.28

2nd Grade 1084.09 14.00 1098.09

3rd Grade 2338.69 2338.69

4th Grade 506.09 506.09

5th Grade 2269.67 2269.67

6th Grade 766.71 766.71

7th Grade 2457.51 2457.51

8th Grade 13361.50 13361.50

Art-P/E 0.00 0.00

Cheer 945.13 945.13

Computers-P 221.24 221.24

Computers-E -0.49 -0.49
Concessions-Athletic 2090.08 113.87 2203.95
Concessions-PE 7429.08 113.88 7542.96
Graphics Arts 331.77 331.77

Lets Read to Grow 313.96 313.96

Library-P/E 32.00 32.00

Library-MS 679.12 679.12

Music-P/E -39.71 -39.71

Noetic Math 59.50 59.50

PBIS-MS 2564.53 2564.53

PE-P 25.75 25.75

PE-E -245.98 -245.98
Poms 656.23 656.23

Prime Time 2670.00 2670.00

Reading P/E 4355.65 4355.65

Respect 665.00 665.00

Special Ed 33.00 33.00

Sports Camps 318.00 318.00

STARS-P 2020.60 2020.60

STARS-E 3310.77 3310.77
STEM CLUB 317.28 317.28
Yearbook-M 620.30 400.00 1020.30
Yearbook-P/E 581.94 581.94

In & Out Account 2606.04 2606.04

Total 62304.17 0.00 645.75 62949.92

Exhibit 7



Date Education O&M Transportation IMRF/SS Total

10-Aug-21 $501,647.34 $14,938.69 $12,052.20 $16,102.72 $544,740.95

25-Aug-21 $513,865.59 $14,278.09 $16,187.75 $17,068.39 $561,399.82

Grand Total $1,015,512.93 $29,216.78 $28,239.95 $33,171.11 $1,106,140.77

Board of Education President Date Board of Education Secretary Date

Big Hollow School District 38 Big Hollow School District 38

Big Hollow School District 38

Payroll Summary

Exhibit 8



Exhibit 9



Exhibit 9



Exhibit 9



Exhibit 9



www.bighollow.us
Mr. Robert Gold, Superintendent

Big Hollow District Office
26051 W. Nippersink Rd.
Ingleside, IL 60041
Phone 847-740-1490
Fax 847-740-9172

Big Hollow Primary School (EC-1)
33335 N. Fish Lake Rd.
Ingleside, IL 60041
Phone 847-740-5320
Fax 847-740-3490

Big Hollow Elementary (2-4)
33315 N. Fish Lake Rd.
Ingleside, IL  60041
Phone 847-740-5321
Fax 847-740-3795

Big Hollow Middle School (5-8)
26051 W. Nippersink Rd.
Ingleside, IL  60041
Phone 847-740-5322
Fax 847-740-9021

BOARD OF EDUCATION COMMITTEE REPORT

Date: September 2, 2021 Location: District Office

Committee: Finance Committee

Members Present: Lauren Plescia, Kevin Lyons, Ashley Bennett

Others in Attendance: Bob Gold

Duration of Meeting: 4:00 p.m. to

Topic Points and/or Summary of Discussion:

● Received a short update on the final budget for 2021-2022.  Mr. Gold will have all final
documents prepared for the Board on September 13th.

● Reviewed the recent salary study and discussed possible recommendations for adjustments to be
presented to the full Board on September 13, 2021.  Based on the comparative data from the
salary survey, it was recommended by the committee that paraprofessionals and building-level
secretarial staff receive a $1.00 per hour pay increase at this time.  Mr. Gold will prepare a
recommendation for the September 13th Board meeting.

● The committee also committed to considering further adjustments for the 2022-2023 school year.
Mr. Gold will also be working on setting up a formal salary schedule for each support staff
employment category which can then be utilized when making salary decisions for 2022-2023.

Submitted by:

Exhibit 10

http://www.bighollow.us


Exhibit 11



Exhibit 11



Exhibit 11



Moving Forward:

Framing Conversations and Enhancing Educational Experiences 

Exhibit 12



Bio:

Jessica Oladapo is the owner and operator of Diversity to Inclusion, Inc., providing trainings on 

diversity, inclusion, equity, and justice for schools, school districts, police departments, institutions of 

higher education, and global corporations. She offers professional development and training 

sessions as well as assists in the creation of Antiracism and Racial Equity Teams for educational 

institutions. 

Ms. Oladapo also currently serves as Professor of Sociology at Kankakee Community College in 

Illinois, where she teaches courses emphasizing Belonging and Equity, with a primary focus on the 

structures of society that allows for inequality to exist as well as solutions to these inequities. The goal 

of inspiring all to move toward Belonging and the creation of authentic relationship is her chief 

charge, along with encouraging the creation of equitable and inclusive spaces.

Ms. Oladapo obtained her Bachelor of Arts Degree from the University of Illinois at Chicago 

(Psychology and African American Studies) and Master of Arts degree from DePaul University 

(Sociology) She has additional Graduate level work in Social Psychology and Certificate of Diversity 

and Inclusion from Cornell University. 

Exhibit 12



The Goals:

• Ensure a Space of Belonging for all within the Big Hollow School District

• Consider all Partners in Education (PIE)

• Review practices to ensure that we are meeting the unique needs of each 

student

• Expand the definition of diversity to include multiple levels and identities

• Encourage and empower teachers and administrators to see the value of 

inclusion and effectively model belonging for the students and families

• Empower students and families to engage in and see their agency in the 

cocreation of  Spaces of Belonging for all in BHSD

Exhibit 12



The Path Forward:

Exhibit 12



©
O

L
A

D
A

P
O

 2
0

1
9

Exhibit 12



©
O

L
A

D
A

P
O

 2
0

2
0

Exhibit 12



©
O

L
A

D
A

P
O

 2
0

2
0

Exhibit 12



©
O

L
A

D
A

P
O

 2
0

2
0

Exhibit 12



Making meaning of it…

What does this mean for you?

Exhibit 12



Making meaning…

It is incredibly important to see our students and families. 

Seeing them has a positive impact on self efficacy, academic 

achievement, relational interactions and has a positive impact 

on future outcomes for the community. 

Exhibit 12



Questions to 

consider…

What might this mean for individual students?

How might a focus on Belonging impact in class learning?

What impact might it have on recruitment and retention of 
talent in BHSD? (Staff, teachers, administrators)

What impact might it have on relationship building?

What are some of the greatest strengths for BHSD as it relates 
to relationship building with families and community partners?

What are some barriers? How might a focus on Belonging 
impact and mitigate those barriers?

Exhibit 12



Additional Layers

• Classroom Management AND Self 

Management

• Relationship building & strategies 

(vulnerability, empathy, etc.)

• Self care (engaging in and modeling for 

students)

• Unpacking and uncovering our own biases 

through a lens of Social and Cognitive 

Psychology

Exhibit 12



Current & Future Work

I. School Improvement Goal

By the end of the 2021-2022 school year, our community’s perception of the diversity, equity, inclusion and 
belonging work will improve by a statistically significant amount as measured by the district-created DEI survey 
results.

II. Task-Force Work

• Human Resources (Recruitment, Hiring, and Retaining Diverse Staff)

• Curriculum Resources (Textbooks, Subscriptions, Libraries, Scope & Sequences, Lesson Planning)

• Community Engagement (Partnerships, Volunteerism, Reciprocal Sharing)

• Discipline (Responses & Practices, PBIS)
• Handbook Reviews

• Assessment (Formative/Summative Practices)

Exhibit 12



Big Hollow School District 38 \ SECTION 1 - SCHOOL DISTRICT ORGANIZATION \

Document Status: 5-Year-Review - Needs Review
SCHOOL DISTRICT ORGANIZATION

1:10 School District Legal Status

The Illinois Constitution requires the State to provide for an efficient system of high-quality public
educational institutions and services in order to achieve the educational development of all persons
to the limits of their capabilities.

The General Assembly has implemented this mandate through the creation of school districts. The
District is governed by the laws for school districts serving a resident population of not fewer than
1,000 and not more than 500,000.

The Board of Education constitutes a body corporate that possesses all the usual powers of a
corporation for public purposes, and in that name may sue and be sued, purchase, hold and sell
personal property and real estate, and enter into such obligations as are authorized by law.

LEGAL REF.:

Ill. Constitution, Art. X, Sec. 1.

105 ILCS 5/10-1 et seq.

CROSS REF.: 2:10 (School District Governance), 2:20 (Powers and Duties of the Board of
Education; Indemnification)

ADOPTED:January 9, 2017

1:10

1:10
1 of 1

Exhibit 13

bobgold
Text Box
Recommend to approve as written.  Policy is unchanged.



Big Hollow School District 38 \ SECTION 1 - SCHOOL DISTRICT ORGANIZATION \

Document Status: 5-Year-Review - Needs Review
SCHOOL DISTRICT ORGANIZATION

1:20 District Organization, Operations, and Cooperative Agreements

The District is organized and operates as an Elementary District serving the needs of children in
grades K through 8 and others as required by the School Code.

The District enters into and participates in joint programs and intergovernmental agreements with
units of local government and other school districts in order to jointly provide services and activities in
a manner that will increase flexibility, scope of service opportunities, cost reductions, and/or
otherwise benefit the District and the community. The Superintendent shall manage these activities
to the extent the program or agreement requires the District's participation, and shall provide
periodic implementation or operational data and/or reports to the Board concerning these programs
and agreements. The District participates in the following joint programs and intergovernmental
agreements:

SEDOL (Special Education District of Lake County

Nihip Medical Insurance

CLIC (liability and workmen's compensation)

LEGAL REF.:

Ill. Constitution, Art. VII, Sec. 10.

5 ILCS 220/1 et seq.

ADOPTED:January 9, 2017

1:20

1:20
1 of 1

Exhibit 13

bobgold
Text Box
Recommend to approve as written.  References and footnotes are updated.



Big Hollow School District 38 \ SECTION 1 - SCHOOL DISTRICT ORGANIZATION \

Document Status: 5-Year-Review - Needs Review
SCHOOL DISTRICT ORGANIZATION

1:30 School District Philosophy

Mission Statement

The mission of Big Hollow School District is inspiring a diverse school community to be passionate
and empathetic learners..

CROSS REF: 2:10 (School District Governance), 3:10 (Goals and Objectives), 6:10 (Educational
Philosophy and Objectives)

1:30

1:30
1 of 1

Exhibit 13

bobgold
Text Box
Recommend to approve as written.  Policy is unchanged.



Big Hollow School District 38 \ SECTION 2 - BOARD OF EDUCATION \

Document Status: Draft Update
BOARD OF EDUCATION

2:10 School District Governance

The District is governed by a Board of Education consisting of seven members. The Board's powers
and duties include the authority to adopt, enforce, and monitor all policies for the management and
governance of the District's schools.

Official action by the Board of Education may only occur at a duly called and legally conducted
meeting. Except as otherwise provided by the Open Meetings Act, at which a quorum ismust be
physically present at the meeting.PRESSPlus1

As stated in the Board member oath of office prescribed by the School Code, a Board member has
no legal authority as an individual.

LEGAL REF.:

5 ILCS 120/1.02, Open Meetings Act.

105 ILCS 5/10-1, 5/10-10, 5/10-12, 5/10-16.5, 5/10-16.7, and 5/10-20.5.

CROSS REF.: 1:10 (School District Legal Status), 2:20 (Powers and Duties of the Board of
Education; Indemnification), 2:80 (Board Member Oath and Conduct), 2:120 (Board Member
Development), 2:200 (Types of Board of Education Meetings), 2:220 (Board of Education Meeting
Procedure)

ADOPTED:January 9, 2017

PRESSPlus Comments

PRESSPlus 1.  Updated to reflect changes to 5 ILCS 120/7(e), amended by P.A. 101-640,
permitting public bodies to meet without a quorum physically present during a public health
emergency. Issue 107, June 2021

2:10

2:10
1 of 1

Exhibit 13

bobgold
Text Box
Recommend to approve as written.  Policy is adjusted to permit public bodies to meet without a quorum physically present during a public health emergency.



Big Hollow School District 38 \ SECTION 2 - BOARD OF EDUCATION \

Document Status: Draft Update
BOARD OF EDUCATION

2:30 School District Elections

School District elections are non-partisan, governed by the general election laws of the State, and
include the election of Board of Education members, various public policy propositions, and advisory
questions. Board of Education members are elected at the consolidated election held on the first
Tuesday in April in odd-numbered years. If, however, that date conflicts with the celebration of
Passover, the consolidated election is postponed to the first Tuesday following the last day of
Passover. The canvass of votes is conducted by the election authority within 21 days after the
election.

The Board, by proper resolution, may cause to be placed on the ballot: (a) public policy referendum
according to Article 28 of the Election Code, or (b) advisory questions of public policy according to
Section 9-1.5 of the School Code.

The Board Secretary serves as the local election official. He or she receives petitions for the
submission of a public question to referenda and forwards them to the proper election officer.

LEGAL REF.:

10 ILCS 5/1-3, 5/2A, 5/9, 5/10-9, 5/22-17, 5/22-18, and 5/28.

105 ILCS 5/9 and 5/9-1.5.PRESSPlus1

CROSS REF.: 2:40 (Board Member Qualifications), 2:50 (Board Member Term of Office), 2:210
(Organizational Board of Education Meeting)

ADOPTED:July 14, 2014

PRESSPlus Comments

PRESSPlus 1.  The Legal References are updated. Issue 107, June 2021

2:30

2:30
1 of 1

Exhibit 13

bobgold
Text Box
Recommend to approve as written.  Legal references and footnotes have been updated.



Big Hollow School District 38 \ SECTION 3 - GENERAL SCHOOL ADMINISTRATION \

Document Status: 5-Year-Review - Needs Review
GENERAL SCHOOL ADMINISTRATION

3:30 Chain of Command

The Superintendent shall develop an organizational chart indicating the channels of authority and
reporting relationships for school personnel. These channels should be followed, and no level should
be bypassed except in unusual situations.

All personnel should refer matters requiring administrative action to the responsible administrator,
and may appeal a decision to a higher administrative officer. Whenever possible, each employee
should be responsible to only one immediate supervisor. When this is not possible, the division of
responsibility must be clear.

CROSS REF.: 1:20 (District Organization, Operations, and Cooperative Agreements), 2:140
(Communications To and From the Board), 3:70 (Succession of Authority), 8:110 (Public
Suggestions and Concerns)

ADOPTED:January 9, 2017

3:30

3:30
1 of 1

Exhibit 13

bobgold
Text Box
Recommend to approve as written.  Policy is unchanged. Footnotes have been updated.



OPERATIONAL SERVICES

4:90 Student Activity and Fiduciary Funds

The Board, upon the Superintendent or designee's recommendation, establishes student activity funds to be managed by
student organizations under the guidance and direction of a staff member for educational, recreational, or cultural purposes. The
Board, upon the Superintendent or designee’s recommendation, also establishes fiduciary funds to be supervised by the
Superintendent or designee. The District has custodial responsibilities for fiduciary funds but no direct involvement in the
management of such funds.

Student Activity Funds

The Superintendent or designee shall be responsible for supervising student activity funds in accordance with Board policy 4:80,
Accounting and Audits; State law; and the Ill. State Board of Education (ISBE) rules for student activity funds. The Board will
appoint a treasurer for each fund to serve as the fund's sole custodian and be bonded in accordance with the School Code. The
treasurer shall have all of the responsibilities specific to the treasurer listed in ISBE rules for school activity funds, including the
authority to make loans between activity funds.

Unless otherwise instructed by the Board, a student activity fund's balance will carry over to the next fiscal year. An account
containing student activity funds that is inactive for 12 consecutive months shall be closed and its funds transferred to another
student activity fund or authorized fund with a similar purpose.

Fiduciary Funds

The Superintendent or designee shall be responsible for supervising fiduciary funds in accordance with Board policy 4:80,
Accounting and Audits; State law; and ISBE rules for fiduciary funds. The Board will appoint a treasurer for each fund to serve
as the fund’s sole custodian and be bonded in accordance with the School Code. The treasurer shall have all of the
responsibilities specific to the treasurer listed in the ISBE rules for fiduciary funds.

LEGAL REF.:

105 ILCS 5/8-2 and 5/10-20.19.

23 Ill.Admin.Code §§100.20, 100.80, and 100.85.

CROSS REF.: 4:80 (Accounting and Audits), 7:325 (Student Fundraising Activities)

Adopted: January 11, 2021

Big Hollow SD 38

4:90

4:90
1 of 1

Exhibit 13

bobgold
Text Box
Recommend to approve as written.  Policy is unchanged.



Big Hollow School District 38 \ SECTION 5 - PERSONNEL \ General Personnel \

Document Status: Draft Update
General Personnel

5:10 Equal Employment Opportunity and Minority Recruitment

The School District shall provide equal employment opportunities to all persons regardless of their
race, color, creed, religion, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, age, ancestry, marital
status, arrest record, military status, order of protection status, unfavorable military discharge,
citizenship status provided the individual is authorized to work in the United States, use of lawful
products while not at work, being a victim of domestic violence, sexual violence, or gender violence;
genetic information; physical or mental handicap or disability, if otherwise able to perform the
essential functions of the job with reasonable accommodation; pregnancy, childbirth, or related
medical conditions; credit history, unless a satisfactory credit history is an established bona fide
occupational requirement of a particular position; conviction record, unless authorized by
law;PRESSPlus1 or other legally protected categories. No one will be penalized solely for his or her
status as a registered qualifying patient or a registered designated caregiver for purposes of the
Compassionate Use of Medical Cannabis Program Act, 410 ILCS 130/.

Persons who believe they have not received equal employment opportunities should report their
claims to the Nondiscrimination Coordinator and/or a Complaint Manager for the Uniform Grievance
Procedure. These individuals are listed below. No employee or applicant will be discriminated or
retaliated against because he or she: (1) requested, attempted to request, used, or attempted to
use a reasonable accommodation as allowed by the Illinois Human Rights Act, or (2) initiated a
complaint, was a witness, supplied information, or otherwise participated in an investigation or
proceeding involving an alleged violation of this policy or State or federal laws, rules or regulations,
provided the employee or applicant did not make a knowingly false accusation nor provide knowingly
false information.

Administrative Implementation

The Superintendent shall appoint a Nondiscrimination Coordinator for personnel who shall be
responsible for coordinating the District’s nondiscrimination efforts. The Nondiscrimination
Coordinator may be the Superintendent or a Complaint Manager for the Uniform Grievance
Procedure. The Nondiscrimination Coordinator also serves as the District’s Title IX Coordinator.

The Superintendent shall insert into this policy the names, office addresses, email addresses, and
telephone numbers of the District’s current Nondiscrimination Coordinator and Complaint Managers.

Nondiscrimination Coordinator:
Robert B. Gold, Superintendent

26051 W. Nippersink Rd., Ingleside, IL 60041

bobgold@bighollow.us

847.740.1490

Complaint Managers:
Scott Whipple Christine Arndt

26051 W. Nippersink Rd., Ingleside, IL 60041 26051 W. Nippersink Rd., Ingleside, IL 60041

5:10

5:10
1 of 3

Exhibit 13

bobgold
Text Box
Recommend to approve as written.  See the required change that is noted and the highlighted section at the end of the page.

bobgold
Highlight

bobgold
Callout
Update to add Matthew McCulley as new complaint manager.



26051 W. Nippersink Rd., Ingleside, IL 60041 26051 W. Nippersink Rd., Ingleside, IL 60041

scottwhipple@bighollow.us christinearndt@bighollow.us
847.740.1490 847.740.1490

The Superintendent shall also use reasonable measures to inform staff members and applicants that
the District is an equal opportunity employer, such as, by posting required notices and including this
policy in the appropriate handbooks.

Minority Recruitment

The District will attempt to recruit and hire minority employees. The implementation of this policy
may include advertising openings in minority publications, participating in minority job fairs, and
recruiting at colleges and universities with significant minority enrollments. This policy, however, does
not require or permit the District to give preferential treatment or special rights based on a protected
status without evidence of past discrimination.

LEGAL REF.:        

8 U.S.C. §1324a et seq., Immigration Reform and Control Act.

20 U.S.C. §1681 et seq., Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972; 34 C.F.R. Part 106.

29 U.S.C. §206(d), Equal Pay Act.

29 U.S.C. §621 et seq., Age Discrimination in Employment Act.

29 U.S.C. §701 et seq., Rehabilitation Act of 1973.

38 U.S.C. §4301 et seq., Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act (1994).

42 U.S.C. §1981 et seq., Civil Rights Act of 1991.

42 U.S.C. §2000e et seq., Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964; 29 C.F.R. Part 1601.

42 U.S.C. §2000ff et seq., Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008.

42 U.S.C. §2000d et seq., Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964.

42 U.S.C. §2000e(k), Pregnancy Discrimination Act.

42 U.S.C. §12111 et seq., Americans with Disabilities Act, Title I.

Ill. Constitution, Art. I, §§17, 18, and 19.

105 ILCS 5/10-20.7, 5/10-20.7a, 5/10-21.1, 5/10-22.4, 5/10-23.5, 5/22-19, 5/24-4, 5/24-4.1, and
5/24-7.

410 ILCS 130/40, Compassionate Use of Medical Cannabis Program Act.

410 ILCS 513/25, Genetic Information Privacy Act.

740 ILCS 174/, Ill. Whistleblower Act.

775 ILCS 5/1-103, 5/2-102, 103, 103.1, and 5/6-101, Ill. Human Rights Act.

775 ILCS 35/5, Religious Freedom Restoration Act.

5:10

5:10
2 of 3

Exhibit 13



820 ILCS 55/10, Right to Privacy in the Workplace Act.

820 ILCS 70/, Employee Credit Privacy Act.

820 ILCS 75/, Job Opportunities for Qualified Applicants Act.

820 ILCS 112/, Ill. Equal Pay Act of 2003.

820 ILCS 180/30, Victims’ Economic Security and Safety Act.

820 ILCS 260/, Nursing Mothers in the Workplace Act.

CROSS REF.:          2:260 (Uniform Grievance Procedure), 2:265 (Title IX Sexual Harassment
Grievance Procedure), 5:20 (Workplace Harassment Prohibited), 5:30 (Hiring Process and Criteria),
5:40 (Communicable and Chronic Infectious Disease), 5:50 (Drug- and Alcohol-Free Workplace; E-
Cigarette, Tobacco, and Cannabis Prohibition), 5:70 (Religious Holidays), 5:180 (Temporary Illness
or Temporary Incapacity), 5:200 (Terms and Conditions of Employment and Dismissal), 5:250
(Leaves of Absence), 5:270 (Employment, At-Will, Compensation, and Assignment),
5:300 (Schedules and Employment Year), 5:330 (Sick Days, Vacation, Holidays, and Leaves), 7:10
(Equal Educational Opportunities), 7:180 (Prevention of and Response to Bullying, Intimidation, and
Harassment), 8:70 (Accommodating Individuals with Disabilities)

PRESSPlus Comments

PRESSPlus 1.  Updated in response to 775 ILCS 5/2-103.1, added by P.A. 101-656, prohibiting an
employer from disqualifying or taking other adverse action against applicants/employees based on
conviction records unless certain conditions and notification requirements are met.

See 5:30-AP2, E1, Notice of Preliminary Hiring Decision Based on Conviction Record and 5:30-
AP2, E2, Notice of Final Hiring Decision Based on Conviction Record, available by logging in to
PRESS Online at www.iasb.com. The exhibits were added with PRESS Issue 107 to assist districts
with implementation of 775 ILCS 5/2-103.1, added by P.A. 101-656, requiring employers to provide
an applicant with preliminary and final written notice before disqualifying the applicant based on a
conviction record.

For more detail and discussion about the impacts of P.A. 101-656, see 5:30, Hiring Process and
Criteria, at f/ns 5 and 6, and 5:30-AP2, Investigations, available at PRESS Online by logging in at
www.iasb.com. Issue 107, June 2021

5:10

5:10
3 of 3

Exhibit 13

http://www.iasb.com
bobgold
Highlight



General Personnel

5:20 Workplace Harassment Prohibited

The School District expects the workplace environment to be productive, respectful, and free of unlawful discrimination, including
harassment. District employees shall not engage in harassment or abusive conduct on the basis of an individual’s actual or
perceived race, color, religion, national origin, ancestry, sex, sexual orientation, age, citizenship status, disability, pregnancy,
marital status, order of protection status, military status, or unfavorable discharge from military service, nor shall they engage in
harassment or abusive conduct on the basis of an individual’s other protected status identified in Board policy 5:10, Equal
Employment Opportunity and Minority Recruitment. Harassment of students, including, but not limited to, sexual harassment, is
prohibited by Board policies 2:260, Uniform Grievance Procedure; 2:265, Title IX Sexual Harassment Grievance Procedure;
7:20, Harassment of Students Prohibited; 7:180, Prevention of and Response to Bullying, Intimidation, and Harassment; and
7:185, Teen Dating Violence Prohibited.

The District will take remedial and corrective action to address unlawful workplace harassment, including sexual harassment.

Sexual Harassment Prohibited

The District shall provide a workplace environment free of verbal, physical, or other conduct or communications constituting
harassment on the basis of sex as defined and otherwise prohibited by State and federal law. The District provides annual
sexual harassment prevention training in accordance with State law.

District employees shall not make unwelcome sexual advances or request sexual favors or engage in any unwelcome conduct of
a sexual nature when:  (1) submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of an individual’s
employment; (2) submission to or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as the basis for employment decisions
affecting such individual; or (3) such conduct has the purpose or effect of substantially interfering with an individual’s work
performance or creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working environment.  Sexual harassment prohibited by this policy
includes, but is not limited to, verbal , physical, or other conduct.  The terms intimidating, hostile, or offensive include, but are not
limited to, conduct that has the effect of humiliation, embarrassment, or discomfort.  Sexual harassment will be evaluated in light
of all the circumstances.

Making a Report or Complaint

Employees and nonemployees (persons who are not otherwise employees and are directly performing services for the District
pursuant to a contract with the District, including contractors, and consultants) are encouraged to promptly report information
regarding violations of this policy. Individuals may choose to report to a person of the individual’s same gender. Every effort
should be made to file such reports or complaints as soon as possible, while facts are known and potential witnesses are
available.

Aggrieved individuals, if they feel comfortable doing so, should directly inform the person engaging in the harassing conduct or
communication that such conduct or communication is offensive and must stop.

Whom to Contact with a Report or Complaint

An employee should report claims of harassment, including making a confidential report, to any of the following: his/her
immediate supervisor, the Building Principal, an administrator, the Nondiscrimination Coordinator, and/or a Complaint Manager.
Employees may also report claims using Board policy 2:260, Uniform Grievance Procedure. If a claim is reported using Board
policy 2:260, then the Complaint Manager shall process and review the claim according to that policy, in addition to any
response required by this policy.

The Superintendent shall insert into this policy the names, office addresses, email addresses, and telephone numbers of the
District’s current Nondiscrimination Coordinator and Complaint Managers. The Nondiscrimination Coordinator also serves as
the District’s Title IX Coordinator.

Nondiscrimination Coordinator:
Robert B. Gold, Superintendent

26051 W. Nippersink Rd., Ingleside, IL 60041

bobgold@bighollow.us

847.740.1490

Complaint Managers:
Scott Whipple Christine Arndt

26051 W. Nippersink Rd., Ingleside, IL 60041 26051 W. Nippersink Rd., Ingleside, IL 60041

5:20

5:20
1 of 3

Exhibit 13

bobgold
Text Box
Recommend to approve with adjustments as noted below.

bobgold
Callout
Update to new complaint manager:  Matthew McCulley



26051 W. Nippersink Rd., Ingleside, IL 60041 26051 W. Nippersink Rd., Ingleside, IL 60041

scottwhipple@bighollow.us christinearndt@bighollow.us
847.740.1490 847.740.1490

Investigation Process

Any District employee who receives a report or complaint of harassment must promptly forward the report or complaint to the
Nondiscrimination Coordinator or a Complaint Manager. Any employee who fails to promptly forward a report or complaint may
be disciplined, up to and including discharge.

Reports and complaints of harassment will be confidential to the greatest extent practicable, subject to the District’s duty to
investigate and maintain a workplace environment that is productive, respectful, and free of unlawful discrimination, including
harassment.

For any report or complaint alleging sexual harassment that, if true, would implicate Title IX of the Education Amendments of
1972 (20 U.S.C. §1681 et seq.), the Nondiscrimination Coordinator or designee shall consider whether action under policy
2:265, Title IX Sexual Harassment Grievance Procedure, should be initiated.

For any other alleged workplace harassment that does not require action under policy 2:265, Title IX Sexual Harassment
Grievance Procedure, the Nondiscrimination Coordinator or a Complaint Manager or designee shall consider whether an
investigation under policy 2:260, Uniform Grievance Procedure, and/or 5:120, Employee Ethics; Conduct, and Conflict of
Interest, should be initiated, regardless of whether a written report or complaint is filed.

Reports That Involve Alleged Incidents of Sexual Abuse of a Child by School Personnel

An alleged incident of sexual abuse is an incident of sexual abuse of a child, as defined in 720 ILCS 5/11-9.1A(b), that is
alleged to have been perpetrated by school personnel, including a school vendor or volunteer, that occurred: on school grounds
during a school activity; or outside of school grounds or not during a school activity.

Any complaint alleging an incident of sexual abuse shall be processed and reviewed according to policy 5:90, Abused and
Neglected Child Reporting. In addition to reporting the suspected abuse, the complaint shall also be processed under policy
2:265, Title IX Sexual Harassment Grievance Procedure, or policy 2:260, Uniform Grievance Procedure.

Enforcement

A violation of this policy by an employee may result in discipline, up to and including discharge. A violation of this policy by a third
party will be addressed in accordance with the authority of the Board in the context of the relationship of the third party to the
District, e.g., vendor, parent, invitee, etc. Any person making a knowingly false accusation regarding harassment will likewise be
subject to disciplinary action, which for an employee may be up to and including discharge.

Retaliation Prohibited

An employee’s employment, compensation, or work assignment shall not be adversely affected by complaining or providing
information about harassment. Retaliation against employees for bringing complaints or providing information about harassment
is prohibited (see Board policy 2:260, Uniform Grievance Procedure), and depending upon the law governing the complaint,
whistleblower protection may be available under the State Officials and Employees Ethics Act (5 ILCS 430/), the Whistleblower
Act (740 ILCS 174/), and the Ill. Human Rights Act (775 ILCS 5/).

An employee should report allegations of retaliation to his/her immediate supervisor, the Building Principal, an administrator, the
Nondiscrimination Coordinator, and/or a Complaint Manager.

Employees who retaliate against others for reporting or complaining of violations of this policy or for participating in the reporting
or complaint process will be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including discharge.

Recourse to State and Federal Fair Employment Practice Agencies

The District encourages all employees who have information regarding violations of this policy to report the information pursuant
to this policy. The following government agencies are available to assist employees: the Ill. Dept. of Human Rights and the U. S.
Equal Employment Opportunity Commission.

The Superintendent shall also use reasonable measures to inform staff members, applicants, and nonemployees of this policy,
which shall include posting on the District website and/or making this policy available in the District’s administrative office, and
including this policy in the appropriate handbooks.

LEGAL REF.:        

Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. §2000e et seq.; 29 C.F.R. §1604.11.

5:20

5:20
2 of 3

Exhibit 13



Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, 20 U.S.C. §1681 et seq.; 34 C.F.R. Part 106.

State Officials and Employees Ethics Act, 5 ILCS 430/70-5(a).

Ill. Human Rights Act, 775 ILCS 5/2-101(E) and (E-1), 5/2-102(A), (A-10), (D-5), 5/2-102(E-5), 5/2-109, 5/5-102, and 5/5-102.2.

56 Ill. Admin.Code Parts 2500, 2510, 5210, and 5220.

Burlington Industries v. Ellerth, 524 U.S. 742 (1998).

Crawford v. Metro. Gov’t of Nashville & Davidson County, 555 U.S. 271 (2009).

Faragher v. City of Boca Raton, 524 U.S. 775 (1998).

Franklin v. Gwinnett Co. Public Schools, 503 U.S. 60 (1992).

Harris v. Forklift Systems, 510 U.S. 17 (1993).                             

Jackson v. Birmingham Bd. of Educ., 544 U.S. 167 (2005).

Meritor Savings Bank v. Vinson, 477 U.S. 57 (1986).

Oncale v. Sundowner Offshore Services, 523 U.S. 75 (1998).

Porter v. Erie Foods International, Inc., 576 F.3d 629 (7th Cir. 2009).

Sangamon County Sheriff’s Dept. v. Ill. Human Rights Com’n, 233 Ill.2d 125 (Ill. 2009).

Vance v. Ball State University, 133 S. Ct. 2434 (2013).

CROSS REF.:          2:260 (Uniform Grievance Procedure), 2:265 (Title IX Sexual Harassment Grievance Procedure), 4:60
(Purchases and Contracts), 5:10 (Equal Employment Opportunity and Minority Recruitment), 5:90 (Abused and Neglected Child
Reporting), 5:120 (Employee Ethics; Conduct; and Conflict of Interest), 7:20 (Harassment of Students Prohibited), 8:30 (Visitors
to and Conduct on School Property)

Adopted: October 13, 2020

Big Hollow SD 38

5:20

5:20
3 of 3

Exhibit 13



INSTRUCTION

6:20 School Year Calendar and Day

School Calendar

The Board of Education, upon the Superintendent's recommendation and subject to State regulations, annually establishes the
dates for opening and closing classes, teacher institutes and in-services, the length and dates of vacations, and the days
designated as legal school holidays. The school calendar shall have a minimum of 185 days to ensure 176 days of actual
student attendance.

Please also refer to the current Agreement between the Board of Education School District No. 38, Lake County,
Illinois and the Big Hollow Federation of Teachers, a Council of the Lake County Federation of Teachers, Local No.
504, IFT-AFT/AFL-CIO.

Commemorative Holidays

The teachers and students shall devote a portion of the school day on each commemorative holiday designated in the School
Code to study and honor the commemorated person or occasion. The Board may, from time to time, designate a regular school
day as a commemorative holiday.

School Day

The Board establishes the length of the school day with the recommendation of the Superintendent and subject to State law
requirements. The Superintendent or designee shall ensure observances required by State law are followed during each day of
school attendance.

Please also refer to the current Agreement between the Board of Education School District No. 38, Lake County,
Illinois and the Big Hollow Federation of Teachers, a Council of the Lake County Federation of Teachers, Local No.
504, IFT-AFT/AFL-CIO.

LEGAL REF.:

105 ILCS 5/10-19, 5/10-19.05, 5/10-20.56, 5/10-24.46, 5/10-30, 5/18-12, 5/18-12.5, 5/24-2, 5/27-3, 5/27-18, 5/27-19, 5/27-20,
5/27-20.1, 5/27-20.2, and 20/1.

10 ILCS 5/11-4.1.

23 Ill.Admin.Code §1.420(f).

Metzl v. Leininger, 850 F.Supp. 740 (N.D. Ill. 1994), aff'd by 57 F.3d 618 (7th Cir. 1995).

CROSS REF.: 2:20 (Powers and Duties of the Board of Education; Indemnification), 4:180 (Pandemic Preparedness;
Management; and Recovery), 5:200 (Terms and Conditions of Employment and Dismissal), 5:330 (Sick Days, Vacation,
Holidays, and Leaves); 6:60 (Curriculum Content), 6:70 (Teaching About Religions), 7:90 (Release During School Hours)

Adopted: January 11, 2021

Big Hollow SD 38

6:20

6:20
1 of 1

Exhibit 13

bobgold
Text Box
Recommend to approve as written.  Policy is unchanged.



STUDENTS

7:20 Harassment of Students Prohibited

No person, including a School District employee or agent, or student, shall harass, intimidate, or bully a student on the basis of
actual or perceived: race; color; national origin; military status; unfavorable discharge status from military service; sex; sexual
orientation; gender identity; gender-related identity or expression; ancestry; age; religion; physical or mental disability; order of
protection status; status of being homeless; actual or potential marital or parental status, including pregnancy; association with a
person or group with one or more of the aforementioned actual or perceived characteristics; or any other distinguishing
characteristic. The District will not tolerate harassing, intimidating conduct, or bullying whether verbal, physical, sexual, or visual,
that affects the tangible benefits of education, that unreasonably interferes with a student’s educational performance, or that
creates an intimidating, hostile, or offensive educational environment. Examples of prohibited conduct include name-calling,
using derogatory slurs, stalking, sexual violence, causing psychological harm, threatening or causing physical harm, threatened
or actual destruction of property, or wearing or possessing items depicting or implying hatred or prejudice of one of the
characteristics stated above.

Sexual Harassment Prohibited

The District shall provide an educational environment free of verbal, physical, or other conduct or communications constituting
harassment on the basis of sex as defined and otherwise prohibited by State and federal law. See policies 2:265, Title IX
Sexual Harassment Grievance Procedure, and 2:260, Uniform Grievance Procedure.

Making a Report or Complaint

Students are encouraged to promptly report claims or incidences of bullying, intimidation, harassment, sexual harassment, or
any other prohibited conduct to the Nondiscrimination Coordinator, Building Principal, Assistant Building Principal, Dean of
Students, a Complaint Manager, or any employee with whom the student is comfortable speaking. A student may choose to
report to an employee of the student’s same gender.

Reports under this policy will be considered a report under Board policy 2:260, Uniform Grievance Procedure, and/or Board
policy 2:265, Title IX Sexual Harassment Grievance Procedure. The Nondiscrimination Coordinator and/or Complaint
Manager shall process and review the report according to the appropriate grievance procedure.

The Superintendent shall insert into this policy the names, office addresses, email addresses, and telephone numbers of the
District’s current Nondiscrimination Coordinator and Complaint Managers. The Nondiscrimination Coordinator also serves as
the District’s Title IX Coordinator.

Nondiscrimination Coordinator:
Robert B. Gold, Superintendent

26051 W. Nippersink Rd., Ingleside, IL 60041

bobgold@bighollow.us

847.740.1490

Complaint Managers:
Scott Whipple Christine Arndt

26051 W. Nippersink Rd., Ingleside, IL 60041 26051 W. Nippersink Rd., Ingleside, IL 60041

scottwhipple@bighollow.us christinearndt@bighollow.us
847.740.1490 847.740.1490

The Superintendent shall use reasonable measures to inform staff members and students of this policy by including:

1. For students, age-appropriate information about the contents of this policy in the District’s student handbook(s), on the
District’s website, and, if applicable, in any other areas where policies, rules, and standards of conduct are otherwise
posted in each school.  

2. For staff members, this policy in the appropriate employee handbook(s), if applicable, and/or in any other areas where
policies, rules, and standards of conduct are otherwise made available to staff.

Investigation Process

Any District employee who receives a report or complaint of harassment must promptly forward the report or complaint to the
Nondiscrimination Coordinator or a Complaint Manager. Any employee who fails to promptly comply may be disciplined, up to

7:20

7:20
1 of 3

Exhibit 13

bobgold
Text Box
Recommend to approve with adjustments as noted below.

bobgold
Callout
Update with new complaint manager:  Matthew McCulley



and including discharge.

Reports and complaints of harassment will be confidential to the greatest extent practicable, subject to the District’s duty to
investigate and maintain an educational environment that is productive, respectful, and free of unlawful discrimination, including
harassment.

For any report or complaint alleging sexual harassment that, if true, would implicate Title IX of the Education Amendments of
1972 (20 U.S.C. §1681 et seq.), the Nondiscrimination Coordinator or designee shall consider whether action under policy
2:265, Title IX Sexual Harassment Grievance Procedure, should be initiated.

For any other alleged student harassment that does not require action under policy 2:265, Title IX Sexual Harassment
Grievance Procedure, the Nondiscrimination Coordinator or a Complaint Manager or designee shall consider whether an
investigation under policies 2:260, Uniform Grievance Procedure, and/or 7:190, Student Behavior, should be initiated,
regardless of whether a written report or complaint is filed.

Reports That Involve Alleged Incidents of Sexual Abuse of a Child by School Personnel

An alleged incident of sexual abuse is an incident of sexual abuse of a child, as defined in 720 ILCS 5/11-9.1A(b), that is
alleged to have been perpetrated by school personnel, including a school vendor or volunteer, that occurred: on school grounds
during a school activity; or outside of school grounds or not during a school activity.

Any complaint alleging an incident of sexual abuse shall be processed and reviewed according to policy 5:90, Abused and
Neglected Child Reporting. In addition to reporting the suspected abuse, the complaint shall also be processed under policy
2:265, Title IX Sexual Harassment Grievance Procedure, or policy 2:260, Uniform Grievance Procedure.

Enforcement

Any District employee who is determined, after an investigation, to have engaged in conduct prohibited by this policy will be
subject to disciplinary action up to and including discharge. Any third party who is determined, after an investigation, to have
engaged in conduct prohibited by this policy will be addressed in accordance with the authority of the Board in the context of the
relationship of the third party to the District, e.g., vendor, parent, invitee, etc. Any District student who is determined, after an
investigation, to have engaged in conduct prohibited by this policy will be subject to disciplinary action, including but not limited
to, suspension and expulsion consistent with the behavior policy. Any person making a knowingly false accusation regarding
prohibited conduct will likewise be subject to disciplinary action.

Retaliation Prohibited

Retaliation against any person for bringing complaints or providing information about harassment is prohibited (see policies
2:260, Uniform Grievance Procedure, and 2:265, Title IX Sexual Harassment Grievance Procedure).

Students should report allegations of retaliation to the Building Principal, an administrator, the Nondiscrimination Coordinator,
and/or a Complaint Manager.

LEGAL REF.:        

20 U.S.C. §1681 et seq., Title IX of the Educational Amendments of 1972; 34 C.F.R. Part 106.

105 ILCS 5/10-20.12, 10-22.5, 5/27-1, and 5/27-23.7.

775 ILCS 5/1-101 et seq., Illinois Human Rights Act.

23 Ill.Admin.Code §1.240 and Part 200.

Davis v. Monroe County Bd. of Educ., 526 U.S. 629 (1999).

Franklin v. Gwinnett Co. Public Schs., 503 U.S. 60 (1992).

Gebser v. Lago Vista Independent Sch. Dist., 524 U.S. 274 (1998).

West v. Derby Unified Sch. Dist. No. 260, 206 F.3d 1358 (10th Cir. 2000).

CROSS REF.:          2:260 (Uniform Grievance Procedure), 2:265 (Title IX Sexual Harassment Grievance Procedure), 5:20
(Workplace Harassment Prohibited), 5:90 (Abused and Neglected Child Reporting), 7:10 (Equal Educational Opportunities),
7:180 (Prevention of and Response to Bullying, Intimidation, and Harassment), 7:185 (Teen Dating Violence Prohibited), 7:190
(Student Behavior), 7:240 (Conduct Code for Participants in Extracurricular Activities)

Adopted: October 13, 2020

7:20

7:20
2 of 3

Exhibit 13



Big Hollow SD 38
7:20

7:20
3 of 3

Exhibit 13



Document Status: Draft Update - New To District

7:30 Student Assignment
New/Unpublished Section

The Superintendent or designee shall assign students to classes. Homeless children shall be
assigned according to Board policy 6:140, Education of Homeless Children.PRESSPlus1

LEGAL REF.:

105 ILCS 5/10-21.3, 5/10-21.3a, and 5/10-22.5.

CROSS REF.: 4:170 (Safety), 6:30 (Organization of Instruction), 6:140 (Education of Homeless
Children)

PRESSPlus Comments

PRESSPlus 1.  This required policy is referred to in policy 7:40.

7:30

7:30
1 of 1

Exhibit 13

bobgold
Text Box
Recommend to approve as written.



Big Hollow School District 38 \ SECTION 8 - COMMUNITY RELATIONS \

Document Status: Draft Update
COMMUNITY RELATIONS

8:90 Parent Organizations and Booster Clubs

Parent organizations and booster clubs are invaluable resources to the District's schools. While
parent organizations and booster clubs have no administrative authority and cannot determine
District policy, the Board of Education welcomes their suggestions and assistance.

Parent organizations and booster clubs may be recognized by the Board and permitted to use the
District's name, a District school's name, or a District school's team name, or any logo attributable to
the District provided they first receive the Superintendent or designee's express written consent.
Consent to use one of the above-mentioned names or logos will generally be granted if the
organization or club is a 501(c)(3) that has submitted proof of its status and has by-laws containing
the following:

1. The organization's or club's name and purpose, such as, to enhance students' educational
experiences, to help meet educational needs of students, to provide extra athletic benefits to
students, to assist specific sports teams or academic clubs through financial support, or to
enrich extracurricular activities.

2. The rules and procedures under which it operates.
3. An agreement to adhere to all Board policies and administrative procedures.
4. An agreement not to engage in discrimination based on someone's innate characteristics or

membership in a suspect classification.
5. A statement that the District is not, and will not be, responsible for the organization's or club's

business or the conduct of its members, including on any organization or club websites or social
media accounts.PRESSPlus1

6. An agreement to maintain and protect its own finances.
7. A recognition that money given to a school cannot be earmarked for any particular expense.

Booster clubs may make recommendations, but cash or other valuable consideration must be
given to the District to use at its discretion. The Board of Education's legal obligation to comply
with Title IX by providing equal athletic opportunity for members of both genders will supersede
an organization or club's recommendation.

Permission to use one of the above-mentioned names or logos may be rescinded at any time and
does not constitute permission to act as the District's representative. At no time does the District
accept responsibility for the actions of any parent organization or booster club regardless of whether
it was recognized and/or permitted to use any of the above-mentioned names or logos. The
Superintendent shall designate an administrative staff member to serve as the recognized liaison to
parent organizations or booster clubs. The liaison will serve as a resource person and provide
information about school programs, resources, policies, problems, concerns, and emerging issues.
Building staff will be encouraged to participate in the organizations.

CROSS REF.: 8:80 (Gifts to the District)

ADOPTED:January 9, 2017

8:90

8:90
1 of 2

Exhibit 13

bobgold
Text Box
Recommend to approve as written.  Footnotes and references have been updated.



PRESSPlus Comments

PRESSPlus 1.  Updated in response to a five-year review. Issue 107, June 2021

8:90

8:90
2 of 2

Exhibit 13



Big Hollow School District 38 \ SECTION 2 - BOARD OF EDUCATION \

Document Status: Draft Update
BOARD OF EDUCATION

2:130 Board-Superintendent Relationship

The Board of Education directs, through policy, the Superintendent in his or her charge of the
administration of the District by delegating its authority to operate the District and provide leadership
to staff.PRESSPlus1 The Board of Education employs and evaluates the Superintendent and holds him
or her responsible for the operation of the District in accordance with Board policies and State and
federal law.

The Board-Superintendent relationship is based on mutual respect for their complementary roles.
The relationship requires clear communication of expectations regarding the duties and
responsibilities of both the Board and Superintendent.

The Board considers the recommendations of the Superintendent as the District's Chief Executive
Officer. The Board adopts policies necessary to provide general direction for the District and to
encourage achievement of District goals. The Superintendent develops plans, programs, and
procedures needed to implement the policies and directs the District's operations.

LEGAL REF.:

105 ILCS 5/10-16.7 and 5/10-21.4.

CROSS REF.: 3:40 (Superintendent)

ADOPTED:January 9, 2017

PRESSPlus Comments

PRESSPlus 1.  Updated in response to a five-year review. Statutory text, previously contained in the
sample policy's footnotes, was moved into the policy as a result of PRESS Advisory Board
feedback. Issue 107, June 2021

2:130

2:130
1 of 1

Exhibit 13

bobgold
Text Box
Recommend to approve as written.  



Big Hollow School District 38 \ SECTION 2 - BOARD OF EDUCATION \

Document Status: Draft Update
BOARD OF EDUCATION

2:240 Board Policy Development

The Board of Education governs using written policies. Written policies ensure legal compliance,
establish Board processes, articulate District ends, delegate authority, and define operating limits.
Board policies also provide the basis for monitoring progress toward District ends.

Policy Development

Anyone may propose new policies, changes to existing policies, or elimination of existing policies.
Staff suggestions should be processed through the Superintendent. Suggestions from all others
should be made to the Board President or the Superintendent.

The Superintendent is responsible for: (1) providing relevant policy information and data to the
Board, (2) notifying those who will implement or be affected by or required to implement a proposed
policy and obtaining their advice and suggestions, and (3) having policy recommendations drafted
into written form for Board deliberation. The Superintendent shall seek the counsel of the Board
attorney when appropriate.

Policy Adoption and Dissemination

Policies or policy revisions will not be adopted at the Board meeting at which they are first
introduced, except when: (1) appropriate for a consent agenda because no Board discussion is
required, or (2) necessary or prudent in order to meet emergency or special conditions or to be
legally compliant. Further Board consideration willmay be given at a subsequent meeting(s) and after
opportunity for community input. The adoption of a policy will serve to supersede all previously
adopted policies on the same topic.

The Board of Education policies are available for public inspection in the District's main office during
regular office hours. Copy requests should be made pursuant to Board policy 2:250, Access to
District's Public Records.

Board Policy Review and Monitoring

The Board of Education will periodically review its policies for relevancy, monitor its policies for
effectiveness, and consider whether any modifications are required.

Words Importing GenderPRESSPlus1

Throughout this policy manual, words importing the masculine and/or feminine gender include all
gender neutral/inclusive pronouns.

Superintendent Implementation

The Board will support any reasonable interpretation of Board of Education policy made by the
Superintendent. If reasonable minds differ, the Board will review the applicable policy and consider
the need for further clarification.

2:240

2:240
1 of 2

Exhibit 13

bobgold
Text Box
Recommend to approve as written.



In the absence of Board of Education policy, the Superintendent is authorized to take appropriate
action.

Suspension of Policies

The Board, by a majority vote of members present at any meeting, may temporarily suspend a
Board policy except those provisions that are controlled by law or contract. The failure to suspend
with a specific motion does not invalidate the Board action.

LEGAL REF.:

105 ILCS 5/10-20.5.

CROSS REF.: 2:150 (Committees), 2:250 (Access to District's Public Records), 3:40
(Superintendent)

PRESSPlus Comments

PRESSPlus 1.  Optional. Updated in response to subscriber feedback and evolving diversity, equity,
and inclusion work at IASB. Consult the board attorney to determine whether inclusion of a subhead
related to gender neutral/inclusive pronouns is appropriate for the district. This subhead’s text
mirrors language from the Ill. Statute on Statutes importing words applying the masculine gender to
include the female gender. See 5 ILCS 70/1.04.

For students, State law prohibits gender-based discrimination, including transgender and gender
non-conforming students. 775 ILCS 5/5-101(A)(11); 775 ILCS 5/1-103(O-1); and 23 Ill.Admin.Code
§1.240. Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. §1681) also prohibits exclusion
and discrimination on the basis of sex. 20 U.S.C. §1681(a). See also policy 7:10, Equal Educational
Opportunities.

For employees, the Equal Employment Opportunities Act (a/k/a Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of
1964) prohibits discrimination because of an individual’s sex, which includes sexual orientation and/or
transgender status. See 42 U.S.C. §2000e et seq., amended by The Lilly Ledbetter Fair Pay Act of
2009, Pub.L. 111-2; Bostock v. Clayton Cnty., 140 S.Ct. 1731 (2020); and Hively v. Ivy Tech, 853
F.3d 339 (7th Cir. 2017). See also policy 5:10, Equal Employment Opportunity and Minority
Recruitment. Issue 107, June 2021

2:240

2:240
2 of 2

Exhibit 13



Educational Support Personnel

5:270 Employment At-Will, Compensation, and Assignment

Employment At-Will

Unless otherwise specifically provided, District employment is at-will, meaning that employment may be terminated by the
District or employee at any time for any reason, other than a reason prohibited by law, or no reason at all. Nothing in Board of
Education policy is intended or should be construed as altering the employment at-will relationship.

Exceptions to employment at-will may include employees who are employed annually, have an employment contract, or are
otherwise granted a legitimate interest in continued employment. The Superintendent is authorized to make exceptions to
employing nonlicensed employees at-will but shall maintain a record of positions or employees who are not at-will.

Compensation

The Board of Education will determine salary and wages for educational support personnel. Increments are dependent on
evidence of continuing satisfactory performance. An employee covered by the overtime provisions in State or federal law shall
not work overtime without the prior authorization from the employee's immediate supervisor. Educational support personnel are
paid twice a month.

Assignment

The Superintendent is authorized to make assignments and transfers of educational support personnel.

LEGAL REF.:

105 ILCS 5/10-22.34 and 5/10-23.5.

CROSS REF.: 5:10 (Equal Employment Opportunity and Minority Recruitment) 5:35 (Compliance with the Fair Labor Standards
Act), 5:290 (Employment Termination and Suspensions)

Adopted: January 11, 2021

Big Hollow SD 38

5:270

5:270
1 of 1

Exhibit 13

bobgold
Text Box
Recommend to approve as written. Policy is unchanged.



5:310 ** New Section **

June 2019                                                                                                                              5:310

 

Educational Support Personnel

Compensatory Time-Off
This policy governs the use of compensatory time-off by employees who: (1) are covered by the overtime provisions of the Fair
Labor Standards Act, 29 U.S.C. §201 et seq., and (2) are not represented by an exclusive bargaining representative.

Employees may be given 1-1/2 hours of compensatory time-off in lieu of cash payment for each hour of overtime worked. Other
than as provided below, at no time may an employee’s accumulated compensatory time-off exceed 240 hours, which represents
compensation for 160 hours of overtime. An employee whose work regularly includes public safety, emergency response, or
seasonal activities may accumulate a maximum of 480 hours of compensatory time, which represents compensation for 320
hours of overtime. If an employee accrues the maximum number of compensatory time-off hours, the employee: (1) is paid for
any additional overtime hours worked, at the rate of one and one-half times the employee’s regular hourly rate of pay, and (2)
does not accumulate compensatory time-off until the employee uses an equal amount of accrued time-off.

An employee who has accrued compensatory time-off shall be permitted to use such time in at least half-day components
provided such requests do not unduly disrupt the District’s operations. The employee’s supervisor must approve a request to
use compensatory time-off.

Upon termination of employment, an employee will be paid for unused compensatory time at the higher of:

1. The average regular rate received by such employee during the last three years of employment; or
2. The final regular rate received by such employee.

Compensatory time-off is time during which the employee is not working and is, therefore, not counted as “hours worked” for
purposes of overtime compensation.

Implementation

The Superintendent or designee shall implement this policy in accordance with the FLSA. In the event of a conflict between the
policy and the FLSA, the latter shall control.

LEGAL REF.:        Fair Labor Standards Act, 29 U.S.C. §201 et seq.; 29 C.F.R. Part 553.

CROSS REF.:         5:35 (Compliance with the Fair Labor Standards Act), 5:185 (Family and Medical Leave), 5:270
(Employment At-Will, Compensation, and Assignment)

 

Big Hollow SD 38

5:310

5:310
1 of 1

Exhibit 13

bobgold
Text Box
Recommend to approve as written. 



105 ILCS 5/10-20.7b, 5/24-2, and 5/24-6.

330 ILCS 61/, Service Member Employment and Reemployment Rights Act.

820 ILCS 147, School Visitation Rights Act.

820 ILCS 154/, Child Bereavement Leave Act.

820 ILCS 180/, Victims’ Economic Security and Safety Act.

School Dist 151 v. ISBE, 154 Ill.App.3d 375 (1st Dist.  1987); Elder v. Sch. Dist. No.127 1/2, 60 Ill.App.2d 56 (1st Dist. 1965).

CROSS REF.:          5:180 (Temporary Illness or Temporary Incapacity), 5:185 (Family and Medical Leave), 5:250 (Leaves of
Absence)

Adopted: October 13, 2020

Big Hollow SD 38

5:330

5:330
3 of 3

Exhibit 13



Big Hollow School District 38 \ SECTION 6 - INSTRUCTION \

Document Status: 5-Year-Review - Needs Review
INSTRUCTION

6:100 Using Animals in the Educational Program

Animals may be brought into school facilities for educational purposes according to procedures
developed by the Superintendent assuring: (a) the animal is appropriately housed, humanely cared
for, and properly handled, and (b) students will not be exposed to a dangerous animal or an
unhealthy environment.

Animal Experiments

Experiments on living animals are prohibited; however, behavior studies that do not impair an
animal's health or safety are permissible.

Animal Dissection

The dissection of dead animals or parts of dead animals shall be allowed in the classroom only when
the dissection exercise contributes to or is a part of an illustration of pertinent study materials. All
dissection of animals shall be confined to the classroom and must comply with the School Code.

Students who object to performing, participating in, or observing the dissection of animals are
excused from classroom attendance without penalty during times when such activities are taking
place. No student will be penalized or disciplined for refusing to perform, participate in, or observe a
dissection. The Superintendent or designee shall inform students of: (1) their right to refrain from
performing, participating in, or observing dissection, and (2) which courses contain a dissection unit
and which of those courses offers an alternative project.

LEGAL REF.:

105 ILCS 5/2-3.122, 5/27-14, and 112/1 et seq.

CROSS REF.: 6:40 (Curriculum Development)

ADOPTED:January 9, 2017

6:100

6:100
1 of 1

Exhibit 13

bobgold
Text Box
Recommend to approve as written. Policy is unchanged.  Footnotes updated.



Big Hollow School District 38 \ SECTION 6 - INSTRUCTION \

Document Status: Draft Update
INSTRUCTION

6:145 Migrant Students

The Superintendent will develop and implement a program to address the needs of migrant children
in the District in accordance with federal law.PRESSPlus1

This program will include a means to:

1. Identify migrant students and assess their educational and related health and social needs.
2. Provide a full range of services to migrant students through appropriate local, State and federal

educational programs, including applicable Title I programs, special education, gifted education,
vocational education, language programs, counseling programs, and elective classes.

3. Provide migrant children with full and appropriate opportunities to meet the same challenging
State academic standards that all children are expected to meet.

4. Provide, to the extent feasible:  
a. aAdvocacy and outreach programs to migrant children and their families, including helping

such children and families gain access to other education, health, nutrition, and social
services, and

b. pProfessional development programs, including mentoring, for District staff.,
c. Family literacy programs, and
d. The integration of information technology into educational and related programs.

5. Provide programs, activities, and procedures for the engagement of parents/guardians and
family members of migrant students in an understandable format and language.

Migrant Education Program for Parent/Guardian and Family Member Engagement

Parents/guardians and family members of migrant students will be involved in and regularly consulted
about the development, implementation, operation, and evaluation of the migrant program.

Parents/guardians and family members of migrant students will receive instruction regarding their
role in improving the academic achievement of their children.

LEGAL REF.:

20 U.S.C. §6318.

20 U.S.C. §6391 et seq., Education of Migratory Children.

34 C.F.R. §200.810 et seq.

CROSS REF.: 6:170 (Title I Programs)

ADOPTED:January 9, 2017

PRESSPlus Comments

6:145

6:145
1 of 2

Exhibit 13

bobgold
Text Box
Recommend to approve as written. 



PRESSPlus 1.  Updated in response to a five-year review. Issue 107, June 2021

6:145

6:145
2 of 2

Exhibit 13



Big Hollow School District 38 \ SECTION 6 - INSTRUCTION \

Document Status: Draft Update
INSTRUCTION

6:160 English Learners

The District offers opportunities for resident English Learners to achieve at high levels in academic
subjects and to meet the same challenging State academic standards that all children are expected
to meet. The Superintendent or designee shall develop and maintain a program for English Learners
that will:

1. Assist all English Learners to achieve English proficiency, facilitate effective communication in
English, and encourage their full participation in school activities and programs as well as
promote participation by the parents/guardians of English Learners.

2. Appropriately identify students with limited English language proficiency.
3. Comply with State law regarding the Transitional Bilingual Educational Program (TBE) or

Transitional Program of Instruction (TPI), whichever is applicable.
4. Comply with any applicable State and federal requirements for the receipt of grant money for

English Learners and programs to serve them.
5. Determine the appropriate instructional program and environment for English Learners.
6. Annually assess the English proficiency of English Learners and monitor their progress in order

to determine their readiness for a mainstream classroom environment.
7. Include English Learners, to the extent required by State and federal law, in the District's

student assessment program to measure their achievement in reading/language arts and
mathematics.

8. Provide information to the parents/guardians of English Learners about: (1) the reasons for their
child's identification, (2) their child's level of English proficiency, (3) the method of instruction to
be used, (4) how the program will meet their child's needs, (5) how the program will specifically
help their child learn English and meet age-appropriate academic achievement standards for
grade promotion and graduation, (6) specific exit requirements of the program, (7) how the
program will meet their child's individualized education program, if applicable, and (8)
information on parent/guardian rights. Parents/guardians will be regularly apprised of their
child's progress and involvement will be encouraged.

Parent Involvement

Parents/guardians of English Learners will be informed how they can: (1) be involved in the
education of their children;, and (2) be active participants in assisting their children to attain English
proficiency, achieve at high levels within a well-rounded education, and meet the challenging State
academic standards expected of all students; and (3) participate and serve on the District’s
Transitional Bilingual Education Programs Parent Advisory Committee.PRESSPlus1

LEGAL REF.:

20 U.S.C. §§6312, 6314, 6315, and 6318.

20 U.S.C. §6801 et seq.

6:160

6:160
1 of 2

Exhibit 13

bobgold
Text Box
Recommend to approve as written. 



34 C.F.R. Part 200.

105 ILCS 5/14C-1 et seq.

23 Ill.Admin.Code Part 228.

CROSS REF.: 6:15 (School Accountability), 6:170 (Title I Programs), 6:340 (Student Testing and
Assessment Program)

ADOPTED:January 9, 2017

PRESSPlus Comments

PRESSPlus 1.  105 ILCS 5/14C-10 requires school districts to establish parent advisory
committees for transitional bilingual education programs. See 2:150-AP, Superintendent
Committees, available at PRESS Online by logging in at www.iasb.com. Issue 107, June 2021

6:160

6:160
2 of 2

Exhibit 13



Big Hollow School District 38 \ SECTION 6 - INSTRUCTION \

Document Status: 5-Year-Review - Needs Review
INSTRUCTION

6:170 Title I Programs

The Superintendent or designee shall pursue funding under Title I, Improving the Academic
Achievement of the Disadvantaged, of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act, to supplement
instructional services and activities in order to improve the educational opportunities of educationally
disadvantaged or deprived children.

All District schools, regardless of whether they receive Title I funds, shall provide services that,
taken as a whole, are substantially comparable. Teachers, administrators, and other staff shall be
assigned to schools in a manner that ensures equivalency among the District's schools. Curriculum
materials and instructional supplies shall be provided in a manner that ensures equivalency among
the District's schools.

Title I Parent and Family Engagement

The District maintains programs, activities, and procedures for the engagement of parents/guardians
and families of students receiving services, or enrolled in programs, under Title I. These programs,
activities, and procedures are described in District-level and School-level compacts.

District-Level Parent and Family Engagement Compact

The Superintendent or designee shall develop a District-Level Parent and Family Engagement
Compact according to Title I requirements. The District-Level Parent and Family Engagement
Compact shall contain: (1) the District's expectations for parent and family engagement, (2) specific
strategies for effective parent and family engagement activities to improve student academic
achievement and school performance, and (3) other provisions as required by federal law. The
Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the Compact is distributed to parents/guardians of
students receiving services, or enrolled in programs, under Title I.

School-Level Parent and Family Engagement Compact

Each Building Principal or designee shall develop a School-Level Parent and Family Engagement
Compact according to Title I requirements. This School-Level Parent and Family Engagement
Compact shall contain: (1) a process for continually involving parents/guardians in its development
and implementation, (2) how parents/guardians, the entire school staff, and students share the
responsibility for improved student academic achievement, (3) the means by which the school and
parents/guardians build and develop a partnership to help children achieve the State's high
standards, and (4) other provisions as required by federal law. Each Building Principal or designee
shall ensure that the Compact is distributed to parents/guardians of students receiving services, or
enrolled in programs, under Title I.

Incorporated
by Reference:6:170-AP1, E1 (District-Level Parent and Family Engagement Compact) and 6:170-
AP1, E2 (School-Level Parent and Family Engagement Compact)

LEGAL REF.:

6:170

6:170
1 of 2

Exhibit 13

bobgold
Text Box
Recommend to approve as written. Policy is unchanged.  Footnotes updated.



Title I of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act, 20 U.S.C. §6301-6514.

CROSS REF.: 2:260 (Uniform Grievance Procedure), 4:110 (Transportation), 5:190 (Teacher
Qualifications), 5:280 (Duties and Qualifications), 6:15 (School Accountability), 6:140 (Education of
Homeless Children), 6:145 (Migrant Students), 6:160 (English Learners), 7:10 (Equal Educational
Opportunities), 7:30 (Student Assignment), 7:60 (Residence), 7:100 (Health, Eye, and Dental
Examinations; Immunizations; and Exclusion of Students), 8:95 (Parental Involvement)

ADOPTED:January 9, 2017

6:170

6:170
2 of 2

Exhibit 13



Big Hollow School District 38 \ SECTION 6 - INSTRUCTION \

Document Status: Draft Update
INSTRUCTION

6:235 Access to Electronic Networks

Electronic networks, including the Internet, are a part of the District’s instructional program and
serve to promote educational excellence by facilitating resource sharing, innovation, and
communication.

The term electronic networks includes all of the District’s technology resources, including, but not
limited to:PRESSPlus1

1. The District’s local-area and wide-area networks, including wireless networks (Wi-Fi), District-
issued Wi-Fi hotspots, and any District servers or other networking infrastructure;

2. Access to the Internet or other online resources via the District’s networks or to any District-
issued online account from any computer or device, regardless of location;

3. District-owned or District-issued computers, laptops, tablets, phones, or similar devices.

The Superintendent shall develop an implementation plan for this policy and appoint system
administrator(s).

The School District is not responsible for any information that may be lost or damaged, or become
unavailable when using the network, or for any information that is retrieved or transmitted via the
Internet. Furthermore, the District will not be responsible for any unauthorized charges or fees
resulting from access to the Internet.

Curriculum and Appropriate Online Behavior

The use of the District's electronic networks shall: (1) be consistent with the curriculum adopted by
the District as well as the varied instructional needs, learning styles, abilities, and developmental
levels of the students, and (2) comply with the selection criteria for instructional materials and library
resource center materials. As required by federal law and Board policy 6:60, Curriculum Content,
students will be educated about appropriate online behavior, including but not limited to: (1)
interacting with other individuals on social networking websites and in chat rooms, and (2)
cyberbullying awareness and response. Staff members may, consistent with the Superintendent's
implementation plan, use the Internet throughout the curriculum.

The District's electronic network is part of the curriculum and is not a public forum for general use.

Acceptable Use

All use of the District's electronic networks must be: (1) in support of education and/or research, and
be in furtherance of the goals stated herein, or (2) for a legitimate school business purpose. Use is a
privilege, not a right. Students and staff membersUsers of the District’s electronic networks have no
expectation of privacy in any material that is stored on, transmitted, or received via the District’s
electronic networks or District computers. General rules for behavior and communications apply
when using electronic networks. The District's Internet Acceptable Use Agreement contains the
appropriate uses, ethics, and protocol. Electronic communications and downloaded material,

6:235

6:235
1 of 3

Exhibit 13

bobgold
Text Box
Recommend to approve as written. See highlighted explanations at the bottom of the page.



including files deleted from a user's account but not erased, may be monitored or read by school
officials.

Internet Safety

Technology protection measures shall be used on each District computer with Internet access. They
shall include a filtering device that protects against Internet access by both adults and minors to
visual depictions that are: (1) obscene, (2) pornographic, or (3) harmful or inappropriate for
students, as defined by federal law and as determined by the Superintendent or designee. The
Superintendent or designee shall enforce the use of such filtering devices. An administrator,
supervisor, or other authorized person may disable the filtering device for bona fide research or
other lawful purpose, provided the person receives prior permission from the Superintendent or
system administrator. The Superintendent or designee shall include measures in this policy's
implementation plan to address the following:

1. Ensure staff supervision of student access to online electronic networks,
2. Restrict student access to inappropriate matter as well as restricting access to harmful

materials,
3. Ensure student and staff privacy, safety, and security when using electronic communications,
4. Restrict unauthorized access, including "hacking" and other unlawful activities, and
5. Restrict unauthorized disclosure, use, and dissemination of personal identification information,

such as, names and addresses.

Authorization for Electronic Network Access

Each staff member must sign the District's Internet Acceptable Use Agreement as a condition for
using the District's electronic network. Each student and his or her parent(s)/guardian(s) must sign
the Agreementbefore being granted unsupervised use.

Confidentiality

All users of the District’s computers to access the Internet shall maintain the confidentiality of student
records. Reasonable measures to protect against unreasonable access shall be taken before
confidential student information is loaded onto the network.

Violations

The failure of any student or staff memberuserPRESSPlus2 to follow the terms of the District’s
administrative procedure, Acceptable Use of the District’s Electronic Networks, or this policy, will
result in the loss of privileges, disciplinary action, and/or appropriate legal action.

LEGAL REF.:

No Child Left Behind Act, 20 U.S.C. §6777.20 U.S.C. §7131, Elementary and Secondary Education
Act.

Children’s Internet Protection Act, 47 U.S.C. §254(h) and (l), Children’s Internet Protection Act.

Enhancing Education Through Technology Act, 20 U.S.C §6751 et seq.

47 C.F.R. Part 54, Subpart F, Universal Service Support for Schools and Libraries.

115 ILCS 5/14(c-5), Ill. Educational Labor Relations Act.

6:235

6:235
2 of 3

Exhibit 13



720 ILCS 5/26.5.

CROSS REF.: 5:100 (Staff Development Program), 5:170 (Copyright), 6:40 (Curriculum
Development), 6:60 (Curriculum Content), 6:210 (Instructional Materials), 6:220 (Bring Your Own
Technology (BYOT) Program; Responsible Use and Conduct), 6:230 (Library Media Program),
6:260 (Complaints About Curriculum, Instructional Materials, and Programs), 7:130 (Student Rights
and Responsibilities), 7:190 (Student Behavior), 7:310 (Restrictions on Publications; Elementary
Schools), 7:345 (Use of Educational Technologies; Student Data Privacy and Security)

ADOPTED:December 3, 2013

PRESSPlus Comments

PRESSPlus 1.  Updated in response to the expanded use of educational technologies in schools and
for other continuous improvements. Issue 107, June 2021

PRESSPlus 2.  This policy only requires staff and students to sign the Authorization; however, all
users of the District’s Electronic Networks, including board members and volunteers, are bound by
this policy and its implementing procedure and should be familiar with their content. The District’s
administrative procedure, 6:235-AP1, Acceptable Use of the District’s Electronic Networks (available
at PRESS Online by logging in at www.iasb.com), rather than this board policy, specifies
appropriate conduct, ethics, and protocol for Internet use. Issue 107, June 2021

6:235

6:235
3 of 3

Exhibit 13

bobgold
Highlight



Big Hollow School District 38 \ SECTION 6 - INSTRUCTION \

Document Status: Draft Update
INSTRUCTION

6:255 Assemblies and Ceremonies

Assemblies must be approved by the Superintendent or designee and be consistent with the
District's educational objectives.

The District shall not endorse or otherwise promote invocations, benedictions, and group prayers at
any school assembly, ceremony, or other school-sponsored activity.

LEGAL REF.:

Lee v. Weisman, 505 U.S. 577112 S.Ct. 2649 (1992).

Santa Fe Independent Sch.ool Dist.rict v. Doe, 530 U.S. 290120 S.Ct. 2266 (2000).

Jones v. Clear Creek Independent Sch.ool Dist.rict, 930 F.2d 416977 F.2d 963 (5th Cir.,
19911992), reh’g denied, 983 F.2d 234 (5th Cir., 1992) and cert. granted, judgement
vacateddenied, 505 U.S. 1215113 S.Ct. 2950 (1992), remand, 977 F.2d 963, reh’g denied, 983
F.2d 234 (5th Cir., 1992), and cert. denied, 508 U.S. 967 (1993).PRESSPlus1

CROSS REF.: 6:70 (Teaching About Religion), 6:80 (Teaching About Controversial Issues)

ADOPTED:January 9, 2017

PRESSPlus Comments

PRESSPlus 1.  The Legal References have been updated. Issue 107, June 2021

6:255

6:255
1 of 1

Exhibit 13

bobgold
Text Box
Recommend to approve as written. Policy is unchanged.  Legal references have been updated.



Big Hollow School District 38 \ SECTION 6 - INSTRUCTION \

Document Status: Draft Update
INSTRUCTION

6:260 Complaints About Curriculum, Instructional Materials, and Programs

Parents/guardians have the right to inspect any instructional material used as part of their child’s
educational curriculum pursuant to Board of Education policy 7:15, Student and Family Privacy
Rights.PRESSPlus1

Persons who believe that curriculum, instructional materials, or programs violate rights guaranteed
by any law or Board policy should file a complaint using Board policy 2:260, Uniform Grievance
Procedure. Persons with all other suggestions or complaints about curriculum, instructional
materials, andor programs should complete a cCurriculum oObjection form and/or use the Uniform
Grievance Procedure. A parent/guardian may request that his/her child be exempt from using a
particular instructional material or program by completing a cCurriculum oObjection form.

LEGAL REF.:

20 U.S.C. §1232h, Protection of Pupil Rights Amendment.

CROSS REF.: 2:260 (Uniform Grievance Procedure), 7:15 (Student and Family Privacy Rights),
8:110 (Public Suggestions and ConcernsComplaints)

ADOPTED:January 9, 2017

PRESSPlus Comments

PRESSPlus 1.  20 U.S.C. §1232h(c)(1)(C)(i). Updated in response to a five-year review. Issue 107,
June 2021

6:260

6:260
1 of 1

Exhibit 13

bobgold
Text Box
Recommend to approve as written. 



INSTRUCTION

6:340 Student Testing and Assessment Program

The District student assessment program provides information for determining individual student achievement and instructional
needs, curriculum and instruction effectiveness, and school performance measured against District student learning objectives
and statewide norms.

The Superintendent or designee shall manage the student assessment program that, at a minimum:

1. Administers to students all standardized assessments required by the Ill. State Board of Education (ISBE) and/or any other
appropriate assessment methods and instruments, including norm and criterion-referenced achievement tests, aptitude
tests, proficiency tests, and teacher-developed tests.

2. Informs students of the timelines and procedures applicable to their participation in every State assessment.
3. Provides each student’s parents/guardians with the results or scores of each State assessment. See policy 6:280,

Grading and Promotion.
4. Utilizes professional testing practices.

Overall student assessment data on tests required by State law will be aggregated by the District and reported, along with other
information, on the District’s annual report card. All reliable assessments administered by the District and scored by entities
outside of the District must be (1) reported to ISBE on its form by the 30th day of each school year, and (2) made publicly
available to parents/guardians of students. Board policy 7:340, Student Records, and its implementing procedures govern
recordkeeping and access issues.

LEGAL REF.:        

20 U.S.C. §1232g, Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act.

105 ILCS 10/, Illinois School Student Records Act.

105 ILCS 5/2-3.63, 5/2-3.64a-5, 5/10-17a, 5/22-82, and 5/27-1.

CROSS REF.:          6:15 (School Accountability), 6:280 (Grading and Promotion), 7:340 (Student Records)

Adopted: January 11, 2021

Big Hollow SD 38

6:340

6:340
1 of 1

Exhibit 13

bobgold
Text Box
Recommend to approve as written. 



STUDENTS

7:100 Health, Eye, and Dental Examinations; Immunizations; and Exclusion of Students

Required Health Examinations and Immunizations

A student's parents/guardians shall present proof that the student received a health examination, with proof of the immunizations
against, and screenings for, preventable communicable diseases, as required by the Illinois Department of Public Health (IDPH),
within one year prior to:

1. Entering kindergarten or the first grade;
2. Entering the sixthgrade; and
3. Enrolling in an Illinois school, regardless of the student's grade (including nursery school, special education, Head Start

programs operated by elementary or secondary schools, and students transferring into Illinois from out-of-state or out-of-
country).

Proof of immunization against meningococcal disease is required for students in grades 6 and 12.

As required by State law:

1. The required health examinations must be performed by a physician licensed to practice medicine in all of its branches, an
advanced practice registered nurse, or a physician assistant who has been delegated the performance of health
examinations by a supervising physician.

2. A diabetes screening is a required part of each health examination; diabetes testing is not required.
3. An age-appropriate developmental screening and an age-appropriate social and emotional screening are required parts

of each health examination. A student will not be excluded from school due to his or her parent/guardian’s failure to obtain
a developmental screening or a social and emotional screening.

a. If proof of the developmental screening or the social and emotional screening portions of the health examination are
not presented, qualified school support personnel may, with a parent/guardian's consent, offer the screenings to the
child.

b. Once a student presents proof that he or she received a developmental screening or a social and emotional
screening, the school may, with a parent/guardian's consent, make available appropriate school personnel to work
with the parent/guardian, child, and provider who signed the screening form to obtain any appropriate evaluations
and services.

4. Before admission and in conjunction with required physical examinations, parents/guardianss of children between the
ages of one and seven years must provide a statement from a physician that their child was risk-assessed or screened for
lead poisoning.

5. The IDPH will provide all students entering sixth grade and their parents/guardians information about the link between
human papillomavirus (HPV) and HPV-related cancers and the availability of the HPV vaccine.

6. The District will provide informational materials regarding influenza, influenza vaccinations, meningococcal disease, and
meningococcal vaccinations developed, provided, or approved by the IDPH when it provides information on
immunizations, infectious diseases, medications, or other school health issues to students’ parents/guardians.

Unless an exemption or extension applies, the, failure to comply with the above requirements by October 15 of the current school
year will result in the student's exclusion from school until the required health forms are presented to the District. New students
who register after October 15 of the current school year shall have 30 days following registration to comply with the health
examination and immunization regulations. If a medical reason prevents a student from receiving a required immunization by
October 15, the student must present, by October 15, an immunization schedule and a statement of the medical reasons causing
the delay. The schedule and statement of medical reasons must be signed by the physician, advanced practice registered
nurse, physician assistant, or local health department responsible for administering the immunizations.

A student transferring from out-of-state who does not have the required proof of immunizations by October 15 may attend
classes only if he or she has proof that an appointment for the required vaccinations is scheduled with a party authorized to
submit proof of the required vaccinations. If the required proof of vaccination is not submitted within 30 days after the student is
permitted to attend classes, the student may no longer attend classes until proof of the vaccinations is properly submitted.

Eye Examination

Parents/guardians are encouraged to have their children undergo an eye examination whenever health examinations are
required.

Parents/guardians of students entering kindergarten or an Illinois school for the first time shall present proof before October 15 of
the current school year that the student received an eye examination within one year prior to entry of kindergarten or the school.

7:100

7:100
1 of 2

Exhibit 13

bobgold
Text Box
Recommend to approve as written. 



A physician licensed to practice medicine in all of its branches or a licensed optometrist must perform the required eye
examination.

If a student fails to present proof by October 15, the school may hold the student's report card until the student presents proof: (1)
of a completed eye examination, or (2) that an eye examination will take place within 60 days after October 15. The
Superintendent or designee shall ensure that parents/guardians are notified of this eye examination requirement in compliance
with the rules of the IDPH. Schools shall not exclude a student from attending school due to failure to obtain an eye examination.

Dental Examination

All children in kindergarten and the second and sixth grades must present proof of having been examined by a licensed dentist
before May 15 of the current school year in accordance with rules adopted by the IDPH.

If a child in the second or sixth grade fails to present proof by May 15, the school may hold the child's report card until the child
presents proof: (1) of a completed dental examination, or (2) that a dental examination will take place within 60 days after May
15. The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that parents/guardians are notified of this dental examination requirement at
least 60 days before May 15 of each school year.

Exemptions

In accordance with rules adopted by the IDPH, a student will be exempted from this policy's requirements for:

1. Religious grounds, if the student’s parents/guardians present the IDPH’s Certificate of Religious Exemption form to the
Superintendent or designee. When a Certificate of Religious Exemption form is presented, the Superintendent or
designee shall immediately inform the parents/guardians of exclusion procedures pursuant to Board policy 7:280,
Communicable and Chronic Infectious Disease, and State rules if there is an outbreak of one or more diseases from
which the student is not protected.

2. Health examination or immunization requirements on medical grounds, if the examining physician, advanced practice
registered nurse, or physician assistant provides written verification.

3. Eye examination requirement, if the student’s parents/guardians show an undue burden or lack of access to a physician
licensed to practice medicine in all of its branches who provides eye examinations or a licensed optometrist.

4. Dental examination requirement, if the student’s parents/guardians show an undue burden or a lack of access to a dentist.

Homeless Child

Any homeless child shall be immediately admitted, even if the child or child's parent/guardian is unable to produce immunization
and health records normally required for enrollment. Board of Education policy 6:140, Education of Homeless Children, governs
the enrollment of homeless children.

LEGAL REF.:

42 U.S.C. §11431 et seq., McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act

105 ILCS 5/27-8.1 and 45/1-20.

410 ILCS 45/7.1 and 315/2e.

23 Ill.Admin.Code §1.530.

77 Ill.Admin.Code Part 665.

77 Ill.Admin.Code Part 690.

CROSS REF.: 6:30 (Organization of Instruction), 6:140 (Education of Homeless Children), 6:180 (Extended Instructional
Programs), 7:50 (School Admissions and Student Transfers To and From Non-District Schools), 7:280 (Communicable and
Chronic Infectious Disease)

Adopted: January 11, 2021

Big Hollow SD 38

7:100

7:100
2 of 2

Exhibit 13



STUDENTS

7:140 Search and Seizure

In order to maintain order and security in the schools, school authorities are authorized to conduct reasonable searches of
school property and equipment, as well as of students and their personal effects. "School authorities" includes school liaison
police officers.

School Property and Equipment as well as Personal Effects Left There by Students

School authorities may inspect and search school property and equipment owned or controlled by the school (such as, lockers,
desks, and parking lots), as well as personal effects left there by a student, without notice to or the consent of the student.
Students have no reasonable expectation of privacy in these places or areas or in their personal effects left there.

The Superintendent may request the assistance of law enforcement officials to conduct inspections and searches of lockers,
desks, parking lots, and other school property and equipment for illegal drugs, weapons, or other illegal or dangerous
substances or materials, including searches conducted through the use of specially trained dogs.

Students

School authorities may search a student and/or the student's personal effects in the student's possession (such as, purses,
wallets, knapsacks, book bags, lunch boxes, etc.) when there is a reasonable ground for suspecting that the search will produce
evidence the particular student has violated or is violating either the law or the District's student conduct rules. The search itself
must be conducted in a manner that is reasonably related to its objective and not excessively intrusive in light of the student's
age and sex, and the nature of the infraction.

When feasible, the search should be conducted as follows:

1. Outside the view of others, including students,
2. In the presence of a school administrator or adult witness, and
3. By a certificated employee or liaison police officer of the same sex as the student.

Immediately following a search, a written report shall be made by the school authority who conducted the search, and given to the
Superintendent.

Seizure of Property

If a search produces evidence that the student has violated or is violating either the law or the District's policies or rules, such
evidence may be seized and impounded by school authorities, and disciplinary action may be taken. When appropriate, such
evidence may be transferred to law enforcement authorities.

Notification Regarding Student Accounts or Profiles on Social Networking Websites

The Superintendent or designee shall notify students and their parents/guardians of each of the following in accordance with the
Right to Privacy in the School Setting Act, 105 ILCS 75/:

1. School officials may not request or require a student or his or her parent/guardian to provide a password or other related
account information to gain access to the student's account or profile on a social networking website.

2. School officials may conduct an investigation or require a student to cooperate in an investigation if there is specific
information about activity on the student's account on a social networking website that violates a school disciplinary rule or
policy. In the course of an investigation, the student may be required to share the content that is reported in order to allow
school officials to make a factual determination.

LEGAL REF.:

105 ILCS 5/10-20.14, 5/10-22.6, and 5/10-22.10a.

Right to Privacy in the School Setting Act, 105 ILCS 75/.

Cornfield v. Consolidated High School Dist. No. 230, 991 F.2d 1316 (7th Cir. 1993).

People v. Dilworth, 169 Ill.2d 195 (1996), cert. denied, 116 S.Ct. 1692 (1996).

People v. Pruitt, 278 Ill.App.3d 194 (1st Dist. 1996), app. denied, 667 N.E. 2d 1061 (Ill.App.1, 1996).

T.L.O. v. New Jersey, 469 U.S. 325 (1985).

Vernonia School Dist. 47J v. Acton, 515 U.S. 646 (1995).

7:140

7:140
1 of 2

Exhibit 13

bobgold
Text Box
Recommend to approve as written. 



Safford Unified School Dist. No. 1 v. Redding, 557 U.S. 364 (2009).

CROSS REF.: 7:130 (Student Rights and Responsibilities), 7:150 (Agency and Police Interviews), 7:190 (Student Behavior)

Adopted: January 11, 2021

Big Hollow SD 38

7:140

7:140
2 of 2

Exhibit 13



STUDENTS

7:180 Prevention of and Response to Bullying, Intimidation, and Harassment

Bullying, intimidation, and harassment diminish a student’s ability to learn and a school’s ability to educate. Preventing students
from engaging in these disruptive behaviors and providing all students equal access to a safe, non-hostile learning environment
are important District goals.

Bullying on the basis of actual or perceived race, color, national origin, military status, unfavorable discharge status from the
military service, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, gender-related identity or expression, ancestry, age, religion, physical or
mental disability, order of protection status, status of being homeless, or actual or potential marital or parental status, including
pregnancy, association with a person or group with one or more of the aforementioned actual or perceived characteristics, or
any other distinguishing characteristic is prohibited in each of the following situations:

1. During any school-sponsored education program or activity.
2. While in school, on school property, on school buses or other school vehicles, at designated school bus stops waiting for

the school bus, or at school-sponsored or school-sanctioned events or activities.
3. Through the transmission of information from a school computer, a school computer network, or other similar electronic

school equipment.
4. Through the transmission of information from a computer that is accessed at a nonschool-related location, activity, function,

or program or from the use of technology or an electronic device that is not owned, leased, or used by a school district or
school if the bullying causes a substantial disruption to the educational process or orderly operation of a school. This item
(4) applies only in cases in which a school administrator or teacher receives a report that bullying through this means has
occurred and it does not require a district or school to staff or monitor any nonschool-related activity, function, or program.

Definitions from 105 ILCS 5/27-23.7

Bullying includes cyber-bullying and means any severe or pervasive physical or verbal act or conduct, including
communications made in writing or electronically, directed toward a student or students that has or can be reasonably predicted
to have the effect of one or more of the following:

1. Placing the student or students in reasonable fear of harm to the student’s or students’ person or property;
2. Causing a substantially detrimental effect on the student’s or students’ physical or mental health;
3. Substantially interfering with the student’s or students’ academic performance; or
4. Substantially interfering with the student’s or students’ ability to participate in or benefit from the services, activities, or

privileges provided by a school.

Cyber-bullying means bullying through the use of technology or any electronic communication, including without limitation any
transfer of signs, signals, writing, images, sounds, data, or intelligence of any nature transmitted in whole or in part by a wire,
radio, electromagnetic system, photo-electronic system, or photo-optical system, including without limitation electronic mail,
Internet communications, instant messages, or facsimile communications. Cyber-bullying includes the creation of a webpage or
weblog in which the creator assumes the identity of another person or the knowing impersonation of another person as the
author of posted content or messages if the creation or impersonation creates any of the effects enumerated in the definition of
bullying. Cyber-bullying also includes the distribution by electronic means of a communication to more than one person or the
posting of material on an electronic medium that may be accessed by one or more persons if the distribution or posting creates
any of the effects enumerated in the definition of bullying.

Restorative measures means a continuum of school-based alternatives to exclusionary discipline, such as suspensions and
expulsions, that: (i) are adapted to the particular needs of the school and community, (ii) contribute to maintaining school safety,
(iii) protect the integrity of a positive and productive learning climate, (iv) teach students the personal and interpersonal skills they
will need to be successful in school and society, (v) serve to build and restore relationships among students, families, schools,
and communities, and (vi) reduce the likelihood of future disruption by balancing accountability with an understanding of
students’ behavioral health needs in order to keep students in school.

School personnel means persons employed by, on contract with, or who volunteer in a school district, including without limitation
school and school district administrators, teachers, school guidance counselors, school social workers, school counselors,
school psychologists, school nurses, cafeteria workers, custodians, bus drivers, school resource officers, and security guards.

Bullying Prevention and Response Plan

The Superintendent or designee shall develop and maintain a bullying prevention and response plan that advances the District’s
goal of providing all students with a safe learning environment free of bullying and harassment. This plan must be consistent with
the following requirements:

1. Using the definition of bullying as provided in this policy, the Superintendent or designee shall emphasize to the school

7:180

7:180
1 of 3

Exhibit 13

bobgold
Text Box
Recommend to approve as written, with noted change below. 



community that: (1) the District prohibits bullying, and (2) all students should conduct themselves with a proper regard for
the rights and welfare of other students. This may include a process for commending or acknowledging students for
demonstrating appropriate behavior.

2. Bullying is contrary to State law and the policy of this District. However, nothing in the District’s bullying prevention and
response plan is intended to infringe upon any right to exercise free expression or the free exercise of religion or
religiously based views protected under the First Amendment to the U.S. Constitution or under Section 3 of Article I of the
Illinois Constitution.

3. Students are encouraged to immediately report bullying. A report may be made orally or in writing to the Nondiscrimination
Coordinator, Building Principal, Assistant Building Principal, Dean of Students, a Complaint Manager, or any staff member
with whom the student is comfortable speaking. Anyone, including staff members and parents/guardians, who has
information about actual or threatened bullying is encouraged to report it to the District named officials or any staff
member. The District named officials and all staff members are available for help with a bully or to make a report about
bullying. Anonymous reports are also accepted.

Nondiscrimination Coordinator:
Robert B. Gold, Superintendent

26051 W. Nippersink Rd., Ingleside, IL 60041

bobgold@bighollow.us

847.740.1490

Complaint Managers:
Scott Whipple Christine Arndt

26051 W. Nippersink Rd., Ingleside, IL 60041 26051 W. Nippersink Rd., Ingleside, IL 60041

scottwhipple@bighollow.us christinearndt@bighollow.us
847.740.1490 847.740.1490

4. Consistent with federal and State laws and rules governing student privacy rights, the Superintendent or designee shall
promptly inform parent(s)/guardian(s) of all students involved in an alleged incident of bullying and discuss, as appropriate,
the availability of social work services, counseling, school psychological services, other interventions, and restorative
measures.

5. The Superintendent or designee shall promptly investigate and address reports of bullying, by, among other things:

a. Making all reasonable efforts to complete the investigation within 10 school days after the date the report of the
incident of bullying was received and taking into consideration additional relevant information received during the
course of the investigation about the reported incident of bullying.

b. Involving appropriate school support personnel and other staff persons with knowledge, experience, and training on
bullying prevention, as deemed appropriate, in the investigation process.

c. Notifying the Building Principal or school administrator or designee of the report of the incident of bullying as soon as
possible after the report is received.

d. Consistent with federal and State laws and rules governing student privacy rights, providing parents and guardians of
the students who are parties to the investigation information about the investigation and an opportunity to meet with
the principal or school administrator or his or her designee to discuss the investigation, the findings of the
investigation, and the actions taken to address the reported incident of bullying.

The Superintendent or designee shall investigate whether a reported act of bullying is within the permissible scope of the
District’s jurisdiction and shall require that the District provide the victim with information regarding services that are
available within the District and community, such as counseling, support services, and other programs.

6. The Superintendent or designee shall use interventions to address bullying, which may include, but are not limited to,
school social work services, restorative measures, social-emotional skill building, counseling, school psychological
services, and community-based services.

7. A reprisal or retaliation against any person who reports an act of bullying is prohibited. A student’s act of reprisal or
retaliation will be treated as bullying for purposes of determining any consequences or other appropriate remedial
actions.

8. A student will not be punished for reporting bullying or supplying information, even if the District’s investigation concludes
that no bullying occurred. However, knowingly making a false accusation or providing knowingly false information will be
treated as bullying for purposes of determining any consequences or other appropriate remedial actions.

9. The District’s bullying prevention and response plan must be based on the engagement of a range of school stakeholders,

7:180

7:180
2 of 3

Exhibit 13

bobgold
Callout
Update with new complaint manager:  Matthew McCulley



including students and parents/guardians.
10. The Superintendent or designee shall post this policy on the District’s website, if any, and include it in the student

handbook, and, where applicable, post it where other policies, rules, and standards of conduct are currently posted. The
policy must be distributed annually to parents/guardians, students, and school personnel (including new employees when
hired), and must also be provided periodically throughout the school year to students and faculty.

11. The Superintendent or designee shall assist the Board with its evaluation and assessment of this policy’s outcomes and
effectiveness. This process shall include, without limitation:

a. The frequency of victimization;
b. Student, staff, and family observations of safety at a school;
c. Identification of areas of a school where bullying occurs;
d. The types of bullying utilized; and
e. Bystander intervention or participation.

The evaluation process may use relevant data and information that the District already collects for other purposes. The
Superintendent or designee must post the information developed as a result of the policy evaluation on the District’s
website, or if a website is not available, the information must be provided to school administrators, Board members,
school personnel, parents/guardians, and students.

12. The District’s bullying prevention plan must be consistent with other Board policies.
13. The Superintendent or designee shall fully inform staff members of the District’s goal to prevent students from engaging in

bullying and the measures being used to accomplish it. This includes each of the following:

a. Communicating the District’s expectation and State law requirement that teachers and other certificated or licensed
employees maintain discipline.

b. Establishing the expectation that staff members: (1) intervene immediately to stop a bullying incident that they
witness or immediately contact building security and/or law enforcement if the incident involves a weapon or other
illegal activity, (2) report bullying, whether they witness it or not, to an administrator, and (3) inform the administration
of locations on school grounds where additional supervision or monitoring may be needed to prevent bullying.

c. Where appropriate in the staff development program, providing strategies to staff members to effectively prevent
bullying and intervene when it occurs.

d. Establishing a process for staff members to fulfill their obligation to report alleged acts of bullying.

LEGAL REF.:        

405 ILCS 49/, Children’s Mental Health Act.

105 ILCS 5/10-20.14, 5/24-24, and 5/27-23.7.

23 Ill.Admin.Code §§1.240 and §1.280.

CROSS REF.:          2:240 (Board Policy Development), 2:260 (Uniform Grievance Procedure), 2:265 (Title IX Sexual
Harassment Grievance Procedure), 4:170 (Safety), 5:230 (Maintaining Student Discipline), 6:60 (Curriculum Content), 6:65
(Student Social and Emotional Development), 6:235 (Access to Electronic Networks), 7:20 (Harassment of Students
Prohibited), 7:185 (Teen Dating Violence Prohibited), 7:190 (Student Behavior), 7:220 (Bus Conduct), 7:230 (Misconduct by
Students with Disabilities), 7:240 (Conduct Code for Participants in Extracurricular Activities), 7:285 (Food Allergy Management
Program), 7:310 (Restrictions on Publications; Elementary Schools)

Adopted: October 13, 2020

Big Hollow SD 38

7:180

7:180
3 of 3

Exhibit 13



Big Hollow School District 38 \ SECTION 7 - STUDENTS \

Document Status: 5-Year-Review - Needs Review
STUDENTS

7:220 Bus Conduct

All students must follow the District's School Bus Safety Rules.

School Bus Suspensions

The Superintendent, or any designee as permitted in the School Code, is authorized to suspend a
student from riding the school bus for up to 10 consecutive school days for engaging in gross
disobedience or misconduct, including but not limited to, the following:

1. Prohibited student conduct as defined in Board of Education policy, 7:190, Student Behavior.
2. Willful injury or threat of injury to a bus driver or to another rider.
3. Willful and/or repeated defacement of the bus.
4. Repeated use of profanity.
5. Repeated willful disobedience of a directive from a bus driver or other supervisor.
6. Such other behavior as the Superintendent or designee deems to threaten the safe operation of

the bus and/or its occupants.

If a student is suspended from riding the bus for gross disobedience or misconduct on a bus, the
Board of Education may suspend the student from riding the school bus for a period in excess of 10
days for safety reasons. The District's regular suspension procedures shall be used to suspend a
student's privilege to ride a school bus.

Academic Credit for Missed Classes During School Bus Suspension

A student suspended from riding the bus who does not have alternate transportation to school shall
have the opportunity to complete or make up work for equivalent academic credit. It shall be the
responsibility of the student's parent or guardian to notify the school that the student does not have
alternate transportation.

Electronic Recordings on School Buses

Electronic visual and audio recordings may be used on school buses to monitor conduct and to
promote and maintain a safe environment for students and employees when transportation is
provided for any school related activity. Notice of electronic recordings shall be displayed on the
exterior of the vehicle's entrance door and front interior bulkhead in compliance with State law and
the rules of the Illinois Department of Transportation, Division of Traffic Safety.

Students are prohibited from tampering with electronic recording devices. Students who violate this
policy shall be disciplined in accordance with the Board's discipline policy and shall reimburse the
School District for any necessary repairs or replacement.

LEGAL REF.:

Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act, 20 U.S.C. §1232g; 34 C.F.R. Part 99.

7:220

7:220
1 of 2

Exhibit 13

bobgold
Text Box
Recommend to approve as written. 



105 ILCS 5/10-20.14, 5/10-22.6, and 10/.

720 ILCS 5/14-3(m).

23 Ill.Admin.Code Part 375, Student Records.

CROSS REF.: 4:110 (Transportation), 4:170 (Safety), 7:130 (Student Rights and Responsibilities),
7:170 (Vandalism), 7:190 (Student Behavior), 7:200 (Suspension Procedures), 7:230 (Misconduct
by Students with Disabilities), 7:340 (Student Records)

ADOPTED:June 13, 2016

7:220

7:220
2 of 2

Exhibit 13



Big Hollow School District 38 \ SECTION 7 - STUDENTS \

Document Status: 5-Year-Review - Needs Review
STUDENTS

7:230 Misconduct by Students with Disabilities

Behavioral Interventions

Behavioral interventions shall be used with students with disabilities to promote and strengthen
desirable behaviors and reduce identified inappropriate behaviors. The Board of Education will
establish and maintain a committee to develop, implement, and monitor procedures on the use of
behavioral interventions for children with disabilities.

Discipline of Special Education Students

The District shall comply with the Individuals With Disabilities Education Improvement Act of 2004
and the Illinois State Board of Education's Special Education rules when disciplining special
education students. No special education student shall be expelled if the student's particular act of
gross disobedience or misconduct is a manifestation of his or her disability.

LEGAL REF.:

Individuals With Disabilities Education Improvement Act of 2004, 20 U.S.C. §§1412, 1413, and 1415.

Gun-Free Schools Act, 20 U.S.C. §7151 et seq.

34 C.F.R. §§300.101, 300.530 - 300.536.

105 ILCS 5/10-22.6 and 5/14-8.05.

23 Ill.Admin.Code §226.400.

Honig v. Doe, 108 S.Ct. 592 (1988).

CROSS REF.: 2:150 (Committees), 6:120 (Education of Children with Disabilities), 7:130 (Student
Rights and Responsibilities), 7:190 (Student Behavior), 7:200 (Suspension Procedures), 7:210
(Expulsion Procedures), 7:220 (Bus Conduct)

ADOPTED:January 21, 2014

7:230

7:230
1 of 1

Exhibit 13

bobgold
Text Box
Recommend to approve as written. 



Big Hollow School District 38 \ SECTION 7 - STUDENTS \

Document Status: Draft Update
STUDENTS

7:280 Communicable and Chronic Infectious Disease

A student with or carrying a communicable and/or chronic infectious disease has all rights, privileges,
and services provided by law and the Board's policies. The Superintendent will develop procedures
to safeguard these rights while managing health and safety concerns.

LEGAL REF.:

105 ILCS 5/10-21.11.

410 ILCS 315/2a.PRESSPlus1

23 Ill.Admin.Code §§ 1.610 and 226.300.

77 Ill.Admin.Code Part 690.

Individuals With Disabilities Education Act, 20 U.S.C. §1400 et seq., Individuals With Disabilities
Education Improvement Act of 2004.

Rehabilitation Act, Section 504, 29 U.S.C. §794(a), Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Section 504.

ADMIN PROC.:7:280-AP (Managing Students with Communicable or Infectious Disease)

ADOPTED:January 9, 2017

PRESSPlus Comments

PRESSPlus 1.  Repealed by P.A. 98-353. Issue 107, June 2021 

7:280

7:280
1 of 1

Exhibit 13

bobgold
Text Box
Recommend to approve as written. 



STUDENTS

7:300 Extracurricular Athletics

Student participation in school-sponsored extracurricular athletic activities is contingent upon the following:

1. The student must meet the academic criteria set forth in Board policy 6:190, Extracurricular and Co-Curricular Activities.
2. A parent/guardian of the student must provide written permission for the student's participation, giving the District full

waiver of responsibility of the risks involved.
3. The student must present a current certificate of physical fitness issued by a licensed physician, an advanced practice

registered nurse, or a physician assistant. The Pre-Participation Physical Examination Form, offered by the Illinois
High School Association and the Illinois Elementary School Association, is the preferred certificate of physical fitness.

4. The student must show proof of accident insurance coverage either by a policy purchased through the District-approved
insurance plan or a parent/guardian written statement that the student is covered under a family insurance plan.

5. The student must agree to follow all conduct rules and the coaches' instructions.
6. The student and his or her parents/guardians must: (a) comply with the eligibility rules of, and complete any forms required

by, any sponsoring association (such as, the Illinois Elementary School Association, the Illinois High School Association,
or the Southern Illinois Junior High School Athletic Association), and (b) complete all forms required by the District
including, without limitation, signing an acknowledgment of receiving information about the Board's concussion policy
7:305, Student Athlete Concussions and Head Injuries.

7. Student registration fees must be paid by the established deadline.
8. Student extra-curricular activity participation fees must be paid by the established deadline.

The Superintendent or designee (1) is authorized to impose additional requirements for a student to participate in extracurricular
athletics, provided the requirements comply with Board policy 7:10, Equal Educational Opportunities, and (2) shall maintain the
necessary records to ensure student compliance with this policy.

LEGAL REF.:

105 ILCS 5/10-20.30, 5/10-20.54, 5/22-80, and 25/2.

23 Ill.Admin.Code §1.530(b).

CROSS REF.: 4:100 (Insurance Management), 4:170 (Safety), 6:190 (Extracurricular and Co-Curricular Activities), 7:10 (Equal
Educational Opportunities), 7:20 (Harassment of Students Prohibited), 7:240 (Conduct Code for Participants in Extracurricular
Activities), 7:305 (Student Concussions and Head Injuries), 7:340 (Student Records)

Adopted: January 11, 2021

Big Hollow SD 38

7:300

7:300
1 of 1

Exhibit 13

bobgold
Text Box
Recommend to approve as written. 



 

8:25 Page 1 of 1 
©2018 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service 

Illinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved. 

Please review this material with your school board attorney before use. 

August 2021 2:270 

 

School Board 

Use of District’s Trademarks, Logos, Tradenames, And Other District Intellectual 
Property  

 

Third parties are prohibited from using the District’s trademarks, logos, tradenames, imagery/graphics, 

and other protected intellectual property for personal gain without the express written permission of the 

Board or its authorized designee. Third parties include but are not limited to individuals, parent 

organizations, booster clubs, political candidates, Board of Education candidates, and commercial 

enterprises. 

 

The District reserves the right to make such permission contingent on the third party’s continued 

compliance with expectations or conditions set forth by the Board or its designee. Permission to use 

any of the District’s trademarks, logos, tradenames, imagery/graphics, and other protected intellectual 

property may be rescinded at any time and does not constitute permission to act as the District’s 

representative. At no time does the District accept responsibility for the actions of any individual or 

organization, regardless of whether such individual or organization was permitted to use any of the 

above-mentioned intellectual property of the District. 

 

The District reserves the right to take legal action to prevent or stop any non-permitted use or non-

compliant use of the District’s intellectual property. 

 

CROSS REF.:  

8:25 (Advertising and Distributing Materials in Schools Provided by Non-School Related Entities) 

8:90 (Parent Organizations and Booster Clubs) 

723559_3 

Exhibit 14



06-07 07-08 08-09 09-10 10-11 11-12 12-13 13-14 14-15 15-16 16-17 17-18 18-19 19-20 20-21 21-22

 

ECH 0 27 40 28 31 28 29 27 24 51 61 60 57 44 36 51

KG 165 161 177 205 164 192 185 183 194 193 173 187 179 186 163 162

1 164 190 173 193 212 177 192 204 189 203 192 166 178 178 173 173

2 184 160 189 171 194 212 178 192 205 184 201 188 170 187 155 176

3 164 174 167 192 176 196 213 183 160 192 190 199 195 172 180 167

4 142 164 174 166 199 175 187 217 178 178 200 191 199 200 172 192

5 145 147 160 176 170 199 182 191 213 181 179 193 202 209 190 173

6 142 150 153 172 189 174 200 182 195 205 190 187 198 208 205 193

7 126 135 142 164 179 185 176 198 176 183 208 186 192 200 203 212

8 119 134 141 148 167 170 183 183 190 176 184 207 187 196 189 203

CCIP 0 40 39 35 31 36 33 19 20 8 12 10 8 0 0 0

Outsource 88 19 16 22 29 29 32 29 31 31 12 15 14 12 13 14

Total 1439 1501 1571 1672 1741 1773 1790 1808 1775 1785 1802 1789 1779 1792 1679 1716

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

1800

2000

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16

Enrollment History 2006-2022

1439
1501

1571

1672 1773

1790 1808

1775 1785

1802 1789

1779

1792

06-07     07-08     08-09     09-10     10-11     11-12     12-13     13-14     14-15     15-16     16-17     17-18    18-19      19-20      20-21        21-22

Big Hollow School District Enrollment  2006-2022

1741

beginning 19-20 CCIP included in grade level numbers

1679 1716

Exhibit 15



Exhibit 16



August 2021 Employment Report

Approve employment of William Reyes as Transportation Driver, effective August 16, 2021.

Approve employment of Jacqueline Bezak, Student Services Administrative Assistant, effective
August 24, 2021.

Approve the employment of Barbara Gomez, Primary Music Teacher, effective August 18, 2021.

Approve the employment of Kim Hanson, 5-8 Electives Teacher, effective August 23. 2021.

Approve the employment of Bridget Schuler-Beck, Elementary Paraprofessional, effective
September 7, 2021.

Approve the employment of Reyna Reyes-Salazar, Food Service, effective September 1, 2021.

Approve the employment of Catherine Polglaze, 8th Grade Math Teacher, effective September
1, 2021.

Approve the employment of Lindsey DeBello as Transportation Driver, effective September 13,
2021.

Approve the employment of Kim Mampe as Health Aide, effective September 13, 2021.

Approve the employment of Colleen Davidson as Boys Soccer coach, effective September 7,
2021.

Approve the FMLA for Michael Schneider, Middle School Health Teacher, effective December 2,
2021-January 3, 2022.

Approve the employment of Susan Haas as Elementary Lunch Monitor, effective September 13,
2021.

Approve the employment of Nicole Maddaleni, Primary Lunch Monitor, effective August 23,
2021.

Approve the employment of Charlinda Skornia, Primary Lunch Monitor, effective September 13,
2021.

Exhibit 17



Exhibit 17

melissamorley
Text Box



Exhibit 17

melissamorley
Text Box



Exhibit 17

melissamorley
Text Box



Exhibit 17

melissamorley
Text Box



Exhibit 17

melissamorley
Text Box



Exhibit 17

melissamorley
Text Box



Exhibit 17

melissamorley
Text Box



Exhibit 17

melissamorley
Text Box



Exhibit 17

melissamorley
Text Box



Exhibit 17

melissamorley
Text Box



Exhibit 17



Exhibit 17

melissamorley
Text Box



Exhibit 17

melissamorley
Text Box



Exhibit 17

melissamorley
Text Box



Date:  September 8, 2021

To:  Big Hollow Federation of Teachers union negotiation team

From:  Big Hollow School Board negotiation team

Based on discussions both in-person and through email, we have included below what we feel
is a final draft of a memorandum of understanding.  Please see the items below.

1. Sick Leave
a. For employees who are infected with COVID-19 at work, have a “close contact”

exposure to COVID- 19 at work that requires them to quarantine, or are
required to miss work due to following the self- certification process (upon the
recommendation of one of the BHSD school nurses), the Board will pay
employees the difference between their tax-free worker's compensation
benefits and their regular rate of pay (i.e., will make them whole). For purposes
of this determination, an employee’s infection or exposure will not be
considered “at work” unless there is a traceable connection to a workplace
exposure. Any such pay during such an absence will be categorized as paid
administrative leave and will not be deducted from the employees’ accumulated
paid leave. The Board reserves the right to require the employee to be
examined by a health care provider of the Administration's choosing, at the
Board's expense, and may discontinue this supplemental pay when the
employee's or the Board's selected health care provider deems the employee fit
to return to work, regardless of the employee's continued eligibility for any
worker's compensation benefits.

b. For employees who are infected with COVID-19 outside of work or have a
“close contact” exposure to COVID-19 outside of work that requires them to
quarantine, their leave will be paid through use of sick leave or other
accumulated leave. In the event an employee has exhausted his/her allotment
of paid leave days, the remaining isolation or quarantine period will be unpaid.

c. It is understood that employees who have COVID-19 related extended health
leave of absence will have access to the sick leave bank as outlined in the
current contract.

d. For employees who are infected with COVID-19 and there is no traceable
connection to the workplace, or an outside exposure, and the employee is
unable to work remotely due to their illness, special consideration may be
granted for administrative paid leave as outlined in Section A (above).  A
employee seeking consideration shall make such a request via “consideration
application”, and the Superintendent may request any additional information
from the employee as needed to consider the request.  The Union President(s)
and Superintendent shall meet to review each request.  Upon review of the
application, the employee shall be notified within 2 days of the
Superintendent’s determination.  The Superintendent’s determination is in his
sole discretion and is not appealable, grievable, or arbitrable.  Any accrued
time used while waiting for the application to be reviewed shall be returned to
the employee if administrative leave is granted.

2. Plan Time

Exhibit 18



a. Given new procedures for morning drop-off due to COVID-19, there is a
chance that contractual planning times will be impacted.  Once we get into the
school year and get accustomed to the flow of student arrival times, a better
determination can be made.  It is agreed upon that all certified staff who have
a negative impact on their plan time (below contractual levels) will receive
corresponding compensation time to be used anytime over the next 5 years.
Compensation time will be calculated rounding up to the nearest ½ day.

i. Example:  It may be determined that a Middle School teacher is being
shorted 15 minutes per week for plan time according to the current
contract.  Over a 36 week period, this accumulates to 540 minutes for
the school year.  A teacher  work day consists of 450 minutes,
therefore this teacher would receive 1.5 compensation days to use at
his/her discretion.

3. Remote Learning
a. District administration is finalizing procedures for when students are eligible for

remote learning, and guidelines will be in line with the ISBE requirements.
Teachers will have a minimum of one full school day to begin the remote
learning after notification to the school that the child is eligible.

b. When remote learning is required,  the expectation is that our staff will provide
a minimum of 2.5 hours (ISBE required) of “eyes and ears” into the live
classroom using Google Classroom and Google Meet (Zoom can be utilized
but is not supported by the technology department).  It is also required by ISBE
to assign 2.5 hours of asynchronous learning opportunities when a student is
participating in remote learning (not exceeding 5 hours
asynchronous/synchronous).

Tentative Agreement Signatures:

Union Representative: ____________________________________  Date:_______________

Board President:   ____________________________________  Date:_______________

Exhibit 18



Exhibit 19



Exhibit 19



Exhibit 19



Exhibit 19



Exhibit 19



Exhibit 19



Exhibit 19



Exhibit 19



Exhibit 19



Exhibit 19



Exhibit 19



Board of Education
Administrator Report

September 13, 2021
1.  Good Things Happening for Kids:
Meet & Greet on August 19 for grades PreK-4
Plans for Hispanic Heritage Month have been created with staff and parent involvement
PTO Back to School Bash August 27

2.  Good Things Happening for Staff:
August 18, 19, 20 - Institute Days were packed with excellent PD for ALL staff
MTSS Grade Level Team Meetings
MTSS Building Leadership Team Meetings
Special Education Legal Update PD
Early Release Day #1- HumanEx Survey, Equity Training with Diversity to Inclusion (Jessica
Oladapo)
New Teachers meet with mentors

3.  General Information to Share:
Meet & Greet was well attended
Middle School Curriculum Nights - August 24th & 26th
Elementary Curriculum Night - September 2
Primary Curriculum Night - September 8

August 9, 2021

1.  Good Things Happening for Kids:
Students lead an “Interview with the Interim Principal”- M
Student schedules are going through the QC process before they are finalized and prepped to be
mailed home by the end of the month- M
Master schedule & class lists completed and distributed to staff.-E
Building tours provided for students and families- P
Building tours scheduled for 8/16 & 8/17
Mailing “Welcome back to school” postcards to all district students-P, E, M
Kindergarten Camp scheduled for August 12 - P
Meet and Greet for PreK-4th grade August 19 from 4-6 pm - P, E
Class roster information will be shared with families through Skyward by August 11 - P, E

2.  Good Things Happening for Staff:
Many teachers have begun setting up classrooms - P, E, M
New Teacher Orientation - August 5 - P, E, M
New Teacher Orientation -August 13-E

Exhibit 20 



Big Hollow School District 38
Administrator Retreat

Monday, August 9, 2021

Location:

8:00 – 8:45 a.m. Breakfast-- Value Cards

8:45 - 9:00 a.m. Opening
● Mr. Gold will share his “1-pager”

9:00 a.m. - 9:50 a.m. Book Talk:  “The Mind of a the Leader”
Authors:  Hougaard and Carter

9:50 a.m. - 10:00 a.m. Break

10:00 a.m. - 10:50 a.m. Book Talk:  “Your Life is Your Message”
Authors:  Blair and Gesner

10:50 a.m. - 11:00 a.m. Break

11:00 a.m. - 11:30 a.m. Book Talk:  “Time for Change”
Authors:  Muhammad and Cruz

11:30 – 1:00 p.m. Lunch

1:00 p.m. – 3:00 p.m. Alertus training (BHMS Library)

Just as our teachers are leading classrooms full of students who
are recovering from a crisis, we are leading staff who are in
various stages of their own recovery.  Our leadership has never
been more important

Exhibit 21



Big Hollow School District 38
Administrator Retreat

Wednesday, August 11, 2021

Location:  BHMS Library

8:00 – 9:00 a.m. Miscellaneous Items for discussion
● Decision on when to implement HumanEx surveys

○ Employee survey
○ Student survey
○ Parent survey

● Remote learning options for 2021-2022 -- final
decision to release to parents

9:00 a.m. - 9:10 a.m. Break

9:20 a.m. - 11:00 a.m. Leadership Visioning/Goal Setting
● Develop your own vision for your leadership
● Set goals on how to get there
● Include, if necessary, personal goals for a better

“you”
● In our individual meetings throughout the year, we

will discuss these goals each time.

11:00 a.m. - noon Lunch

Exhibit 21


	1-Budget-- Rev_Exp report (1)
	2-Budget-- Fund Balance Summary (1)
	3-Budget-- Final draft 9-8-21 (1)
	4-August 9-2021 Open Meeting Minutes (1)
	5-BHSD August 2021 Treasurer's Report (1)
	6-AP Bills Sept (1)
	7-Convenience Fund August 2021 (1) (1)
	8-Payroll Report August 2021 (1)
	9-EIS ADMIN AND TEACHER REPORT 2020-2021 (2) (1)
	10-Finance Committee report (1)
	11-ELC Intergovernmental Agreement (1)
	12-Diversity-Equity-Inclusion presentation (1)
	13-Press Plus Issue 107 updated (1)
	Policy-110 (1) (1)
	Policy-120 (1) (1)
	Policy-130 (1) (1)
	Policy-210 (1) (1)
	Policy-230 (1)
	Policy-330 (1) (1)
	Policy-510 (1)
	Policy-730 (1) (1)
	Policy-890 (1)
	Policy-2130 (1)
	Policy-2240 (1)
	Policy-5310 (1) (1)
	Policy-6100 (1) (1)
	Policy-6145 (1)
	Policy-6160 (1)
	Policy-6170 (1) (1)
	Policy-6235 (1)
	Policy-6255 (1)
	Policy-6260 (1)
	Policy-7220 (1) (1)
	Policy-7230 (1) (1)
	Policy-7280 (1)

	14-2021-09-08 District Intellectual Property Policy - DRAFT Policy 2_270 (1)
	15-6th day enrollment (1) (1)
	16-PRI ELE enrollment.docx (1)
	17-August 2021 Employment Report (1) (1)
	18-MOU Draft_  9_8_21 (1)
	19-Bus Lease Document 8-30-21 (1)
	20-BoE Admin Report 2021-22 (2) (1)
	21-Admin retreat agendas (1)



